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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

YA 13z R
M mE
For Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E “T—F —TRF “2-RF “T-mEF
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Revenue WA 1,307,639,358 964,927,119 704,937,348 621,089,610 489,412,925
EBITDA ERMEREHEA
il 368,342,429 274,120,387 208,888,441 229,194,207 112,500,351
Profit before tax BRI A 330,153,644 244,608,182 184,407,790 210,596,799 96,568,611
Profit for the year FREM 278,136,291 203,496,217 149,308,398 174,777,762 81,306,643
Profit attributable to ownersof AR FEB AJE(S
the Company s ) 279,223,779 200,702,539 148,663,969 174,415,159 81,121,682
Eamings per share (HK cents) &R 2 F (7&1L) 28.5 21.0 19.9 23.8 1.1
As at 31 March
R=A=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E —T—F —TRF “E-RF —T-REEF
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Total assets BERE 1,982,980,721  1,199,253,190  1,155,563,031 467,666,980 483,200,564
Total liabilities BlERSE 1,145,466,738 409,400,867 424,285,947 464,713,119 500,121,265
Net assets/(labilities) BE/(afB)FE 837,513,983 789,852,323 731,277,084 2,953,861 (16,920,701)
Financial Metrics g 2=t
EBITDA Margin® B EREHEm
v B 28.1% 28.4% 29.6% 36.9% 23.0%
Net profit margin® FRAERe 21.3% 21.1% 21.1% 28.1% 16.6%
Current ratio® B RO 1.36x 2.49x 2.54x 0.85x 0.86x
Quick ratio® EEL RO 1.33x 2.44x 2.50x 0.82x 0.84x
Return on equity® BRAmHEO 33.2% 25.8% 20.4% 5,916.9% N/ATE O
Return on average total assets® Fi#@EERREO 17.5% 17.3% 18.4% 36.7% 19.8%
Dividend per share (HK cents)  &FRRAZ B (A Il) 27.0 20.4 145 15.2 -
Notes: MIEE -
i EBITDA Margin equals earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 1. BRI E REHEN AT ERNFRREFE - HHIE -
amortisation over total revenue for the financial year. WE REHEATH R R
2. Net profit margin equals profit for the year divided by revenue for the same 2. 5 R P g FIRR A B B A
period.
3. Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as at the end 8, MBLRERTHRFERNRBEERURE AR -
of the financial year.
4. Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by current liabilities 4. RELL R F B ERE R B E E R E R AR

PaE-

as at end of the financial year.

PR 31 3 2 55 70 4F P9 U R DA B R R R MY B s AR R
ZERGEER

B Return on equity equals profit for the year divided by the ending balance of &,
total equity for the financial year.

FHREEDREENFRGNRAMRFRNE
EREZFIRFREBIBEMFHE

6. Return on average total assets equals profit for the year divided by the 6.
arithmetic mean of the beginning and ending balances of total assets for
the financial year.

2 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B &

A year-over-year analysis of certain key metrics of our revenue and IWAREFPHETHAREZ 2RI N
clients are set out below: T

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=+-HLEE

2018 2017 % change
“®-NE  —TtF  EHHED
Total revenue (HK$) FE N 1,307,639,358 964,927,119 355
Sales contracts entered into during ~ F R AIEEES K (BT)
the year (HK$) 1,398,705821 969,770,195 44.2
Approximate number of Key Clients ~ BEEE P4 EH B 21,500 16,200 32.7
Number of clients who made at ELEE - ARBHEMD
least one purchase of REHE
services or products 81,055 52,446 54.5
Revenue contributed by FEEFPEREKA (%) 11
PRC clients (%) 36% 25% p.p. BB D2
Material unfavourable feedback ERBHEEEEERERR)
(Compensation and refund) (BB%ET)
(HKS$million) 0.9 15 43.2)
Material unfavourable feedback ERAEBHERE(BEREN)
(Compensation and refund) (EBIRABE D) (0.09)
(% of total Revenue) 0.07% 0.16% p.p. EE D2
Refunds and settlements to FRRERFARBRAVER
legal proceedings and claims kEEoE(ABAT) N/A
(HK$million) - 0.10 TiE A
Refunds and settlements to R SFUERFR R BERIIER
legal proceedings and claims REESB(EEHR
(% of Recognised BEBABDL) N/A
Medical Revenue) - 0.02% TiER

BEBERBARESRAR
FEME 2017/18




AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
B R

- T
caringcompany--*

Awarded by The Hong kong Council of Social Service
TEEREERE

Caring Company 2015-18
[P EREE ] (3 2015-18

Hong Kong Institute of Marketing —
Market Leadership Award 2017
BEEMKEE — 2017 FmiHAEH

|

.I ) \-F

DR REBORN

T
AMEERS T L (R : i‘
o = v

QF Partnerships Commendation
Ceremony 2018 —
QF Star Employer
BERER SR8 2018 —
QFEREE

Hong Kong Beauty & Wellness Association —
Top 10 Most Influential Brands
of Beauty Industry 2017
ERETERRREHS —
017 FERETAZAZE IR

2l g‘d] Ll Lt T

T AFBSMRY

The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts
and Professional Commentators Limited
16th Anniversary — Outstanding Listed

Companies Award 2017
BERESTHE 16 BEFEZE LTHAA
FEAE2017 B HE

The Most Popular Medical Brands voted by
Medical Staffs Award 2018
RXEEASEUIMIEAH2018

4 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

Hong Kong Top Service Brand 2017
2017 FE BRI

St el Warkre
dvaris Luva g Bchame
b 31T

Unken Raestical
Hasityiare Limgos

Green Office and Eco-Healthy
Workplace Awards Labelling Scheme
R EER —

2017 FPNEH

MeaDerm

Merz Aesthetics — Golden Records Award
Year 2017 for Ultherapy
EBILEE —2017 4 Ultherapy :2 854 88



“Borooe, SALES CERTIFICATI

” 3 S o

i+ Allergan

Botox — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 7 Years from 2010 to 2016
within Hong Kong
Botox — 2010-2016@ & 7 F 2B HETE

?%@ﬁ'

Tar. Rehorn Cosmutic Sarpery

HWOS & £ ¥ RohloE RERT
sial

Tkﬁ-ﬂﬂiﬁmd}
11} HALES ACHEVEMENT
AEen ST
amy

Restylane — Highest Sales Achievement for

Consecutive 7 Years from 2011 to 2017
within Hong Kong
Restylane — 20112017 8E7 £ 2B HEETE

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
7% &71!3 Flti:

e ——
- KEERRERED
oot ;EF 10 SALES ACHECEENT - = ;
AESTHETIC CENTER Cdlivéderm SALES CERTIFICATI

WN-2nTRRtFERRRET

B

i Alergon

& OALDERMA

Dysport — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 7 Years from 2011 to 2017
within Hong Kong

Juvederm — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 7 Years from 2010 to 2016
within Hong Kong
Juvederm — 2010-2016 & 7 F 2 BHETE

9 DR RERORN

o

TE e

2011201 TR EE AR R /

TEOXANE |

==

Teosyal — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 7 Years from 2011 to 2017
within Hong Kong
Teosyal — 2011-2017 E4E 7 F 2744

Sculptra — Highest Sales Achievement for
Consecutive 7 Years from 2011 to 2017
within Hong Kong
Sculptra — 2011-2017 #4857 FF 2 75

EBE e

als o 3 f -
3¢ invisalign

Highest Sales Achievement

for Consecutive 10 years within Hong Kong
I\E 1 0 $ _:F_/ (=h

EI_II_|

=EE

sl =

>.

—

Black Diamond Status —
2017 Invisalign Advantage Program
in Hong Kong
RiEftER —

2017 FHRBREXEEIER

BEERBRERSEERAT
FE kL 2017/18
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GEOGRAPHICAL COVERAGE
i B =
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(in the process of establishment)

Shenzhen CEERIZH ) 7RI (1)

\___Sheung Shui 7K

Yuen Long 728

5N

HONG KONG &

Tuen Mun #iF9

Tsuen Wan 258 Shatin />

Mong Kok Efﬁ

S

Tsim Sha Tsui 2 27H
Tseung Kwan O #4558

P Flagship aesthetic medical centre

BRXEDOREE

Wan Chai /& ﬁ
Central & rth Point 4t £

.<\ Quarry Bay %55

Dc\ < Causeway Bay S5

Standard aesthetic medical centre

o BARBEADL

Aesthetic medical clinic

® BREXEFPL

Dental centre

® R

. Beauty service centre
ERRBHL
‘ Health management centre

REEEPL

. Chiropractic and physiotherapy centre
HREYHEERDL

As at 31 May 2018
RZZE-—N\FRA=+—H

6 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Revenue

LN

Net Profit
B A

+36.7%

Dear Shareholders,

We have successfully evolved into a multi-discipline medical service
provider upon two years of listing on the Stock Exchange, currently
backed by over 70 in-house Registered Practitioners. Preventive and
precision medicine is the core to our medical platform and we will
continue the deployment of medical Al to enhance the
competitiveness and efficiency of the Group in satisfying the specific
needs of a client.

We are delighted that Orbimed became our strategic Shareholder.
Since then, we obtained better access to global top-notch medical
assets and business opportunities and strengthened our capability
for deepening our impact on the medical industry. We are to
demonstrate the Group’s competitive strengths to the investment
community and seize opportunities from the market.

We proactively grasped opportunities arising from the market and
were able to achieve remarkable growth. The Group’s revenue and
net profit increased by 35.5% and 36.7% year-on-year to
HK$1,307.6 million and HK$278.1 million during the Reporting
Period respectively. The Group is committed to generating
sustainable and consistent returns for our Shareholders. The Board
has recommended to declare a final cash dividend of HK$5.0 cents
per Share and a special dividend of HK$9.5 cents per Share for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

* Highest sales achievement for consecutive 6 to 9 years from 2008 to 2016
within Hong Kong

+35.5%

ERH®E

Leadership*
R~

No.1

@

BRI EHHIBIR -

REERAT ETMFER - HPIRDBERXSZ TE

BRGHER  REAXBEEBB70REME
1ERIRSE E‘Eﬁﬁli{ﬂﬁﬁ%%%ﬁzﬁ ST B
b BPSEETSBEATERE  UEARN

ES @Eﬁﬁ%}fﬁi?ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ’] DMK o

LT AMREHZ - Orbimed B 72 3 169 B AR AR ZR. -
BPELERSESERBRNBREENRD
# o W HNREAFINEE N ANMREBRITENTE
A BAIERRERRTARENGFEDS RIE
BHSHE

BRMERICEMSANEENHEE  WEEREE

£ o REBEMRA X F &N REBER LS
Bl 3 £35.5% & 36.7%=1,307.68 & & T &
2781 EBETT - $%¥&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$i‘%‘fi7ﬁ%

R—8aE®k N2 EFSESIREE
—N\F=A :+*EI¢¢J§*5EE1H§H§ET%5.0/%

1B R HIER & BB N B AR 7 9.5 78 Il s 3 A

%\o

* —EREN\FE_F-RFEERENFREHER
S

BEERBRERASEERAT 7
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
TEHRE

MEDICAL TOURISM

The Group is committed to capture the market of growing demand
for reliable and quality medical products and services that is not
available in the PRC via medical tourism. In addition to opening our
own medical aesthetic clinics in the PRC modestly, we entered into a
strategic co-operation with Tencent Doctorwork to facilitate any
cross-border consultation. Our PRC clients have contributed 36% of
the Group’s total revenue during the Reporting Period and we
anticipate that our PRC clients business will continue to grow. We
will also proactively explore for acquisition targets as well as
partnership opportunities with strong presence in the PRC, in
particular, market players who share the same vision as we do —
offering safe, professional and effective services bringing in health,
beauty and happiness to individuals with sustainability.

INTEGRATED MULTI-DISCIPLINE STRATEGY

Further to the establishment of our health management centre and
acquisition of the largest chiropractic chain in Hong Kong in 2016,
we successfully integrated the businesses, increased the efficiency
of the medical discipline and expanded to offer physiotherapy and
orthopaedic services in the one-stop pain management centre.
During the Reporting Period, the Group expanded the depth of its
reach by acquisition of clinics in dentistry and neurosurgery.

Occupying over 27,000 sq ft, our specialty clinics, oncology and day
surgery centre, and a diagnostic and imaging centres in Hong Kong
are expected to be in operation by the end of 2018.

By establishing our footprint with Tencent Doctorwork in the state-
of-art intelligent primary care clinics, we are able to capture further
medical and healthcare needs where our eco-system can offer. We
will continue to deepening and widening of our coverage in each of
the medical disciplines.

BRIk

AEEH OB BEEREDE NS EAME
RESHNAEMBEBFER A @IEROFNR -
BRTETBEABEERREENERXTDM
S RAAITFEDAEE L RFABRS S IE - BT
PEIRRKE o fPizﬁﬁE’JEle%}f'ﬁA#&i,HﬂFaﬁE%ﬁE’Ml
ANEAREBU AR 36% » FAPITEHIF B P %7
RAEIR R - LAITSREEYERE R R RET
BAGBERAZENINAES  LERERMAM
FRFESMER — BELE EXREBRY
Eﬁ—ir%#@}f' HORGERR - KB IREE -

ZURBEE KM

BT RNERTREEEDORMBEERA
AR IR EATR - BRPRNEAEER =7
BRI OME - I — b AR E R R O R R
BREAZMRABE BT - RREME - AKE
BBBWEZE TR Z rERESRE -

BPAREANENZAH - EBRDAESL - A
e 9y 7 0 B U 32 B R DA 1 281 27,000 F 75 36
R BHR_FT-N\FERALE -

BRI AR Ef‘az&%‘?%‘%%$?%ﬁ§ﬁﬁﬁ
175 FfgesE —PIEEBRERRRET R
ﬁifFﬁE’JEHE%’Eﬁ%%ﬁET BB ARTS o fﬁ/ﬂFﬂH%%if

AR EFARANSABERENRERHE -

Umon Medtcat H althcare Limited

SIR/AE

Langham Place Flagship Sitore’s New Floor Open

0 B 45 05 S A R B

8 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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by PRC Clients
RBEREF &R
YU AAS EE

+32.7% +36%

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Key Clients
BEERF

| would like to express my deepest appreciation to the management
team and all fellow staff members for their extraordinary commitment,
cohesive teamwork, dedication and contribution. They are one of our
most important assets contributing to the Group’s success. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to all of our Shareholders, customers and
business partners for their unwavering support. We will continue to
leverage on our unparalleled position and deepen our impact as one
of the leading medical services providers in Hong Kong and striving
for excellence and creating value for our Shareholders.

Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

27 June 2018

rion Ml Hesthare

/
e,lslMl—l 9 DRREBORN #re:HEALTH (Wyie SPINE @

Central

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TEHRE

Revenue Contributions

Gross Service
Floor Area

\ HERERBEER

+24.5%

IS &

AAZBHEEKENERERMARINZEBR
A BENEREE  ERMERMKRERZNH
B MM EF —BARKERNEL BRI R

REE - AANZBRREFTH MBS RO
PIARER - BF REBBHOEESSR - R
BEZERMNBLES  WENBAERETE
ALEBERGEBANTES  TERAFKE -
RICRAIERBIE -

ES-1

—E-\FXAZtTtAR

DENTAL CARE

BEERBREBRASEERAT 9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR & Mo

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We have evolved into a leading medical service provider in Hong
Kong, achieving strong business growth while maintain our margins.
According to a report conducted by Frost and Sullivan, we are the
largest medical aesthetic service provider in Hong Kong in terms of
revenue in 2017. We are well-positioned to broaden the coverage of
medical disciplines. As at 31 May 2018, including our two flagships
in Hong Kong and five clinics in the PRC, we operate 54 clinics and
service centres occupying an aggregate of approximately 200,000
square feet of floor area with 73 Registered Practitioners across
Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau. During the Reporting Period, our
revenue and net profit increased significantly by 35.5% and 36.7%
from the previous year to HK$1,307.6 million and HK$278.1 million
respectively.

The Board resolved to recommend a cash dividend of 5.0 HK cents
per Share and a special dividend of 9.5 HK cents per Share, i.e. a
total of 14.5 HK cents per Share, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Business Developments

As a leading medical service provider in Hong Kong, during the
Reporting Period, the Group obtained Hong Kong Top Service Brand
Award 2017 and became a partner with Asia Miles, Asia’s leading
travel and lifestyle rewards programme, in which the clients of our
health management centre re:HEALTH, dental centre UMH DENTAL
CARE and chiropractic services centre SPINE Central can enjoy
rewards.

Growth driven by medical tourism

Leveraging on the widening of the customer spectrum and our
capability to offer medical tourism services, contributions from our
PRC clients to our revenue increased to 36% (2017: 25%) during the
Reporting Period.

1 O Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

EBRHE

RMEBERKN AT BNELEERRGIRES &
IR EFIE R W MEFFFE - BIRFHH D F
YHmENRE  R-TE—+F R AG &
MABEGRANESXARGRMEY - BHMAS
B EEABEENRBHEEEHE - RZ2F
—\FRAZ=Z+—8  BERMAEESEHNRRIE
BERTFBNAERZIAEN B ESARZA
MR L - AT EE A ££49200,000 F 5
WR - ERB PR RBPIEB73EEME
RREBRE - JTPIOURA KT R F 5 B ER A F i1
7135.5% % 36.7% = 1,307.6 A& B L K278.1H
BB e

EZRAREERBM0BINESRE R
FREMSEBINERIRE - B1E KN
1458 HEAFRRNERERRBFAE L4t
o TEIEE -

£

VERBBBEBERGIRMEYE  RIREHRRE - &
SEES-_T—tEHERBFEE LK ATM
EEBRNAERN DNEBERATMNEE 15
RIREE R AR N EEERT R RPIMBREREERER
Lrre:HEALTH ~ ZF &L A 2 UMH DENTAL CARE &
ARRH L0SPINE Centralf) BRI Z A E -

BERETBER
BREMRERFEE MBI FIREERRERS

Mg BARFE /BB & B T AU A
BILLBIE H1 = 36% (—FE— 4 : 25%) ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Growth driven by integration and multi-discipline strategy

Further to the acquisition of the largest chiropractic services chain in
Hong Kong in October 2016, the Group commenced offering a one-
stop solution to pain management in our multi-service flagship store in
Langham Place, Mong Kok, Hong Kong from August 2017 onwards.
The pain management services contributed to approximately 8.2% of
medical services (2017: 4.0%) during the Reporting Period. The
aggregate number of our clients across each discipline increased at a
faster pace than the number of total active clients, evidencing the
effectiveness of our integrated multi-discipline strategy.

Growth driven by merger and acquisition

The Group will continue to diversify our services and product
offerings to fulfil the medical, health and wellness needs of individuals
via mergers and acquisitions, with a focus in specialty clinics. During
the Reporting Period, we acquired clinics in dentistry and
neurosurgery in Hong Kong, which supplements the service offerings
of the Group.

Contracted sales

Contracted sales, which refers to sales contracts entered into during
the Reporting Period, is an important factor affecting our results of
operations. Contracted sales are, in turn, primarily driven by the
number of clients who have made at least one purchase during a
financial period and the average spending per client. Contracted
sales increased significantly by 44.2%, from HK$969.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$1,398.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2018, and the number of clients who made at least one
purchase of services or products during the respective periods were
52,446 and 81,055 respectively, representing an increase of 54.5%.

UMLRT
MEDICAL CONFERENCE
2018

B T

BERZTRERBFTHER

BT —RET ARBEESRANERIRS #AT
% AEEE _T-tF\AERBREMNE
B AEA ST A0 % TR AR B AR S R A — U U E
EIERRT o FIEE IR RSN A MREI548.2%
BERB(ZT—1F  4.0%) - SERBHEP
BEMERRESEETFPABRR - EHIM
B % TURRTS B A SRAS O o

HBETBER

AEEBFEEBHBLMBAINRE RER G
FETRER - DAm R ERI A LB - 25 R IR
FROUSAERERZHAHE - NREH
B BB ZEAREES TR kI
B R AN B PR A RIS EE o

RIRSHER

AIAHEREENRE MV AEESY =Y
BRMEERXRENEZER - FTHHEERBAER
THBBRAZLVEE - ANEFPHE AEBUR
PRFEEETE S AHEEREHE_S—+
F=ZA=1T—HILFER69.8F & T ARG
Mas2nz8z2—E—N\F=ZA=+—HLFE
1,308 7HEEBL MASHEZLEE -
RS RERNEFEE D5 /52,446 4 K% 81,055
% 1EIN54.5% o

EEABEBEEEERAT 1 1
FEHRE 2017/18



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER AR AW

We have achieved a strong and solid growth of contracted sales due
to our ability to maintain and grow our client’s is spending and the
number of clients who made purchases, especially our Key Clients.
We will continue to aim to grow our Key Client base and increase
their average spending through improvements in the following areas:
° big data and CRM System

° integrated multi-discipline sales and marketing strategy

o service floor area

° number and types of services and products

° number of Registered Practitioners

o retention of clients

° marketing channels

° quality of services

o efforts to PRC tourists in Hong Kong

Client Growth and Diversity

Our revenue is significantly affected by the number of clients who
receive our services, in particular the number of Key Clients. As at 31
March 2018, we have approximately 21,500 Key Clients, of which
60% of them were recurring clients.

During the Reporting Period, approximately 83.7% and 56.7% of our

clients who received at least one service session were females and
were between the ages of 26 to 55, respectively.

1 2 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A year-to-year analysis of certain key metrics of our revenue and

clients are set out below:

SSE RS

A

WAREFOETHREERZFLLDHTEHIIM

T~

For the year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—-RALEFE

2018 2017 % change
—E-N\fF —tF BOLLES
Total revenue (HK$) BRI (BT) 1,307,639,358 964,927,119 36.5
Sales contracts entered into FRETUNEERL
during the year (HK$) (F&7m) 1,398,705,821 969,770,195 44.2
Approximate number of Key Clients EERFPHAHE 21,500 16,200 32.7
Number of clients who made at least ELBEE-ARBREMD
one purchase of services or products BPEH 81,055 52,446 54.5
Revenue contributed by PRC clients (%) FHEE S ERAIURA (%) 11p.p.
36% 25% (EER
Material unfavourable feedback EABELEBFERRK)
(Compensation and refund) (BBBT)
(HKS million) 0.9 15 (43.2)
Material unfavourable feedback EABELE(FERRR)
(Compensation and refund) (IFBBRAB L) 0.09p.p.)
(% of total Revenue) 0.07% 0.16% (EERaE
Refunds and settlements to fRREEFARRRAERR R
legal proceedings and claims HEEBR(EEAT) N/A
(HK$ million) - 0.10 TNE A
Refunds and settlements to legal RREEFARBERNRI R
proceedings and claims REER(HERRER N/A
(% of Recognised Medical Revenue) HﬁU\E ) - 0.02% T

BEBRBAREARAR 13
FEME 2017/18



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B W T

Our Professionals and Other Staff RPN EXAEREMET

We continued to be a reliable partner to the medical experts. As at KPEEEAREERNERMY HE =
31 March 2018, we had 64 Registered Practitioners, 42 medical —N\F=ZA=1+—HIFE  &MB64ZIME
assistants, 295 relationship managers and 361 Trained Therapists. A2 Z BB - 206 AR LIELAK 3614
The following table summarises our Registered Practitioners as at 31 DEIEIGEER - TREAR -T—N\F=

March 2018: A=+t—B#MHTMEENSA
Number of
Registered
Type of Registered Practitioners Location Practitioners
oF {88 4 2 Al s B HEMEE AR
Plastic Surgeons Hong Kong 1
BIZINRIBE o
Anesthesiologists Hong Kong &)
il B 8 &6
Pathologists Hong Kong 1
RIPER i
Dentists Hong Kong 14
= i
Paediatrics Hong Kong 1
R R E
Psychiatrists Hong Kong 2
KL AD S
Neurosurgeons Hong Kong 1
A INELER s
Orthopaedics Hong Kong 1
FRIEE &6
Hong Kong Doctors who are General Practitioners Hong Kong 13
LBMEER o
Registered Chiropractors Hong Kong 13
EERliip=n- 8
Chinese Medicine Practitioners (including one Listed Chinese Medicine Hong Kong 3
Practitioner & one Registered Chinese Medicine Practitioner) BB
hE(BE-—RARITER—EEMTE
PRC Doctors PRC 8
Hh A B hE A
Macau Doctors Macau 3
B B PG

64
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Internal Control Protocols

Work safety and risk management

Professionalism and safety have always been our core values. Our
experienced and well-trained Registered Practitioners perform and
oversee all medical related operations, as well as participate in our
senior management. Both our Registered Practitioners and
supporting staff are scheduled to attend medical related trainings
regularly to update their knowledge and skill sets. Before performing
any procedure to a client, we require our Registered Practitioners
and Trained Therapists to explain the procedures and associated
risks therein and obtain a written consent and acknowledgement as
set out in a designated form to be signed by our client. We apply
certain medical standards even to our non-medical services, such as
recommending our clients to consult doctors before receiving any of
our services.

Internal Control Measures regarding selling practices and
unutilised prepaid packages

We have implemented a series of internal control measures, including
a number of measures that refer to applicable “best practice”
guidelines issued by governmental bodies (such as the Hong Kong
Consumer Council and the Commerce and Economic Development
Bureau of Hong Kong), in order to help prevent our staff from
engaging in coercive selling practices, such as:

° adopting a refund policy which includes a seven-day cooling-
off period whereby our clients are allowed to request a full

refund within seven days of purchase of any prepaid packages;

° adopting a policy that commission is not paid to our sales staff
for contracted sales which are subsequently refunded;

° establishing procedures for recording and handling complaints;
° having written terms and conditions with clients;
° sharing media reports of forced selling cases with our staff to

highlight the potential adverse consequences of such
practices;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER AR AW

° proactively seeking clarification of the Trade Description
Ordinance from the relevant government authorities and
organising a seminar provided by the officers of the Hong Kong
Customs and Excise Department relating to the Trade
Description Ordinance for our staff;

° adopting detailed employee guidelines on, inter alia,
responsible selling practices (for example, not to harass or
push clients in purchasing prepaid packages);

o having video and voice recording devices in consultation rooms
to monitor staff behaviour during consultations; and

° offering our employees compensation incentives which are
linked to the actual utilisation of prepaid packages by the
clients.

We have a client phone survey system in order to further our active
solicitation of client feedback. Our client service team calls clients
who have received our services on the previous day (excluding those
who had already completed such survey in the past 30 days) on
every working day. The survey is conducted based on a
questionnaire where we ask clients to give us scores (out of five
points) for 14 categories, such as level-of-care, attitude of staff and
brand image. We compile the scores through our integrated
information technology infrastructure and review such scores to
identify targets for improvement. We have been able to improve our
scores from such client phone surveys since the implementation of
such programme.

Other claims and compliance

In order to provide top-quality and safe services to our clients, we
encourage clients to provide feedback through client satisfaction
surveys and face-to-face discussions. Where a client requests for a
refund or a product return, our Registered Practitioners will
participate in investigation of such request.

Information Technology Infrastructure

During the Reporting Period, we have further improved and
upgraded the sophistication of our information technology systems
and big data to better accommodate our clients’ use of mobile
internet applications, enhance efficiency and standardisation of
operations among service and sales competence to further improve
our service qualities and sales revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Artificial intelligence (“Al”) in medicine and health represent a
collection of multiple technologies enabling machines to sense,
comprehend, act and learn so they can perform administrative,
clinical medical and healthcare functions. The use of algorithms and
software to approximate human cognition in the analysis of complex
medical data without direct human input can be used to analyse
relationships between prevention or treatment techniques and
patient outcomes precisely.

Al research within medicine has been growing rapidly globally. The
evolution of digital capacity together with the enhancement in
medical equipment shall uncover complex associations and is
expected to enhance preventive and precision medicine.

Preventive and precision medicine is the core to our medical
platform. Differentiating from the strategy of aggressive expansion via
establishment of number of clinics, the Group focuses on enhancing
the ambiance of our facilities and convenience to our clients through
the deployment of medical Al. Simplified preventive analysis of health
data supported by enhanced diagnostic equipment shall enhance
the competitiveness and efficiency of the Group in satisfying specific
needs of our clients.

Hong Kong

Based on the total healthcare expenditure research conducted by
Frost and Sullivan, the Hong Kong medical service market revenue
will increase from HK$139.6 billion in 2016 to HK$178.2 billion in
2021. According to the Hong Kong private health market report
published by Bupa and conducted by Asia Care Group, the out of
pocket health expenditure in Hong Kong shall increase from HK$43
billion in 2013/14 to HK$94 billion in 2024/25.

With medical efficacy as a foundation, we are committed to offering
the top notch consumer experiences.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI R

On 16 May 2018, the Group announced of its strategic collaboration
with Tencent Doctorwork in establishing clinics in Hong Kong.
Tencent Doctorwork is a subsidiary of Tencent Holdings Limited
(SEHK stock code: 700, (“Tencent”)), an internet and medical
platform jointly funded by Tencent, Medlinker and Sequoia Capital
China, offering quality, safe and comprehensive health management
services for individuals and their families. Currently, Tencent
Doctorwork has established three clinics in Beijing, Chengdu and
Shenzhen, and is expecting to establish 300 clinics under its direct
operations in the next three years, connecting to 3,000 associated
clinics with 30,000 self-serve health monitors. Backed by the
advanced capability of medical IT of Tencent, we anticipate that the
clinics to be jointly established with Tencent Doctorwork will be the
state-of-art intelligent clinics in Hong Kong serving the
neighbourhood.

By establishing our footprints in the primary care clinics, we are able
to secure new clientele who are health conscious and eventually
require easy access to further medical and healthcare needs which
our eco-system can offer. We look forward to deepening our impact
in each of the medical disciplines. With reference to the big data
gathered in our system, we anticipate that there will be a growing
demand for medical specialty services, and we will consolidate the
market by identifying potential acquisition targets or via an organic
expansion.

We have commenced renovation of our specialty clinics, oncology
and day surgery centre, and a diagnostic and imaging centre at 9
Queen’s Road Central and Langham Place, and 2 primary care
clinics, all of which are expected to be in operation in 2018.

In addition to the advanced radiology services and aesthetic
treatments, the comprehensive range of surgical specialties care
offer services potentially including but not limited to cardiothoracic,
ear, nose and throat (ENT), general surgery, plastic surgery,
neurosurgery, orthopaedics and urology. Our advanced radiology
services shall include magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), computed
tomography scan (CT Scan), polyethylene terephthalate (PET CT),
ultrasound and EOS medical imaging. Our oncology centre and day
surgery centre offer services potentially including but not limited to
chemotherapy, endoscopy, minor operations and traditional Chinese
medicine treatments. Capital investment for establishing the above
clinics and centres occupying approximately 27,000 square feet of
floor area are expected to be over HK$100 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The PRC

According to the PRC central government’s annual work report in
2017, the PRC central government is planning to develop a city
cluster in the Greater Bay Area. By 2030, the Greater Bay Area is
expected to play a leading role in advanced manufacturing,
innovation, shipping, trade and finance. According to the
Commissioner of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the PRC in Hong
Kong, Mr. Xie Feng, Hong Kong has an irreplaceable role in ensuring
that the Greater Bay Area reaches its full potential.

Hong Kong is China’s most internationalised metropolis with its
unique advantage of connecting the mainland and the world.
Enhanced cross-border movements of capital, people, goods and
services within the Greater Bay Area are essential for the region’s
successful development.

We focus on capturing the special medical and healthcare needs in
Hong Kong that could not be met in the PRC by medical tourism.

We will continue the expansion of our own medical aesthetic clinics
and we anticipate that our medical aesthetic clinics in Shenzhen are
expected to be opened by the end of 2018. We are exploring
acquisition targets as well as partnership opportunities with local
medical players in the PRC cautiously, including but not limited to
reputable medical service and healthcare service providers, suppliers
and investors, to fuel our sustainable growth in this market with
immense potential.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRE St am oA

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue increased by 35.5% from HK$964.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017 to HK$1,307.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 primarily attributable to the significant increase in the
revenue generated from medical services and health management
services delivered as a result of the significant increase in the number
of active clients during the Reporting Period.

Medical services

Our revenue from medical services increased by 34.6% from
HK$501.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$675.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2018, primarily attributable to the
increase in the variety of medical services that the Group is offering
and an increase of over 50% of the number of clients receiving
medical services during the Reporting Period.

Quasi-medical services

Our revenue from quasi-medical services increased by 12.0% from
HK$96.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$108.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2018, primarily attributable to the
increase in the number and variety of energy-based aesthetic
medical devices offered to clients during the Reporting Period.

Traditional beauty services

Our revenue from traditional beauty services increased by 35.9%
from HK$175.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
HK$238.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2018, primarily
attributable to the Group’s integrated multi-disciplines strategy to
nurture and retain the new customers to become our Key Clients, in
particular the PRC clients.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Health management services

Our revenue from health management services increased by 105.9%
from HK$51.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 to
HK$105.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2018. The provision
of health screening and management services was newly launched
in May 2016. The significant increase was primarily attributable to the
increase of approximately 190% in the number of Key Clients
obtaining services in our one-stop health management centre from
the year ended 31 March 2017 to the year ended 31 March 2018.

Skincare, healthcare and beauty products

Our revenue from the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products increased by 20.5% from HK$61.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017 to HK$74.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2018, and steadily represents 6.2% of our Recognised
Revenue (2017: 7.0%).

Operating Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
business segments of the operations for the Reporting Period is set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other net income and gains

During the Reporting Period, our other net income and gains were
approximately HK$43.4 million, an increase of approximately
HK$15.9 million or 58.0% when compared to the year ended 31
March 2017, primarily due to the revaluation gain on investment
properties of HK$10.2 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER AR AW

Cost of inventories and consumables

Our cost of inventories and consumables, representing 12.5% of
revenue (2017: 13.5%), increased from HK$130.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017 to HK$163.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2018, primarily attributable to an increase in the volume of
medication and service consumables used, which was in line with
the significant increase in the volume of service procedures
performed.

Registered practitioner expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2018, we incurred Registered
Practitioner expenses of approximately HK$110.4 million, an increase
of approximately HK$32.9 million or 42.5% when compared to the
year ended 31 March 2017, primarily attributable to an increase in
the number of Registered Practitioners from 44 as at 31 March 2017
to 64 as at 31 March 2018.

Employee benefit expenses and remuneration policy

For the year ended 31 March 2018, we incurred employee benefit
expenses of approximately HK$341.3 million, an increase of
approximately HK$63.4 million or 22.8% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2017, primarily due to an increase in our overall
headcount (excluding Registered Practitioners) from 808 as at 31
March 2017 to 1,265 as at 31 March 2018, as well as the increments
to employees’ salaries.

The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented employees by offering
them competitive remuneration packages. Their salaries and
bonuses were determined by reference to their duties, work
experience, performance and prevailing market practices. The Group
also participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme in Hong
Kong, and provides employees with medical insurance coverage. A
share option scheme and a share award scheme are in place to
reward individual employees for their outstanding performance and
contribution to the success of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Marketing and advertising expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group incurred marketing
and advertising expenses of approximately HK$126.9 million, an
increase of approximately HK$58.5 million or 85.4% when compared
to the year ended 31 March 2017, primarily due to an increased level
of marketing and advertising activities in the promotion of the Group
and our new business.

Rental and related expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group incurred rental and
related expenses of approximately HK$130.9 million, an increase of
approximately HK$42.1 million or 47.4% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2017, primarily due to the increase in the g.f.a. of
approximately 40,000 square feets during the Reporting Period as
compared to 31 March 2017.

Credit card expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group incurred credit card
expenses of approximately HK$42.7 million, an increase of
approximately HK$12.9 million or 43.5% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2017, primarily due to the increase in contracted
sales generated during the Reporting Period, resulting in higher
credit card expenses incurred.

Other expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group incurred other
operating expenses of approximately HK$70.5 million, an increase of
approximately HK$26.5 million or 60.2% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2017, primarily due to (i) the professional expenses
incurred as a result of obtaining relevant services from professional
advisers and parties in relation to the transactions entered into by the
Group; and (i) the office expenses incurred as the scale of the
business of the Group increased during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRE St am oA

Profit Before Tax

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has profit before tax
of approximately HK$330.2 million, representing 25.2% of the
revenue which remained stable when compared to that of the year
ended 31 March 2017.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group incurred income tax
expense of approximately HK$52.0 million, an increase of
approximately HK$10.9 million or 26.5% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2017, primarily due to a significant increase in profit
before tax.

Profit for the Year/Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded profit for the
year of approximately HK$278.1 million, an increase of HK$74.6
million or 36.7% when compared to the year ended 31 March 2017,
primarily due to our development of new businesses and efficient
leverage on our integrated multi-disciplines strategy. Our profit
margin remains stable at approximately 21.3%.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents of HK$295.5 million as at 31 March 2018. Our
working capital was HK$369.9 million. Based on our steady cash
inflow from operations, coupled with sufficient cash and bank
balances, we have adequate liquidity and financial resources to meet
the working capital requirements as well as to fund its budgeted
expansion plans in the next financial year.

During the Reporting Period, the majority of our cash and bank
balances were in Hong Kong dollar, and as we continue to expand
our operations in the PRC, there will be an increasing amount of our
assets and transactions denominated in Renminbi.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS
Capital Expenditure

Our capital expenditures during the year ended 31 March 2018 were
primarily related to purchases of operation equipment, which
primarily included medical, dental and beauty devices, and
expenditure in leasehold improvements. We have financed our
capital expenditures through cash flows generated from operating
activities.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 March 2018, we do not have any capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Use of Proceeds from IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO were approximately HK$703.4
million, after deducting the underwriting fees and commission and
related expenses paid and payable by us in connection with the IPO.
We have applied, and will continue to apply the net proceeds from
the IPO in accordance with the proposed reallocation as approved
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 22 August
2017 as well as the applicable Listing Rules. The below table sets
out the actual usage of the net proceeds from 1 October 2017 to 31
March 2018:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B W T

Approximate
Unutilised net Percentage of Actual usage
proceeds as at the unutilised during the
1 October 2017 net proceeds period from Unutilised net
(Approximately as at 1 October 2017 to proceeds
HK$ in million) 1 October 2017 31 March 2018 balance as at
RZB-t& R=Z-t& RZB-t%  31March2018
+A-AH +A-HH TA-BH RZZE-N\F
KBRS KBAFME E-Z-N\E ZA=t-H
HERE HBEREN ZA=t-H REAE
Use of proceeds FENERR (HWEE#ET) BHEIL  HEERAR REREER
i Establishing and expanding the scale of () B RIBARFIZE -
our medical, aesthetic and beauty BEREARBES
service businesses, centres and clinics L REFNHE 269.2 72.3% 118.0 151.2
i.  Acquiring of medical, aesthetic and i WEEE BXRkFE
beauty service businesses, centres and ARBEE - BLR
clinics, and entering into of joint DHURKIAER
ventures al 50.0 13.4% 42.0 8.0
ii.  Upgrading and improving our iy ERRBERMNE
information technology systems MBHE RS 335 9.0% 25 31.0
iv.  Working capital and for other general () 4 EE S RH M~
corporate purpose rEAR 19.7 5.3% 19.7 0.0
3724 100.0% 182.2 190.2
INDEBTEDNESS B%

Interest bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had outstanding interest bearing
bank borrowings in the amount of HK$558.9 million.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 March 2018, we had contingent liabilities not provided for in
our financial statements of HK$2.0 million in relation to a bank
guarantee given to a credit card institution for the use of certain
credit card equipment. Save as disclosed in this annual report, the
Group had no significant contingent liabilities and guarantees as at
31 March 2018.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2018, one of the investment properties of HK$121.8
million and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$479.6 million were pledged for certain bank borrowings and the
time deposits of HK$2.0 million were pledged for banking facilities as
security for credit card instalments programme.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by total equity. As at 31
March 2018, the Group had interest bearing liabilities of HK$558.9
million and the gearing ratio is 66.7%.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly
pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S.
dollar against Renminbi.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and will consider hedging measures against significant foreign
exchange exposure should such need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has no significant interest rate risk. The Group currently
does not have specific policies in place to manage our interest rate
risk and has not entered into interest rate swaps to mitigate the
interest rate risk, but will closely monitor the interest rate risk in the
future.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
investments held by the Company during the Reporting Period, nor
was there any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Reporting Period. Save as
disclosed in this annual report, there is no plan authorised by the
Board for other material investments or additions of capital assets as
at the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

2B RBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board acknowledges the vital importance of good governance
to the Group’s success and sustainability by providing a framework
for the Company to formulate its business strategies and policies,
and to enhance its transparency, accountability and shareholder
value.

The Board has committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adhering to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness.

The Company has adopted the principles as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with all code provisions set out in the CG Code during the
Reporting Period, save for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

Senior management, executives and staff who, because of their
offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside information, have
also been requested to comply with the Model Code. No incident of
non-compliance with the Model Code by such employees was noted
by the Company during the Reporting Period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD AND THE DIRECTORS
Board Composition

During the Reporting Period, the composition of the Board is as
follow:

Executive Directors

Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lee Gabriel

Luk Kun Shing Ben

Yeung Chin Wan

Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs, each an “INED”)
Ma Ching Nam
Yu Ka Fai Alexis (resigned on 14 September 2017)
Lam Chi Hang Josekin (appointed on 14 September 2017)
Look Andrew

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Board has complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules to have three independent non-
executive Directors who represent more than one-third of the Board
and with one of whom possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Board has received from each INED a written annual
confirmation that of his independence satisfied with the guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) has assessed
the independence of each INED and the Company considers that
each of their independence is in compliance with the Listing Rules
during the Reporting Period as at the date of this annual report. Each
INED will inform the Company in writing as soon as practicable if
there is any change of circumstances with may affect his
independence.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Directors do not have
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategies. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 73 to 79 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERHRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, the roles of the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEQ”) have been performed by Mr. Tang Chi Fai (“Mr. Tang”).
Although the dual roles of the Chairman and the CEO constitute a
deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board
believes that having Mr. Tang acting as both the Chairman and the
CEO provides a strong and consistent leadership to the Company
and allows the Company to have more effective planning and
management. Further, in view of Mr. Tang’s extensive experience in
the industry, personal profile and role in the Group and the historical
development of the Group as mentioned in the Prospectus under the
section headed “Our History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure” and publications of the Company from time to time, the
Board considers that it is appropriate and beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group that Mr. Tang continues to act as both the
Chairman and the CEO. The Board will keep regularly reviewing the
operations of the Company under Mr. Tang’s leadership, and
considers that the balance of power and authority has been
maintaining amongst each of the Board member and the
management team of the Group (the “Management”), when the roles
and responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO are being divided
in writing and carried out as below:

The role of the Chairman is focusing on determination of overall
strategies, direction and goal of the Group. The Chairman is also
responsible for leading the Board to effective management of the
Company by, among others, ensuring good corporate governance
practices and procedures, encouraging the Directors to make full
and active contribution to the affairs of the Board, developing a
culture of openness and debate among the Directors so that Board
decisions could fairly reflect consensus, drawing up and approving
Board meetings agenda, and chairing Board meetings.

The CEO, within the powers delegated by the Board from time to
time, is responsible for day-to-day management of the Company and
to implement strategies and major policies decided by the Board
with support of other executive Directors and the Management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to comply with
the code provision on board diversity. Under such policy, the
Nomination Committee is delegated to review, assess and
recommend any appointment, re-election or any succession plan of
any directors to the Board from time to time after considering a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, or professional experience, to allow for
the Company’s business model and specific needs.

Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The executive Board is responsible for setting up the Company’s
corporate strategies, monitoring its implementation and reviewing
operational and financial performance of the Group by making
decisions on major aspects of the Company’s business operations
and other matters, including but not limited to approving and
monitoring key policies, material transactions, business plans, annual
budgets, risk management and internal control systems, annual and
interim results, major capital expenditure and appointment of
Directors.

The non-executive Directors (all are INEDs) has diversified industry
expertise and professional knowledge, and provides advisory,
adequate check and balances for effective and constructive
contribution to the executive Directors to safeguard the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Delegation to Management

Day-to-day operational management and administration functions of
the Group and implementation of the corporate strategies of the
Group are delegated to the Management led by the executive
Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the performance of functions of
corporate governance. During the Reporting Period, the Board has
performed the functions as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code.
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TERERHRE

Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for appointment, re-election, rotation, and removal of the
Directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible for considering
the suitability of an individual to act as a Director and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-election of
Directors, succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of the INEDs as set out below under sub-section
headed “NOMINATION COMMITTEE”.

Save and except Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin, all other Directors
entered into a service contract or letter of appointment with our
Company for an initial term of three (3) years, commencing from the
Listing Date while Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin entered into a letter of
appointment with our Company for an initial term of two years
commencing from 14 September 2017, which shall be renewed as
determined by the Board or the Shareholders. Their term of office
each is the period up to his retirement by rotation or retirement, but
eligible for re-election at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company may by
ordinary resolution at general meetings of the Company elect any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. The Directors shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting after his
appointment, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that each Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Induction and Continuing Professional Development
of Directors

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company received from the
Directors the following records of the training attended during the
Reporting Period on the latest amendments to the Listing Rules and
any other regulatory requirements:
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Nature of Trainings

EIHE
Type 1 Type 2
A BH2
Executive Directors HITES
Tang Chi Fai by v/ v
Lee Gabriel EER v/ v
Luk Kun Shing Ben PR v/ 4
Yeung Chin Wan HEY v/ v
INEDs BYKHTES
Ma Ching Nam SNt ] 4 v
Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT
(appointed on 14 September 2017) (RZZE—tFNAt+THBHER) v v/
Look Andrew FER v/ 4
Yu Ka Fai Alexis REIE
(resigned on 14 September 2017) (RZZE—tFNATHBEBET) v v
Type of trainings: BINTER -
1. Reading materials. 1. B -
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. LI HIRE G wE TS e o
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PEEAWE

Supply of and Access to Information

Yearly schedule of Board meetings and draft agendas of each
meeting are made available to the Directors with sufficient times and
at least 14 or 3 days respectively in advance to encourage the
Directors’ involvement. All Directors have full and timely access to
the Management for any information to enable them to make
informed decisions at the Board meetings, as well as to the company
secretary of the Company who ensures that the regulatory Board
procedures are followed.

Members of the Management are usually invited to attend the Board
meetings to promote an effective communication within the Group.
Each Director is authorized to hire external consultants or experts for
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses to
discharge the Director’s responsibilities. The Directors did not
request for separate independent professional advice during the
Reporting Period.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the ~ RBEHR  EZREIGLHEE S MEENHE
attendance records of each Director during the Reporting Period are SCEREE T -

as follows:

Meeting attendance/eligible to attend

ERHER QERNLRE

Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
=g EREEE REZEE SMEES eV
Executive Directors HTES
Tang Chi Fai e 11/11 N/A 78 A 11 N/AZT 38 A 1/1
Lee Gabriel FER 11/11 N/A 8 F N/ATE N/ATE A 1/1
Luk Kun Shing Ben BER R 10/11 N/A N8 A N/A 3 F N/A 3 F 1/
Yeung Chin Wan HEK 11/11 N/ANE N/ARE N/ATE A 11
INEDs BIUFHTES
Ma Ching Nam 55 10/11 2/2 N/A i A 2/2 1/1
Lam Chi Hang Josekin® ManfTe 6/6% 1/1 N/A 3 F N/A 3 F N/A i@ F
Look Andrew BER 11/11 2/2 11 2/2 1/1
Yu Ka Fai Alexis® REEO 5/5 11 11 1/1 1/1
Notes: ®  appointed on 14 September 2017 M RZT—FNLATHBERET
® resigned on 14 September 2017 O RZE—EFNATHBERT
The Board established three Board committees on 19 February e " E—RNE-_At+hBERKT=FEEEE
2016, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the B SRAEBRZES([BZEZES]|)  HFH
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the ZE8e ([(FNEEe ) RIRERZEES - 255/
Nomination Committee and all of which are chaired by an INED or BYEHITESRIEETEIFE  UEEHEKH
the Chairman to oversee their respective functions set out below, TR (FHARTX) r THERTREETeKEEE
-

and to report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations by FEeeENeRI0g InEEeEREIEL

EET

circulating the minutes of the committee meetings to all Board TATREERSE REEoBREEERKE
members. Each committee or committee member is authorized to EEEER/)EENSERERBETEEER

hire outside consultants or experts for independent professional BREBANTRE  UBITERS -

advice at the Company’s expenses to discharge their responsibilities.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with its written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision C.3.3 of the
CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are set out in
the written terms of reference which include reviewing and
supervising the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems, and providing advices and comments
to the Board. During the Review Period and as at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Look Andrew as
its chairman, and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin
as its members, all of whom are INEDs. The audit committee of the
Company has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2018. The audit committee of the Company
has also reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Company and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings
with the Management, the external auditor of the Company and an
external professional engaged by the Company to review the interim
results and report for 2017/2018 and annual results and reports for
2018 and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and to consider significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit functions, the
scope of work and appointment of external auditor, connected
transactions and arrangements of the Company for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of
the CG Code adopting a model of making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in the written terms of reference which include
regular monitoring of the remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management to ensure that levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin
as its chairman, and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Look Andrew as its
members, all of whom are INEDs.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting for considering and recommending to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the
Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision A.5.2 of
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
set out in the written terms of reference which include selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship, review of the structure,
size and composition of the Board and assessment of the
independence of INEDs.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Tang as its chairman,
executive Director, and Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin and Mr. Look
Andrew as its members, both of whom are INEDs.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and made recommendation to the Board on re-appointment
of Directors with reference to the board diversity policy adopted by
the Company and assessed the independence of INEDs.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company immediately following the resignation by
Mr. Leung Ka Kit on 14 September 2017. Both Mr. Leung and Mr.
Siu fulfill the requirement under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and
were responsible for advisory to the Board on corporate governance
matters during their respective term of appointment of the Reporting
Period. Mr. Siu had taken no less than 15 hours of professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2018.

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration paid to the
external auditor of the Group in respect of the annual audit for the
year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$2,250,000. In addition, HK$432,500 was charged for non-audit
services for certain subsidiaries of the Group. Save as disclosed
above, there was no remuneration payable to the external auditor of
the Company for other non-audit services during the year ended 31
March 2018.

The Board and the Audit Committee satisfied KPMG, Certified Public
Accountants, of their findings, independence, objectivity and
effectiveness in the annual audit and their audit fees. KPMG, Certified
Public Accountants, are proposed for re-appointment as the
Company’s external auditor at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2018 to give true and fair presentation of the financial position of the
Company in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and for timely financial disclosures under the
Listing Rules and any other regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statements as to the auditor’s responsibility of financial reporting
is set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 80 to 89 of
this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed and being implemented to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Management and the executive Directors would identify any
risks associated with the businesses of the Group by considering
both internal and external factors and events from time to time which
include but not limit to political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Two approaches are used for risk
identification and evaluation, which are (1) to identify the root causes
of risks, that is, identify the undesirable events or things that could
go wrong and then identify the potential impacts of each factor and
event on the businesses of the Group; and (2) to identify all the
essential functions that the Group are performing or businesses
objectives that the Group are achieving and then identify all the
possible modes by which such functions might fail to perform. Five
strategies are adopted by the Company to manage risks, including
(1) to accept the risk, (2) to avoid the risk, (3) to transfer the risk, (4)
to mitigate the risk, or (5) to exploit the risk.
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The Company engaged an external professional firm to further its
internal audit function and to conduct an annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company in respect of the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk for the Reporting Period and discussed
its findings with the Audit Committee and then reported to the Board.
The Board is not aware of any areas of concern that would have a
material impact on the financial position or businesses of the Group
and considers that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company are generally adequate and effective and that the
Company could maintain the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions during the Reporting Period.

The Company has been implementing a policy within the Group,
including its subsidiaries, to ensure that all unpublished inside
information of the Group shall be kept confidential until such
information is published on the websites of the Company and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk in
accordance with requirements of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company may deposit at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong as set out below a written requisition which specifies
the transaction of any business at such meeting and is signed by the
requisitionists to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Board. However, there are no provisions allowing
Shareholders to put forward new resolution at a general meeting
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands or the Articles of
Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
following the aforesaid procedures.

40 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

ARBEREINBEE QAR EE A EBEZY
BEERBEREHARBEEAEENGSTE - &
B AREELERTEERE RN
BEZBEREETFRERS - TEEZZRE G
WMEGR HERAEZSER EFSATAE
R AREEOMBHNMEBERERTZENT
A EEY)EE - WRRARFNEREERAEPE
2 EARRTE MARNAR AR RS HE A%
FERER BIERERER  BIFIRER
REFTTEE - REER RIS EHRINEE -

AR —HEAEBARNIT (BIEEKBAR]) B
— AR AR EB 1A & TIZERIEERHR
% BEEREETMRAURENARR R B RE B
R 5 R AEE A R A B4 55 www.hkexnews.hk Tl
BEBENBIL -

R SR AER

RIBEHEIZAAFESS G BFETIRARAE
BIAAN0% MEM — 2R BRRAGERFK
ERXRERRBNBEEIBEEMY S KEFE
BRBRRERIAE - FREBEEFEXNTIIAZ
EREENTMNEHELERE - R HEHER
AR ERARI W E T PR R RS £
REMRBZRNIEN - AERZREZRNWBRA

R EARFERARTDARRREHNIAS -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registered office of the Company provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to require an extraordinary general
meeting or propose a person for election as a Director are detailed in
the Memorandum and Articles of Association published on the
websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited at www.hkexnews.hk.

The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar serves the
Shareholders with respect to all share registration matters. Specific
enquiries of Shareholders and other stakeholders to the Board could
be sent in writing to the company secretary of the Company by mail
to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong set out
below:

Union Medical Healthcare Limited

Suites 7-9, L21, Langham Place Office Tower,
8 Argyle Street,
Mong Kok, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ rights are further protected when separate resolutions
are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including but not limited to election or re-election of
individual director at annual general meeting. All resolutions proposed
at Shareholders’ meetings are put to vote by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

In February 2016, the Company adopted a shareholders’
communication policy. Under the policy, the Company
communicates with its Shareholders and investors through various
means. Timely publication of interim and annual results
announcements on the latest development of the Company and
press release on the Company’s website and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited’s website at www.hkexnews.hk could make the
Shareholders appraise the Company’s financial position and latest
development. Shareholders are highly recommended to pay attention
to these public information. Annual general meetings could provide
an effective forum for the Shareholders to share their views with the
Board. Shareholders are welcome to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Directors and the external auditor of the
Company would be available at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions about the annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the Reporting Period.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present their report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are (1) medical services,
comprising aesthetic surgical procedures, minimally invasive
procedures and energy-based procedures performed by Doctors
and general consultation services, as well as dental, Chinese
medicinal and ophthalmological services; (2) quasi-medical services,
comprising energy-based procedures performed by our Trained
Therapists who have completed mandatory internal training
developed by our Doctors; (3) traditional beauty services, comprising
facials, massages and other non-invasive procedures; (4) skincare
and beauty products, primarily of our private- label brands,
PRODERMA LAB and Suissebeaute; (5) health management centre;
and (6) chiropractic, orthopaedic and physiotherapy services in Hong
Kong.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March
2018 by businesses including geographical segment information is
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. The
geographical location of customers is determined based on the
location where our services or goods are provided or delivered.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business are set out in the sections
headed “"CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 7 to 9 and 10 to 27 of this
annual report respectively. Certain financial key performance
indicators which complement and supplement our financial
disclosures are set out on pages 2 to 3 of this annual report.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties

The following highlights some of the key risks that affect our
business:

Reputation Risk

We rely significantly on the strength of our brand image and
reputation. Any failure to maintain and enhance, or any damage to,
our brand image or reputation could materially and adversely affect
the level of market recognition of, and trust in our services, and in
turn our business, results of operations, financial condition and
prospects.

Talent Risk

If we are unable to attract and retain skilled Registered Practitioners
and other competent staff, our business, results of operations,
financial condition and prospects may be materially and adversely
affected.

Customer Risk

Our service focuses on improving our clients’ physical appearance,
and clients have varying expectations of the magnitude of
improvement that may result from our services. If we fail to properly
manage a client’s expectations of the results from our services, a
client may in turn be dissatisfied with the results of our service, and a
disappointed client may, among others, request refunds, complain to
the media and/or the Hong Kong Consumer Council and file legal
claims against us. Such actions from a client may have a material
adverse effect on our reputation, business, and results of operations,
financial condition and prospects.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental
protection measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of
resources. These policies were supported by our staff and were
implemented effectively.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As a listed company engages business in Hong Kong, the Group is
subject to various laws and regulations, including, among others,
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Listing Rules also apply to the Company.
Being an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability, it is subject to the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of
the same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in certain
jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular,
those have significant impact on the Group. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and relevant operation units in the Company and
subsidiaries from time to time.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief on
the date of this annual report, the Company has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Company.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff members, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development. We
are committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Staff

Our staff members are regarded as one of the most important assets
of the Group. The Group has been endeavouring to provide our staff
with a fair and harmonious workplace. We offer a competitive
remuneration package and great opportunities for career
advancement based on employees’ performance. The Group intends
to grant share options to outstanding employees to recognise and
reward the employees who have contributed to the Group’s
development. The Group also provides our staff with regular trainings
to keep them abreast of the latest development of the Company and
our industry, and medical related knowledge and skill sets.
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Customers

Professionalism and safety have always been our core values. We
are committed to providing the best customer experience to our
customers. Meanwhile, we have a client phone survey system in
order to further our active solicitation of client feedback.

Suppliers

Reliable and quality suppliers are of equal importance in facilitating
us to provide services with high standards of safety and
professionalism. When selecting suppliers, we consider, among
other factors, the suppliers’ reputation, safety record, track record of
performance, quality of goods supplied, price competitiveness,
punctuality of delivery, relationship with our Group, completeness of
certification and credentials provided, service quality and product
offerings. We regularly review and assess our suppliers’ performance
and their qualifications to ensure the quality of our suppliers and that
such suppliers have obtained the applicable licenses (if any), and
update our approved supplier list accordingly.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 96 of this
annual report.

Operating Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of medical, quasi-
medical, health management and traditional beauty services and sale
of skincare, healthcare and beauty products in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of the
annual report.

The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of 5.0 HK
cents per Share and a special dividend of 9.5 HK cents per Share for
the year ended 31 March 2018. The proposed final dividend, if
approved by the Shareholders at the AGM, will be paid on 6
September 2018 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 28 August 2018. Details of
the dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company cares for the community and is willing to take up
corporate social responsibilities to create a more inclusive society.
Not only encouraging the volunteer works and giving, the Company
also recognises our staff as an important asset and concern about
the employees related matters such as benefits and support.

Besides, the Company appreciates the importance of environmental
protection and spares no effort in promoting the protection of the
environment. The Company has been commended and given the
public recognition that demonstrates good corporate citizenship as
“Caring Company” from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

World Green Organisation (“WGO”) — Green Office
Awards Labelling Scheme

The Company has actively promoted the electronical operation and
sales activities recently. Awarded as WGQO'’s “Green Office” Label,
the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals’s “Better World
Company” Label, and the core supporting organisation to Junior
Chamber International (JCI) Hong Kong, the Company has
successfully fulfilled the 150 feasible green criteria from the WGO
which grouped into the following 9 categories: Energy savings, Water
savings, Waste reduction, Paper/Printing reduction, Green
Procurement, IT use and disposal, Transportation, Education and
awareness, and Green Innovation.
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Special project with university in Hong Kong

The Company has organised a competition with Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. The project is about
“Improving Patient Journey for Union Medical Healthcare”. Students
in the course have been invited to define “GP 2.0 Design Concepts”
focusing on clinic facility and functions that can bring patience
experience to the next level. We encourage students to make use of
creativity to our society.

Smoke Free Company

A supportive workplace can help smokers to kick the habit which
improves the health and efficiency of the employees. As to improving
our staff's sense of belonging to the Company and our team spirit,
equipping our staff with correct information of smoking hazards, and
assisting them in getting rid of nicotine addiction, the Company has
held an internal policy meeting and health talk for the staff, and
rewarded as a “Smoke-free” company.

Actively Involved in Volunteer Work

The Company is committed to fostering and cultivating relationship
with the community and is sensitive to the community’s culture and
needs. We encourage employees to participate in community
services. We invite employees’ families to join the community and
voluntary services together such as the “Lok Sin Tong Buddy
Volunteer Service”, and donation to the Po Leung Kuk to help those
in need in the community.
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Sharing about Marking Strategy by using Atrtificial
Intelligence (“Al”)

The Company held a free talk related to marketing strategy by using
Al on 2 March 2018, to share the techniques to participants for how
to make use of Google Analytics and apply Al on marketing strategy
in order to achieve a higher rate of return on investment. The
Company’s representative speakers were Performance Marketing’s
experts of the Company. The speakers will also share how to apply
Al techniques to manage the advertisement products in Google,
including shopping advertisement and remarketing.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
reserves during the Reporting Period are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands amounted to HK$180,715,202 (2017:
HK$150,628,024).
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to HK$4,777,050 (2017: HK$3,134,000).

INDEBTEDNESS

The Group’s indebtedness as at 31 March 2018 is set out in page
26 of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purposes of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 February 2016
by passing of a written resolution of the then sole shareholder of the
Company and the Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for 10
years from the Listing Date (both dates inclusive).
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TRBEBENARE BRI ARNRD TIRIEBERET 2
options, which were granted under the Share Option Scheme, during IR R AR
the Reporting Period:

Closing
price of
share
immediately Exercise
before the price of
Granted Exercised  Expired Cancelled  Lapsed  Forfeited Dateof  dateof  Exercise share
Name or Asat duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  Asat31  grantof grant  periodof  options
category of 1 April  Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting  Reporting  Reporting March share  HKS per share  HKS per
participant 2017 Period Period Period Period Period Period 2018 options shares  options shares
it RBERH
R R i R R R R ZB-N\E REFRR BREN
TE-tE BEHD  BEHY  BEHD  B5HY  BEHY BEEE SR BRE  WnE  BRERN  GFE
SEANERIER MA-B  mRE  AEGE RER REE RN AERR =t-A REBE  SREx GRS SREn
Directors
%
Lee Gabriel 7,350,000 - - - - - - 7350000  26/09/16 262 01/01/17- 303
s (Note 1) 3112126
(Bzt1) (Note 1)
(MfzE1)
- 735,000 - - - - - 735000 180917 255 01/01/27- 303
17/09/27
Yeung Chin Wan 80,000 - - - - - - 80,000  26/09/16 262 01/01/17- 303
RRY 3112/20
(Note 2)
(sk2)
Employees and consultants
EERER
In aggregate 460,000 - 67,500 - - - - 392500 26/09/16 262 0101/17- 303
At 3112/20
(Note 2)
(Mzk2)
- 1,000,000 - - - - - 1,000000  18/09/17 255 01/01/18- 303
3112021
(Note 3)
iR
- 860,000 5,000 - - - - 895000  18/09A17 255 01/01/18- 350
3112021
(Note 3)
(Htzk3)
- 300,000 - - - - - 300000  06M217 377 01/04/18- 4.00
04n2121
(Note 4)
(Htzk4)
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Notes:

1. The total of 7,350,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder
thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in ten equal
tranches from 3 January 2017 to 31 December 2026.

2. The total of 540,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal tranches
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2020.

3: Each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall
be exercisable in four equal tranches from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2021.

4. Each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall
be exercisable in three equal tranches from 1 April 2018 to 4 December
2027.

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive or reward for
the Grantees (as defined below) for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.

Eligible Persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-
time or part-time employees, potential employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, clients, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, has contributed or will contribute to the
development, growth or benefit of the Group (collectively, the “Eligible
Participants” or “Grantees”) and whom the Board may in its absolute
discretion select.

Maximum Number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the Listing Date, which is
98,000,000 Shares, being 9.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The limit may be
renewed at any time provided that the new limit must not exceed
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of the
Shareholders’ approval.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of our Company must not in aggregate exceed such
number of Shares as shall represent 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted under any schemes of our
Company or subsidiaries if such grant will result in this 30% limit
being exceeded.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

Subject to the requirements under the Listing Rules relating to the
grant of share options to the Directors, chief executive or substantial
Shareholders, unless approved by the Shareholders at general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing Rules, the maximum
entitlement of each Eligible Participant is that the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding
options granted and to be granted to such Grantee (including both
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme and other scheme(s) of the Group in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of grant.

Option Period

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme during a period notified or to
be notified by the Board.

Minimum Period for which an Option must be held
before it is Exercised

The period within which an option may be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
provided that such period is consistent with any other terms and
condition of the Share Option Scheme.
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Payment on Acceptance of the Option

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on or before the last day for
acceptance of the option granted under the Share Option Scheme
set out in the offer document from time to time.

Basis of Determining the Subscription Price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it must
be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the offer day; and
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the five Business Days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of a
Share.

The Remaining Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years from the
Listing Date and ending on the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date
(both dates inclusive), unless otherwise terminated, cancelled or
amended.

Share Award Scheme

The Company also adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 27 June 2016 with a summary of the Share
Award Scheme rules published in the announcement dated 29 June
2016. On 30 September 2016, the Company entered into a deed of
variation to the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme (the “Deed of
Variation”) to make certain changes to the said trust deed, to the
effect that as from 30 September 2016, all core connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company be excluded from
participating in the Share Award Scheme. Under the Share Award
Scheme, the Group’s employees, selected by the Board are entitled
to participate.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognize the
contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.
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The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of the
Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the Share
Award Scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award
Scheme. The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective from the
date of adoption for 10 years or such date of early termination as
determined by the Board, provided that such termination shall not
affect any subsisting right of any eligible persons selected for
participation in the Share Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares which may be awarded to a selected employee
under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s shares
awarded (“Awarded Shares”) under the Share Award Scheme during
the Reporting Period:
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Lee Gabiriel

Mr. Luk Kun Shing Ben

Mr. Yeung Chin Wan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Ching Nam

Dr. Yu Ka Fai Alexis (resigned on 14 September 2017)

Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin (appointed on 14 September 2017)
Mr. Look Andrew

In accordance with Article 83(3) and Article 84 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Tang Chi Fai, Mr. Ma Ching Nam, Mr. Lam Chi
Hang Josekin and Mr. Look Andrew will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors against any liabilities and costs arising from
the business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty in relation
thereto.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 73 to 79
of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there has been no change in
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. After review by the
Nomination Committee, the Company considered all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent as at the
date of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 March
2018 is set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS OR
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Company’s business was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or his connected entity had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period and
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business in
which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or a controlling
shareholder of the Company was a party, and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, save for the competing businesses as
disclosed below, none of the Directors had any interest in a business
other than the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, and required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang was interested in a
number of companies which are not included in the Group (the
“Relevant Company”).
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Name of the
Relevant Company Nature of business Board of Directors Size of business
HEARER EBME Exg EBRE
Healthy Concept (HK) Limited Supply of skincare and Mr. Tang Revenue in 2017: less than
(“Healthy Concept”) (note 1) beauty products/ HK$8.7 million
Operation of call centre Net profit in 2017: less than
(note 2) HK$4.2 million (note 3)
BREB)ERAR(ER]) HEXEEEREDTER/ e ZE—EFRA
(GERD) BT (FiiEE2) L8 T7TEEET
ZE—tFRMFE
PR42BEBT (HFE3)
Notes Mk
1. Healthy Concept is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong 1. BRR—RRZZEZERNFRAZTAABREESZE

with limited liability on 26 May 2006, and is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang.

2. Healthy Concept operates its business in Hong Kong. Its target customers
in respect of the supply of skincare and beauty products are primarily
aesthetic medical or traditional beauty service providers. Separately, it also
operates a call centre which targets individual customers. The personnel of
the call centre contact individual customers and refer them to the providers
of body screening services, beauty products and beauty services,
respectively, for referral income. However, Healthy Concept does not
provide any aesthetic medical or traditional beauty services, nor body
screening services.

3. The figures are determined by reference to the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017 of the respective Relevant Company.

DIEEMAR I BR AR MHBELE2ERER -

2. FEBBEEHEREY HABHEEENREAE
qu’]ETT%)E'Iij SEXTREREDTRGIRM
7 o O - EIRARE — R E R P R L -
W AY 0 A B B AR M B & P 3 R 1R 2 0 BT T B
TR ERERLETRBRES - UWEREN
WA - Rifn - BRY ERMHEABEERTRELRE
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The Group offers a broad range of services and products, including
medical services, quasi-medical services, health management,
traditional beauty services, skincare, healthcare and beauty products,
primarily of private-label brands, PRODERMA LAB, Suissebeaute
and re:HEALTH. The Group does not focus on mass market retailing
of products and substantially all of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products are sold to the clients of the Group’s services.

The Directors are of the view that business activities are clearly
delineated from that of the Relevant Company, since the Group does
not focus on the supply and distribution of medical consumables,
devices and equipment, or skincare, healthcare and beauty
products. Instead, the Group only focuses on (i) applying medical
consumables, devices and equipment during the course of provision
of service; and (i) selling skincare, healthcare and beauty products to
the clients of the Group’s services. In contrast, the Relevant
Company focuses on the supply and distribution of such goods to
aesthetic medical service providers and traditional beauty service
providers in Hong Kong. Furthermore, the Relevant Company does
not supply and distribute any skincare, healthcare and beauty
products of the Group’s private-label brands, PRODERMA LAB,
Suissebeaute and re:HEALTH.

Based on the above, the Directors are of the view that the
businesses conducted by the Relevant Company do not form part
of, and are not in line with the core business of the Group, and as
such do not compete and are unlikely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business.
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Deed of Non-competition

As disclosed in the Prospectus, pursuant to the non-competition
undertakings set out in the deed of non-competition dated 19
February 2016, each of Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding
Limited (“Union Medical Care”), our Controlling Shareholders, have
undertaken to the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them is not or will
not, and will procure each of their respective close associates, to be
interested, involved or engaged in or concerned with, directly or
indirectly, any business which is in any respect in competition with or
similar to or is likely to be in competition with the business of the
Group during the period commencing from the Listing Date and
ending on the occurrence of the earliest of (i) the day on which its
Shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange or other
recognised stock exchange; (i) the day on which Mr. Tang and/or
Union Medical Care cease to be controlling shareholder of the
Company; and (iii) the day on which Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical
Care beneficially own or are interested in all the issued ordinary
shares of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-competition and are of the view
that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with its undertakings
given under the deed of non-competition for the year ended 31
March 2018. As at 31 March 2018, no new business opportunity has
been notified by the Controlling Shareholders.

Independence from the Controlling Shareholders

The Board believes that the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independent of, and does not place undue reliance on Mr.
Tang and/or Union Medical Care or their respective close associates,
taking into consideration the factors of financial independence,
operational independence and management independence when the
facts and reasons as disclosed in the Prospectus applied to the
Group during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the
“SFO”)), which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or (c) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

Interests in Shares and underlying Shares or in an
associated corporation of the Company

EERFEITHASRKRMD - HER
PREZNEZERKXE

RZE-—N\F=ZA=+—0  EFRFETHA
EEMVA B EH AR AE (TEREEED
FETMEBHFRBAEKRO([BHREBEEN ) E
XVED) B9 « MR REEZPHEE @B
BERPEROIEXNVHETRFESHHEMEAR
RAIRBRAIzERIAE (BREBEZES KD
B0z B BIGE W B 1ESR BESR 2 R RO%
BIHIOBRERARRBEZFSRBEKAE
352{17%2,5%?%%%”6%?@&( ) ETBEITAES
ETHEAFR ST ESFRIZESITME RN A R
RETHER AR ¢

RARBAEEEB RO R EER S
e

Approximate

percentage of the

Number of total issued share

underlying Shares capital of the

Number of held under equity Company

Name of Director/Chief Executive =~ Capacity Shares interested derivatives (Note 1)

DBRASTE EARDBERTRA

EZ TETHAR BERERZ IEHEHE BEENEAL

#H 54 RAEE RIPEE (BfaE1)

Tang Chi Fai (Note 2) Beneficial Owner, interest of 726,833,230 (L) - 73.91%
BE (Mt 2) spouse and, interest in

a controlled corporation (Note 2)
EREAA  EBERN
IR SRS (T 2)
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Approximate
percentage of the
Number of total issued share
underlying Shares capital of the
Number of held under equity Company
Name of Director/Chief Executive ~ Capacity Shares interested derivatives (Note 1)
DRASTE  HADEEBRTRA
EE/TEMTHAR BERERZ IAREHR BEMNEIL
#E E87) ROEE RODEE GESY
Lee Gabriel Beneficial owner, interest of spouse 2,898,000 (L) 8,085,000 (L) 1.12%
55 and interested in a controlled (Note 3) (Note 4)
corporation (Note 4) (FizE3) (HizE4)
ERMEA  EBERRXEE
BEs (Mst4)
Luk Kun Shing Ben Beneficial owner 2,487,000 (L) - 0.25%
PR ExlAA
Yeung Chin Wan Beneﬁcial owner 180,000 (L) 80,000 (L) 0.02%
BEY EnBEAA (Note 5)
(B5E5)
Note: BiE
(L)  Denotes as long position. L  IEEFE -

Total number of issued Shares as at 31 March 2018 was 983,429,948.

Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care are the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company. Union Medical Care is entirely owned by Mr. Tang. Out of
726,833,230 Shares that Mr. Tang was interested in, (i) 1,653,000 Shares
were held by Ms. Yau Ming Li, the spouse of Mr. Tang, and (i) 721,231,230
Shares were held by Union Medical care, and Mr. Tang was therefore
deemed to be interested in such 1,653,000 Shares and 721,231,230
Shares under Part XV of the SFO.

Out of 2,898,000 Shares that Mr. Lee was interested in, (i) 80,000 Shares
were held by Ms. Fan Yui Sze, the spouse of Mr. Lee, and (ii) 350,000
Shares were held by Eastcon Investment Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Lee, and Mr. Lee was therefore deemed to be interested in such
80,000 Shares and 350,000 Shares under Part XV of the SFO.

8,085,000 share options include (i) 7,350,000 share options, each of which
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) Share, shall be
exercisable in ten equal tranches from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2026, and (ii) 735,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder
thereof to subscribe for one (1) Share, shall be exercisable from 1 January
2027 to 17 September 2027.

80,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe
for one (1) Share, shall be exercisable in four equal tranches from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2020.

RZZB-NF=ZA=+-HNCETROAEA
983,429,948 1% °

BB 4 4 Iz Union Medical Care &7 A &l H 3 ARARER ©
Union Medical Care BB A2 E R - EE L AR
A REE ) 726,833,280 X B% 15 & - () 1,653,000 % A
AR MEAANLZ S Kii 721,231,230
fi% Fq Union Medical care$ 8 » At - RIEZEH K& H
BHRBIZEXVE - B 5 £ R AR AE RS 1,653,000 %
}% 721,231,230 B A& 1D R A #Eam o

EZ 15 E R Y 2,898,000 A% A% 5 # -+ (i) 80,000
BRIBAFEENRBREBZIHE K (i)350,000
B% B 2%k & & & ¥ A A 2 &) Eastcon Investment
Limited 355 + Bt - RIEFEH REEHRGIZEXVE -
2 4 A W48 /4 7 48 78 80,000 A% % 350,000 A% A% 17
B

8,085,000 17 i B # B2 3E () 7,350, ooo1‘ﬁ%H5ﬂ7§

AR THBEARE —(1)BREOHEF - z—%m
E7tHHR-_E—+F—HF—HZE :%:ﬁ¢+_
B=+—B BT - )Sz(u)735ooo1\ﬂﬁﬁﬂé %
B FEBEARBE—(1)RBROOES  R=F
SEE=A— EI_Y_tinHthEIHﬂFEﬁmEO

80, ooof\ﬁﬁﬁﬁzéﬂa I FHFE ARE— (1) HD
HAER AN AREZ IR =T — tﬁ—ﬂ-El
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Interest in shares and underlying shares of

RA R BAEESEBE R R G R AEE RS/

associated corporation(s) of the Company =
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of  the total issued
shares underlying share capital
Name of Name of interested in shares held of the
Director/Chief associated the associated under equity associated
Executive corporation Capacity corporation derivatives corporation
DRASTETR  (AEBZELH
R ZERS HENRE BEITRAEHN
B TETBRABRS HEEE AR 5% EENROHE R EE BRBEIY
Tang Chi Fai Union Medical Care Beneficial owner 2L = 100%
(Note 1)
HEE Union Medical Care E#=HEE A 2L = 100%
(HEE1)
Note: B -

L denotes long position.

1. The 2 shares in which Mr. Tang was interested in were ordinary shares of
Union Medical Care.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, so far as is known
to any Directors or chief executives of the Company, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER’ S INTERESTS FERRMRKROREBRODOERR
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND RE
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, other than interests disclosed above in respect NR-_E-NE=A=+—H BARXRIEENLTF
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company, the following BABAER EXBBEAREZRI - LFATRAK
persons had or were deemed or taken to have interests or short N E D s AR R R (0 P R A IR R 3B 5 R B E &
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which EXVEBE2 N3N G ABATIRBE ZERIORE
would fall to be disclosed under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of e 8RR AR AR IR 75 5 & B & 1601 2 336 15 1R
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register kept by the Company FZEDZMAS AR R 5%k A B BEITIRA
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly, hEEEEEE RS -

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the

Company

RAEQ T RGO K AABERDNERS

Approximate
percentage of the
total issued share

capital of the

Number of Company
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares interested (Note 1)
R NEEC
2 BITRAH
BEEERN BHAES
BREE HE 514 RO E (PfFE1)
Union Medical Care (Note 2) Beneficial owner 721,231,230 (L) 73.34%
Union Medical Care (Ff#£2) ExEAA
Yau Ming Li (Note 3) Interest of spouse 726,833,230 (L) 73.91%
ERRAF (B EE3) foiBrEes
AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 50,000,000 (L) 5.08%
RufiEBARAE (MHE4) REHEE R
Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Interest in a controlled corporation 50,000,000 (L) 5.08%
Co., Ltd. (Note 4)
ER-EEEBERRMHDERAR REHEE R
(PFaE4)
Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Beneficial owner 50,000,000 (L) 5.08%

Company Limited (“Sanxing”)

(Note 4)
ZEBR(BB)BERAR

(T=2D(Kzx4)

BEHEAA
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Approximate
percentage of the
total issued share

capital of the

Number of Company
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares interested (Note 1)
ER YN
2RITRAN
‘mEREN BRAED
BREE A 4 R EHE (PfFEE)
Zheng Jianjiang (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 50,000,000 (L) 5.08%
BRERT (MI3E4) RS
He Yiju (Note 5) Interest of spouse 50,000,000 (L) 5.08%
=% (f5E5) BeiB s
Notes: MisE

L Denotes as long position.
S) Denotes as short position.

1. Total number of issued Shares as at 31 March 2018 was 983,429,948.

2. Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care are the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company. Union Medical Care is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang.

3. Ms. Yau is the spouse of Mr. Tang, and Ms. Yau was therefore deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company in which Mr. Tang was
interested under Part XV of the SFO.

4. According to the information in the disclosure of interests form of Mr. Zheng
Jianjiang, AUX Holdings Co., Ltd., Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd
and Sanxing, Mr. Zheng Jianjiang held 70% of the issued share capital of
AUX Holdings Co., Ltd., AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. and Mr. Zheng Jianjiang
held 37.54% and 19.61% respectively of the issued share capital of Ningbo
Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd, which in turn owned the entire issued
share capital of Sanxing. Mr. Zheng Jianjiang, AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. and
Ningbo Sangxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. were therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company which are owned by Sanxing under
Part XV of the SFO.

B Ms. He Yiju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang, and was therefore
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company in which Mr. Zheng
Jianjiang was interested under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Directors have
not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save and except the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme, at no time during the Reporting Period was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed approximately 1,265
(2017: 808) permanent employees in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC.

The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented directors and
employees by offering them competitive remuneration packages,
their salaries and bonuses were determined by reference to their
duties, work experience, performance and prevailing market
practices. The Group also participates in the Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF”) scheme in Hong Kong, and provides employees with
medical insurance coverage. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years. The MPF
contributions charged to the income statement represent the
contributions payable to the funds by the Group. A Share Option
Scheme is in place to reward individual employees for their
outstanding performance and contribution to the success of the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group undertaken
in the normal course of business are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, save for the those as disclosed
below, none of which is required to be disclosed under Rule 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of the Company’s
securities as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of
revenue or sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. The
aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any direct/indirect interest in these major
suppliers or customers during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The text of the corporate governance report is set out on pages 28
to 42 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is in the process of preparing its environmental, social
and governance report for the year ended 31 March 2018 and will
publish it on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website in due course.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 have
been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, who will retire
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG
as the auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
YEERERS

INVESTOR CALENDAR

30 November 2017
—E—+tF+—-—A=+H
31 January 2018

—N\F—A=+—H
27 June 2018
—E-NFRAZ++H
14 August 2018 (4:30 p.m.)

—NFENATUB (FF4830%)

20 August 2018

—N\FENAZ+H
24 10 28 August 2018 (Both days inclusive)

—NEFENAZTHBE-+N\R(BEEMRBEEAN)

28 August 2018

—N\ENAZTNR

6 September 2018
E—\FENHARE

INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

We are highly supportive to investor relations activities. In order to
facilitate a two-way communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community, through platforms
including domestic and international non-deal roadshows, investor
meetings, annual general meeting, company meetings,
teleconferences and emails, we made frequent contact with
Shareholders, analysts, fund managers and potential investors.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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2017/18 interim results announcement
—t /N FHREELE
Payment of interim dividend and special dividend
either in form of scrip shares or cash
BRABRK B HE 27 AP HIRR S KRR S
2017/18 annual results announcement
—t /- NFEEEELS
Record Date and Time (for determination of
shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at annual general meeting)

ik HEIRERE (ARES EREE

BRRBFAGINEG LREZBRESH)
Annual General Meeting
RERBERE

Closure of Register of Members
(for determination of shareholders
who qualify for the final dividend and
special dividend)
TR mhBrFECTFEUBRTEAER
WECR BARR B R A RIAR B 2 IRER & 17
Record Date (for determination of
shareholders who qualify for
the final dividend and special dividend)
FoER B HA (DAREE & BAR WHCRHIIR B
RIS Z IRR & 17)
Payment of final dividend and special dividend
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During the Reporting Period, our management attended over 140 R|EHE - AREEER R/ 1408 —H—
one-on-one and group meetings and actively participated in investor

INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
LEERMERS

conferences and non-deal roadshows in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, RES - FYl -

Shanghai, Guangzhou and Beijing meeting with over 250 investors.
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Major investor conferences that we participated in 2017/18 are set EPR—E—+ N\ F2INHNTFEREES;

out below: Epdlp N

Year Month Event

F4 B =4

2017 June China International Capital Corporation Investment Strategy Forum 2017
—+F A RERRI07TF THFRERBE

2017 June Industrial Securities Greater China Market Interim Strategy Forum 2017
—+F <A FHEFEH 2017 FRFPEMISF AR

2018 January 2018 11th Asia Investment Conference
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SHARE INFORMATION

Company Name
YNSIE ]
Listing

i)

Stock Code

AR 1 1R 55%

Listing Date

A

Board lot

BFEEEN

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2018
RZE—NF=ZA=+T—HHEETHRE

INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Union Medical Healthcare Limited — Corporate Communications

and Investor Relations Department
Tel: (852) 3975 4798
Email: ir@umhgp.com

SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or
address, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or dividend
cheques, registrations and requests for annual or interim report
copies, please contact the Company’s branch share registrar and

transfer office:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk

Website: www.computershare.com
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Union Medical Healthcare Limited
BAEREESEEEGRAR
The Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBEZSHFBRARER
2138
2138
11 March 2016
—E-RF=A+—H
1,000 shares
1,000 A A% 7
983,429,948 shares
983,429,948 I%
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TANG Chi Fai (B % ¥8), aged 39, is the Chairman of the Board, the
CEO, our executive Director and chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is a controlling Shareholder of the Company and he
founded our Group on 23 November 2005. He is responsible for the
overall management and strategic planning and development of our
Group. Mr. Tang is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Tang has more than 16 years of experience in management and
the aesthetic medical and medical healthcare industries. Mr. Tang
has diversified experiences ranging from the initial establishment and
business development of medical aesthetic clinics and beauty
centres, the development of marketing strategies and maintenance
of sales channels.

From September 1998 to May 2001, Mr. Tang attended the
University of Hong Kong where he was enrolled in the bachelor of
medicine and the bachelor of surgery programmes before deciding
to pursue a different career path. From September 2001 to February
2005, Mr. Tang enrolled in the bachelor of business administration in
accounting and finance at the University of Hong Kong and worked
on a part-time basis before deciding to switch to full-time
employment. Mr. Tang obtained Certificate IV in Training and
Assessment from Northern Melbourne Institute of Technical and
Further Education in September 2009 and the executive master of
business administration degree from the University of Hull in January
2014. Mr. Tang is an Elizabeth Wordsworth Fellow at St. Hugh’s
College, University of Oxford.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAEBGE

LEE Gabriel (ZE %), aged 39, is the chief operating officer and our
executive Director. He is responsible for the management of day-to-
day operations for our Group.

Mr. Lee has over 16 years of experience in business management.
Prior to joining our Group in April 2014, from July 2001 to April 2014,
Mr. Lee worked at Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (BIZ=fiZ= B R A
B]) (“Cathay Pacific”), an international airline listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 293). During his employment
with Cathay Pacific, Mr. Lee was seconded to Air China Cargo
Company Limited (Bl B[R EiEMiZ= B PR A7) in Beijing, a state-
owned airline enterprise in the PRC, from March 2011 to July 2011
where he served as the assistant president of its commercial (sales
and marketing) division. From July 2007 to July 2009, he was
seconded to Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Ltd. in Shanghai, the PRC,
where he served as a manager of marketing & sales in Eastern
China.

Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
of business administration degree in accounting and finance in July
2001. In March 2007, Mr. Lee attended the SWIRE Management
Programme organised by INSEAD Graduate Business School in
Singapore. Mr. Lee also attended the SWIRE Accounting and
Control Programme and SWIRE Advanced Management Programme
organised by INSEAD Graduate Business School in Fontainebleau,
France from October to November 2010 and from May to June
2013, respectively.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LUK Kun Shing Ben (£ # &), aged 39, is the chief information
officer and our executive Director. He is responsible for overseeing
information technology infrastructure of our Group.

Mr. Luk has more than 6 years of experience in the aesthetic medical
industry, and over 14 years of experience in the information
technology industry. Prior to joining our Group in March 2010, from
January 2011 to February 2014, Mr. Luk served as a software
engineer at Google (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of Google Inc.,
specialising in internet-related services and products. From
December 2003 to December 2010, he was a software engineer at
Google Inc., in Mountain View, California, the United States and
involved in the implementation of Google Maps. Mr. Luk graduated
from Cornell University with a bachelor of science degree in
computer science in August 2000 and Stanford University with a
master of science degree in computer science in June 2003.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEANBBE

YEUNG Chin Wan (1 /& BJ), aged 38, is the chief financial officer
and our executive Director. He is responsible for the financial
reporting and management of our Group.

Mr. Yeung has over 16 years of experience in financial reporting and
investment management and services. Prior to joining our Group in
July 2014, from April 2010 to June 2014, Mr. Yeung served as a
director of We & V Accounting Services and Consultancy Limited (4
Be st MEM AR A F), aboutique accounting and consultancy
company in Hong Kong, where he was responsible for providing
advisory services on tax and corporate matters. From November
2004 to March 2010, he held a number of positions in AXA Wealth
Management (HK) Limited (# &% M =2 E 2 (F B ) BR A7) a
company engaged in wealth management and provision of
consulting services in Hong Kong and a subsidiary of AXA Group,
which is a multinational insurance and asset management group, to
provide solutions for clients’ portfolios. From September 2001 to
October 2004, Mr. Yeung worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd.
(& & B ok 8 B R A 7)) in Hong Kong, where he began as an
associate and later became a senior associate in the financial
services group, responsible for audit engagement in the investment
banking and asset management industries.

In addition, since 2014, Mr. Yeung has been the chief executive
officer of World Trade Capital Group Limited (E Z 4 @& AEEAH
R 2~ 7)), an insurance brokerage firm providing the Group with
quotations of employees’ insurance and other types of insurance
from independent insurance companies. He is primarily responsible
for liaising with insurance companies for quotations and monitoring
compliance of the brokerage firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung
graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor of
arts in accountancy in November 2001. He has been a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since August
2003 and a Chartered Wealth Manager of the International Academy
of Financial Management since January 2010.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Ching Nam (5;548), aged 65, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Ma is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Ma has been practising law for over 35 years. He was admitted as a
solicitor in England and Wales, Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. He
currently serves as senior partner of Hastings & Co, Solicitors &
Notaries, a law firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Ma is also a Notary Public, China
Appointed Attesting Officer and Civil Celebrant. He was the president of
the Hong Kong Society of Notaries from 2007 to 2013.

Mr. Ma currently serves as directors of Tai Sang Bank Limited,
Heptacontinental group of companies, Ma Kam Ming Company
Limited, Ma Kam Ming Charitable Foundation and Ma’s Enterprises
Company Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Time Watch Investments Limited which was listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2033). Mr. Ma has also
been a director and Vice Chairman of Po Leung Kuk since 2009 and
2014 respectively.

Mr. Ma is also a member of the Hospital Governing Committee of
Grantham Hospital in Hong Kong, a member of the Standing
Committee on Language Education and Research (SCOLAR) in
Hong Kong, and a council member of Hong Kong St. John
Ambulance. He has been appointed as a member of Political and
Consultative Conference in Hunan Province, PRC. He was also the
past Chairman of St. Paul’s Co-educational College Alumni
Association. Mr. Ma graduated from the University of Hull with a
bachelor of science degree in economics with honours in 1977.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEANBBE

LAM Chi Hang Josekin (#A11T), aged 38, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 14 September 2017. Mr.
Lam is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, as well as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Lam has extensive knowledge and over 17 years of experience
in business consultancy and financial industry. Prior to setting up and
running his own business consultancy and real estate brokerage
firms in 2009 and 2014 respectively, Mr. Lam was a consultant at
Bain & Co, Inc , a management consulting company. Mr. Lam was
the acting chief executive officer of Sanook.com, a subsidiary of
Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent”), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 700). Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lam last held the position as a director of strategy
department of Tencent. Mr. Lam graduated from Tufts University
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Quantitative Economics and
International Relations in May 2001 and the University of Chicago
Booth School of Business with a Master of Business Administration
in June 2007.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LOOK Andrew (F£3 ), aged 54, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Look is also a
member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, as well as the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Mr. Look holds a bachelor of commerce degree from the University
of Toronto and has over 25 years’ experience in the equity
investment analysis of Hong Kong and China stock markets. From
2000 to 2008, Mr. Look served in Union Bank of Switzerland (“UBS”)
as the head of Hong Kong research, strategy and product. He was
rated as the best Hong Kong strategist and best analyst by the
Asiamoney magazine, a leading monthly financial and capital markets
publication for corporate and finance readers and investors, in 2001,
2002, 20083, 2005, 2006 and 2007. Mr. Look is currently the Chief
Investment Officer of the asset management business of Tou Rong
Chang Fu Group Limited (Stock code: 850), a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Look is also currently an
independent non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1446), Citic Resources Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1205), Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 822) and Cowell e Holdings Inc. (Stock code: 1415), all
of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was an
independent non-executive director of TCL Communication
Technology Holdings Limited (a company delisted on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on 30 September 2016) from September 2010 to
September 2016 and an independent non-executive director of Man
Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1466, a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from September 2014 to
December 2016.

EZNEREEABBE

R 645 R-TE—RF_ATNBEZEAR
BB IIFATES - EREN/RBZER
FHEZEeMKE  XAERZEENER -

EEEHBNERZHEAREFHEBE LB - B
BEERFEREMSEEREDITRBB 25 FL
B -AH_ZTTTFE_TTNF BEAERERL
BT ((EWLTRTD HERBME TR EREMDD
FE -BEAETR_TET—  —_TFT- - _FZ
= ZEER - ZEEAN T LFESF(E
MEEBIHEF(—ARUSERMEEERREER
HeE 2 ERMRRAATSAT) B [5ERE
RS R [SEDWEN ] BRkEE - FEA LR AERE
B EMARKEBEEEEER AR (RO K
5% 850) CEEBHEMERIREMRE - XA
BENABEBHIM T ARBEEEEARA
AI(IRDRSR : 1446) ~ PEERIERBR AR (IR
BREE  1205) ~ BEBEBER AR A A (KB R
5R822) RmEETIERAERAE (MR :
1415) B IEHRITES - BFR T —ZFNA
EE-RNFNABEEETCLBMBIIZRSE
RARBERZZE—ARENAZTAREBHR
FTBR ) MBI IERTES  RRZZE—HWHFAN
AEZE—XF+-_AHMEAEEB L™
PRRAEKEERAR AT (BRHARSE : 1466) K9
B IEITES ©

BEREBREBRASEERAT 79
FERE 2017/18



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AZBEN RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Union Medical Healthcare Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Union
Medical Healthcare Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 90 to 209, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
the Cayman lIslands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition: Provision of services

B Az BIRD R

BRRENEE

MREAEASRERMNERAE - RREAN
MG AR BREANBARREENEH - BLF
HRARMETBBSAMBREAMDARRR
ETREN - RATSHELETREHEFNE
B

WATER - RAERE

Refer to notes 5 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

ELHEA M EBEN 5 R 25 X RH 3.1 4
BEBE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RMNBH A EEZEE

Revenue mainly comprises income from the provision of medical,
quasi-medical and traditional beauty services.
WAFZEERHER  EBRENEGETRBOWLA -

Revenue is recognised when the related treatments are provided to
customers.

WAREBEFERER T EFPRER -

Most of the Group’s services are sold on a prepaid basis. Payments
received for prepaid packages are initially recorded as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
time of receipt. The service period for a prepaid package is
generally one year.

EEBENARBORBHEBEFNELELE - BERNTBERNERRER
WERIF I ZRGEE B BARARARERERA - BNEZHNRE
BH—Mr—F-

Prepaid packages are non-refundable and customers may not
utilise all of their contracted rights within the service period. Such
unutilised treatments are referred to as “breakage”. An expected
amount of breakage is estimated by management based on
historical experience and is recognised as revenue in proportion to
the pattern of treatments provided to customers.
BNERTAREREFRBREPARENEREDES L%
A o HERAARGE B HBREARIE [ RERERN ] - TREIARME R #E
MeFaERERBEBELRMAT RIEE P AERAREEEZNER
KB BIRERRBIA °

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the contractual service
period is fully recognised in profit or loss.

REHREHROEMFRRECKATIER AT BRHER

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from the provision of services during the
year included the following:
BAWEARF A EFARBFBARER - 815
WATEIR -

° assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over revenue recognition;

o  FHEHWAMBHEZEANIZEHARS
i &8 FRIRRL

° inspecting, on a sample basis, sales
contracts and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the recognition of
revenue with reference to the terms set out
in the sales contracts and the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

s Z2EHESHNMENKERKIRITETLEL
WRE  MEEREESOLNEEIRRE
HIMAERH G R

° inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers during the year and
comparing such receipts with relevant details
in sales contracts entered into during the
year;

s MEEBRFAREZPHRSKT - L#
ZEWREF RN ZNHEES NN BBFT
TBYELLE

o comparing, on a sample basis, customers’
signed acceptance of treatments provided
with the customers’ utilisation records;

e MRLEBREPHMIBEHEEENEFTEME
B AR
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The Key Audit Matter
BEREESBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHNESNAEEZEE

We identified recognition of revenue from the provision of services
as a key audit matter because (1) revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition of revenue
by management to meet specific targets; and (2) the estimation of
the utilisation pattern of treatments is inherently subjective and
requires significant judgement and estimation which increase the
risk of error or potential management bias.

BPISRBBAERE RAREFEE  TENKRARZ E&5E
MRERREREs — B —BEEERREEEERERAERL
REWEISEEN  RQBEREARANMEFAE LAEXEH M
NEFEEETERAE LA SEMTHERIEEERRERIHN
B
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recalculating, on a sample basis, the revenue
recognised for treatments provided during
the year with reference to the terms as set
out in the sales contracts;
2EHEANMEANGT  BEEEFA
PR AR MO RERR UL A

analysing the Group’s historical data for
utilisation of prepaid packages and the
current year’s revenue recognised for
treatments provided to determine an
expectation of the breakage amount for the
current year; comparing our expectation with
the actual figures recorded by the Group
and investigating unusual items or trends
and assessing whether or not there was an
indication of management bias;
REANERERBERRAFERIREER
WERBAST BESENBERE MU
BEARFEREANENSHENTERER
BEMNERERLE BEREDHENER
FFERE  YASRFEE BERT
HESAEEEBRANTR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether
residual deferred revenue had been
recognised in profit or loss at the end of the
contractual service period; and

BT AR BRIEERARE R E KRG H
RRBERAER &

inspecting underlying documentation for
journal entries relating to revenue and
deferred revenue which were considered to
meet other specified risk-based criteria.
ERWARBREWATEENEEMEE
[ B AR 1 ) A\ R 40 SR O AR RA ST o
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Accounting for business acquisitions

B Az BIRD R

EBUBRSENSRE

Refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

A2 EPBHRMESIARMES 1 E
BUR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN ESTNAEEZEE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group completed
several business acquisitions for an aggregate consideration of
HK$93 million.

HEZZT—)\F=ZA=1+—HLEFEARN  BESETKBMNREIS
BEETHETERWREERE -

Goodwill arising from these acquisitions amounted to HK$59
million, which represented the excess of the consideration paid
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable net
assets, including the intangible assets of trademark amounting to
HK$15 million, of the acquired businesses.
AzEWEEEERNPBEOREET DEENRER
H BEEEMECBERTRSIEE(BREBENEVEE 1SR
AT FENATERNES

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in
these transactions were assessed by the directors based on
independent valuations prepared by a firm of external valuers which
required the exercise of significant judgement and estimation,
particularly in relation to the forecast of future performance of the
entities acquired.
ZERXSHPEBEAIRNEERABEN AT EBESFREINEMGLE
ETAR BB (hEEITATE - EF BETERAE RMAEE - L
HEFWMECBERBNARRKRERAE -

As at 31 March 2018, management has also performed impairment
assessments of goodwill by preparing a discounted cash flow
forecast for each cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwiill
has been allocated and comparing the net present value of the
forecast cash flows with the carrying values of the related assets.
RZE-—NE=ZA=+—0 EEENCHETHERESG &
FErEBRESAESEEENReELSU([REEELBNT])
WERRIRSRERA - RELBAReRENFRELERMBRAE
ERREE -

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for
business acquisitions included the following:
BN BARFETHERRBFENESTRE
B BEMATEE:

° inspecting the sale and purchase
agreements and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the acquisitions
(including segregation of portions of the
amounts transferred by the Group related to
transactions other than the business
acquisitions from the consideration payable)
with reference to the terms set out in the
sale and purchase agreements and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

s BREEWE WREEIHEAEMK
FEBITETERNRE AL EIRE K
BEENGARE(EEEASEEENE
EBWBEBLINNRSBEENE D S FEERE
NHREDH)

° obtaining and inspecting the valuation
assessments prepared by the external
valuers engaged by the directors and on
which the directors’ assessment of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired
was based and assessing whether or not
there was indication of management bias;

s MY EBRHEFMEINBELEMERD
BEMEL EFERZHEEN G HE
EREERBGENATE UFHREAE
ERERLTR

° assessing the external valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the assets being
valued and considering their objectivity and
independence;

o  FHEHINEMEERAER LB R
BENAD WEREEFHMERBE L
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The Key Audit Matter
BEREESBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHNESNAEEZEE

We identified the accounting for business acquisitions as a key
audit matter because of the significant impact the acquisitions have
on the consolidated financial statements and because assessing
the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired can be inherently
subjective and requires significant judgement and estimation which
increase the risk of error or potential management bias.

BB KEEEN S RET A HERETEREE - DAK
BERUGRSMBRANEAXERAREEEERABATE
WFRHEAE AT BIERFTEETERHE LT S8 T8
RIBEEEEREAORER o
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with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, discussing with the external
valuers, without the presence of
management, the valuation methodologies
adopted in assessing the fair values of the
assets and liabilities acquired, including
intangible assets, and challenging the
assumptions and critical judgements which
impacted their valuation by comparing these
assumptions and critical judgements with
market data, our past experience of similar
transactions and the Group’s business plan
supporting the acquisitions;
EHRMOABEEEROHE T - EIMNE
mEMNR(EERETESNERT)E
EREE(BREEVEE) RABQAFET
MAEMRANGER L - BREKTER
B 8RR S B A ) B BR 77 35 B8 - AP
FREUR S TEMNBRELERE E5E2
RWIE SRR EBTEETHLL - BfRZ
e E Y EV N

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessing the valuation
methodologies adopted by the external
valuers with reference to industry standards
and the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
EHRMOABEEEROHE T - 2E1T
FRERBITGALEANNRT - fTEIMNE
HERERETTE



The Key Audit Matter
BREESBE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B Az BIRD R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHNESTNATEEZEE

evaluating management’s assessment of the
estimated useful life of trademark with
reference to future operating plans and our
knowledge of the related industry;
BERRKETERBERMEEAITE
TR FHEBERMEMEMGATAS
PREVET A

assessing the methodology applied by
management in its goodwill impairment
assessments with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing standards and
challenging the key assumptions adopted in
the assessments of the recoverable amounts
of each CGU, including the discount rate
applied, by comparing with external
benchmarks; and
2ERITRENERTEERBETEHE
AT AR AR TE - WiE B I
HEEERIAGSEARSEEEML T KE
CRNRKANEEZERR  BEMKANR
BE: R

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
acquisitions and management’s goodwill
impairment assessments with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

2ERTEITEMNRTE - FHGEEHK
BREANBEAWESTERERENEERE
BV IR EE
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

B Az BIRD R

ESRREUBRREARENER

EEPRARRBERGMASHEMN(EEY
B E R REBCR RGN BB E B R
BEEMPBOERAMBRE - jt‘aéTHE{J%#A%P
BYBHRENBRE N FERRRFFRERMEH
MEXBERFAFAFHAREFES -

EREFREVBHRERE  EFRAFE E5E
FERENRES  YHEBRBR TREESFEL
LEMNER URERAFEKEHSTER
RIFEEAER BEEEBRIFLEE 25
BHOERNERTR

B ZEEWMHEZTRETEE ESENMBR

HBREMNEE -

REMRETREMBRRAENEM

BAWER  RUGAMBHRIABERBES I FE
RRAGF R M BN ERERFUARG SR
& WHABSREMERORBERSE - T
EREBEARRE o BRI TAWRE S
REEMAE - HABTHRARENAT » HE
MEMALTAERARERZEE -

AERBRSKFNRE  ETRERIRRB(E
BEIERDETHNES  EX-FAERRAL
TRTERS AL IR - $HARIRA T LA R BRFF S #B AR 5l
£ REEBHEMNEBIERERAITETE
AR B TSR (6 R A KRR 5 R P VR H B0 A
RTE - BB RARERER PRI AR ARIEE K -
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

88

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

ERBCEBETEANETEFNBES - 3
ERTHEEHAE RETERREEE - RN

i

B FRE (A R ARGF SRR AR T B BUR & B
BRRGFEERHERRANAR - Rtk
MITEEFAREELRAR - A RERR
RARMEENRITERE  EARMAERY
Hift - HRBGFAIBES R BER - 0 - BR
B ERERE - SRR AERESZ -
B R BE 3 IR R IRGE M E A B A FH R R
AWERERAEEREABRMEMNE
REERRA R -

THRERTABOARIES - URFTEE
MESERF BEMNYIFY BEEERI
ZHINBRMEERER

AEEEMRASTEENREEREL
SRt MR EN SR -

HESRRABECE ST ERMIRE EE
HiEw - RIBPABBRMERGE  BER
BHREREERIENAENEATEEN -
femrAlseEHYE BEEENKELEREN
EEEARE - MREMAB/FEEKRT
HEH  MAVEEZEERSPIREME
REIBEAYBHRRTOEBBE - &
EERMEETR  MIRMAEREERER -
RIS wm s ENZBE RS B ARG
REERE - AT - RREFAELIFTRARE
By BERETRERERLE -

AEEREMBBRRNERIIRTA - &8
MAR BREE UARGAPBEHRERZ
BPERRIHFER -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law of regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Sau Ling.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S A B L=
ANy = ,E\J/Iﬁ_

For the year ended 31 March 2018 =2 —Z— \F=ZA=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA#7T3R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EFE—+F
Notes HK$ HK$
BsE BT BIT
REVENUE N ) 1,307,639,358 964,927,119
Other net income and gains Hib s IR ASEZE 6 43,427,750 27,484,976
Cost of inventories and consumables GTERFEMAA (163,402,642)  (130,478,323)
Registered practitioner expenses MR ARS (110,382,274) (77,483,595)
Employee benefit expenses B BN X (341,276,031)  (277,865,036)
Marketing and advertising expenses THEHEENREERY (126,932,303) (68,460,929)
Rental and related expenses e MEERX (130,929,094) (88,818,003)
Credit card expenses EAFAX (42,662,867) (29,723,676)
Depreciation e (34,559,879) (27,465,740)
Charitable donation BERE (4,777,050) (3,134,000)
Finance costs BT R AR 7 (563,988) (338,449)
Other expenses HinFIsx (70,499,245)  (44,004,253)
Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures PMEGEDERF,(HE) 5,071,909 (31,909)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR%E AR R 8 330,153,644 244,608,182
Income tax Frigit 11 (52,017,353) (41,111,965)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 278,136,291 203,496,217
Attributable to: AT E IR -
Equity shareholders of the Company RRAERBRR 279,223,799 200,702,539
Non-controlling interests FEfE R T (1,087,508) 2,793,678
278,136,291 203,496,217
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREAER 12
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY RARESRREN
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted EARNEE 28.5 21.0

The notes on pages 90 to 209 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year

are set out in note 28(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME
e BRm AR RER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 Ek:l:—? —N\E=ZRA=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& TR )

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 278,136,291 203,496,217
Other comprehensive income FAEMEEREE
for the year (after tax and (BRHIE R
reclassification adjustments) EFDERARE)
ltem that may be reclassified EgnsHoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BEMIER
Exchange differences on translation of & EHIE N B A A
financial statements of subsidiaries BTG RARAIE X =58
outside Hong Kong, net of HK$nil tax B ETHIE (847,809) 27,716
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME SRZ2HWK=EZE
FOR THE YEAR 277,288,482 203,523,933
Attributable to: AT & IAFE(L -
Equity shareholders of the Company PN ) 278,375,990 200,730,255
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 2 (1,087,508) 2,793,678
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME SFR2HEKSEEE
FOR THE YEAR 277,288,482 203,523,933
The notes on pages 90 to 209 form part of these financial B0 EF 200 BRI A It E M S R A9 — 3B
statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR

At 31 March 2018 R=ZE—\F=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA#7T3R)

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —EFE—+F
Notes HK$ HK$
BsE &I BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEKEE 13 100,637,862 70,178,513
Investment properties WEMZE 13 190,400,000 =
Goodwill Py 14 95,223,189 36,657,111
Intangible assets EmEE 15 86,861,454 35,906,450
Interest in joint ventures REEDENER 16 44,694,000 25,122,091
Rental and other deposits e kHMiZe 19 45,204,459 23,589,387
Prepayments SELNE S 19 8,175,787 7,884,968
Deferred tax assets EETIAE E 26(b) 2,311,349 1,461,626
Total non-current assets B EELE 573,508,100 200,800,146
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =& 17 31,444,495 19,116,280
Trade receivables B 5 WA 18 68,670,393 52,142,746
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIE ~ 1Re REAMEIFIR

receivables 19 86,269,710 60,729,829
Deferred cost JRIER A 5 33,904,930 5,361,965
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABZNEREE

profit or loss 20 495,829,752 499,745,689
Pledged time deposits BIRAE TR 21 2,000,740 2,000,000
Time deposits with original maturity over R %23 B #8:8 3 8 A 89 F B1F 5%

3 months 21 395,871,516 158,712,370
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 21 295,481,085 200,644,165
Total current assets MENEEZE 1,409,472,621 998,453,044
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAS
Trade payables B S ENKIE 22 9,438,467 6,468,211
Other payables and accruals HEmEMNZOERERER 23 96,786,957 54,927,417
Bank borrowings RITIEN 24 461,315,507 -
Obligations under finance leases BhETH & A 27 1,709,865 342,714
Deferred revenue EIEfE R 25 452,391,483 327,894,405
Current tax payable FE S BN ERFR IR 26(a) 17,905,194 11,428,555
Total current liabilities MENE FERE 1,039,547,473 401,061,302
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETFHE 369,925,148 597,391,742
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERABAE

LIABILITIES 943,433,248 798,191,888

92 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
iRa IR

At 31 March 2018 R—ZE—NF=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAE TR )

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ZE—tF
Notes HK$ HK$
BsE BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 26(b) 4,274,629 3,107,841
Bank borrowings RITRER 24 97,538,009 =
Obligations under finance leases BhETH & AE 27 416,627 581,724
Provision for reinstatement costs FEERAEE 23 3,690,000 4,650,000
Total non-current liabilities SERBBEER 105,919,265 8,339,565
NET ASSETS EEFHE 837,513,983 789,852,323
CAPITAL AND RESERVES MRS &4
Share capital A& A 28(c) 9,834 9,808
Reserves = 820,838,871 778,450,348
Total equity attributable to equity RATERRREEESARE
shareholders of the Company 820,848,705 778,460,156
Non-controlling interests TR ER 16,665,278 11,392,167
TOTAL EQUITY ERERE 837,513,983 789,852,323

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 RZBE-NEFEXNAZ+ERAEEESHE RIEE

June 2018 F) g
Lee Gabriel Yeung Chin Wan
TER BREY
Director Director
2 EF

The notes on pages 90 to 209 form part of these financial F 0 R F 200 B WM s B I BT FS R R By — =0
statements. S o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/ \

== N\ 7
1{ / ~ lnl:l/n @J i%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #%E —

—NF=A=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LX/%E?//T )

T—HIEFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AORERAEL
Share heldfor  Employee
share award ~ share-based
Share scheme compensation Merger  Exchange Non-
Share  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  (note 28(d)(i) (note 28(d)(v)) (note 28(d)(vi)) (note 28(c)i)) (note 28(d)i) profits Total interests equity
AROKE SRARAN
HEEE  EEMe
ROEE  HEZRH fif  RORE  ENGE
A (HEros()) (Ksrosid)iv) (Hoskos(c)vi)) (RYEE 28(c) i) (R3E 28(e)i) DR &t FERER BEAE
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
s B A B Eiv B BT BT BT B B
Balance at 1 April 2016 RZF-NERA-AbES 9800 703,435,028 - - 19,608 11633 39432228 742908297 (93,140) 742,815,157
Changes i equiy for 2017; “I-tENEREY:
Profit for the year EREH S - - o o - 200702539 200702539 2793678 203496217
Other comprehensive income Ef2EkE - - - - - 27,716 - 2,116 - 2,116
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EAZ EAWELE - - - - - A76 200702539 200730255 2798678 203,523,933
Issuance of shares AR 280) 8 2,250,361 - - - - - 2,250,369 - 2,250,369
Acquistion of subsiciaries WEHBAR - - - - - - - - 8691620 869162
Purchase of shares for share award scheme - 51517 283 2 B iy 9 - - (92,162,744) - - - - (92,162,744) - (92,162,744)
Recogniton of equity-setted share-based ~ BEDMEREE NRI BER
compensation: share award and fie - R RBRERE
share opfion 29,30 - - - 14,859,281 - - - 14,859,281 - 14,859,281
Vesting ofshares under share award scheme R0 2B EIEBR pi - - fdedg2l  (12,083,180) - - 618559 - - -
Dividends declared EERRE 280) - - - - - - (90,125,302  (90,125,302) - (90,125,302)
At 31 March 2017 and RoE-+EZA=+-BA
1 Aprl 2017 “5-t¥mA-R 9808 705,685,389 (80,698,128 2,776,101 19,608 30,349 150626024 778460156 11,302,167 789,852,323
Changes in equty for 2018; “E-\ENEREY:
Proft for the year Egh| o = - - - - 219223799 219,223,799 (1,087,508) 278,136,291
Other comprehensive income A 2mkE - - - - - (sAT809) - (s4T809) - (647809
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £AZ EWHLE - - - - - (647,800) 279,223,799 278375990  (1,087,508) 277,288,462
Issuance of shares B1kh 280) % 9425238 - - - - - 0405264 - 9425264
Acquistion of subsidiaries WEHBAT - - - - - - - - 918,161 918,161
Disposal of partl inferests in subsiceries w1 B AR AR - - - = = = = - GMd58 5440458
Recogniton of equity-settied share-ased ~ EZMEREEN R ARR
compensation: share award and B : R RERERE
share option 29,80 - - - 3123916 - - - 3123916 - 318916
Vesting of shares under share award scheme 1R (7 REsrEIS B R 9 - - 416,069 416,069) - - - - - -
Dividends declared EERRE 28) - - - - - - (249,136,621) (249,136,621) - (249,136,621)
At 31 March 2018 R=F-\F=f=1-A 9834 715110627  (80,262,054) 6,083,948 19,608 (808,460) 180,715,202 820,848,705 16,665,278 837,513,983
The notes on pages 90 to 209 form part of these financial 90 E 5 209 B MM s A I I TS R A — 2B
statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
[ ] X =

meERemER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— N\F=A=+—HILtFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& TR )

Increase in prepayments, deposits and

BNHIR - ke REMER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$ HK$
BaE &I TT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRR
Profit before tax BR A58 A 5 7 330,153,644 244,608,182
Adjustments for: T
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEF B 7 532,795 =
Finance charges on obligations under BMEAMEREERY
finance leases 7 31,193 1,165
Imputed interest expense on JERNERE B e MIHEFIE
non-current rental deposits, net S F 58 6,7 = 8,483
Bank interest income RITHFLEWA 6 (3,590,543) (2,820,796)
Interest income from unlisted debt FELEMEBIRERGFREN
investments and certificate of FE A
deposits 6 (5,007,194) (1,701,330)
Dividend income from unlisted ELEMIREESH
investment funds A& B U A 20 (4,222,796) -
Write back on provision for penalty B o T & R 6 - (11,379,562)
Depreciation e 8 34,559,879 27,465,740
Impairment of goodwill EERE 8 - 282,940
Amortisation of intangible assets S 8 3,064,918 1,708,016
Share of (profits)/losses of joint ventures D& &% R F)) EE (5,071,909) 31,909
Equity-settled share-based payment iR EE ARG BER 2
expense IS 8 3,723,916 14,859,281
Gain on disposal of partial interests HENB AR S oSS
in subsidiaries (4,645,803) -
Loss on disposals and write-off of HE RMSEE - BE REE
property, plant and equipment wEE 8 3,929,950 1,404,863
Unrealised fair value gains on financial BAFEFABENEMEE
assets at fair value through profit ARSI AN FERNFE
or loss, net 6 (1,373,671) (183,225)
Realised gains on disposals of HERATEFAEEN SR
financial assets at fair BEMDERKWAFE
value through profit or loss, net 6 - (1,095,488)
Fair value gain on investment WEMEANTFEYE
properties 6 (10,235,597) -
Foreign exchange differences SNEZEER 11,410,942 450,193
353,259,724 273,640,371
Increase in inventories FEHEM (9,875,181) (826,047)
Increase in trade receivables 5 el FIE S 0 (2,884,548) (18,469,235)

other receivables TRIFIE AN (31,061,577) (12,220,789)
Increase in deferred cost R RE K AE N (28,542,965) (1,826,034)
Increase in trade payables H 5 e IR N 1,034,959 1,138,839
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HibEAZBEREAER

and accruals =0 Opid) 2,221,904 (37,265,669)
Increase in deferred revenue PEFEUAE D 86,361,806 9,012,855
Cash generated from operations KEEFNR® 370,514,122 213,184,291
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B EBR S (44,566,531) (32,651,028)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong B EBBINRIAR (2,175,664) (552,753)
Net cash generated from TSR G R

operating activities 323,771,927 179,980,510
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
,m Eﬁﬁ//lb%%%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #E —Z— \EFE=ZA=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA&7T5R)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —+t5F
Notes HK$ HK$
P 5T BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Bank interest received EHERTTHE 3,590,543 2,820,796
Purchases of financial assets designated & & 185F AR A FEFT ABZH
as financial assets at fair value TREE
through profit or loss (506,899,753)  (798,943,678)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE - (19,164,000)
Proceeds from disposal of partial interests & [ff & A T*E D i A
in subsidiaries TS 37 10,088,261 =
Proceeds from disposals of financial & fﬁﬁﬁi’&?@‘ﬁ)\ﬁ Y
assets/liabilities at fair value through SREE BEMERE
profit or loss 501,119,360 403,993,594
Interest income from unlisted debt I FTERKE MEREFE
investments and certificate of deposits U A 5,007,194 1,701,330
Dividend income from unlisted FELMIEEESH
investment funds g BULA 4,222,796 -
Acquisition of businesses, net U B FE R FFR 31 (78,822,315) (28,493,626)
Acquisition of joint venture WEEAE % - (25,154,000)
Loan to a joint venture ERTEEDLE (14,500,000) =
Increase in time deposits with original RENEREBE=EADN
maturity over 3 months and T HATF SRR3R e BRTF K
pledged time deposits 0 (237,159,886) 341,287,630
Purchases of property, plant and EBEYWE  BERRE
equipment (51,651,783) (31,260,174)
Purchases of investment properties BEIREMHE (180,164,403) -
Net cash used in investing activities REEHAAE S F5E (545,169,986)  (153,212,128)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RhESER
Interest paid on bank borrowings BRITERFLE 21(b) (532,795) -
Interest element of finance lease EﬁmﬁéfﬁfiﬁﬁiZf IpSR=i5a
rentals paid 21(b) (31,193) (1,169)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings %ﬁfﬁfﬂﬁ%’\ﬁﬁ@?fi 21(b) 560,841,888 =
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITIERK 21(b) (3,471,510) -
Dividend paid AT IR B 28(b) (239,933,207) (90,125,302)
Capital element of finance lease ENRMERERES ZERIT S
rentals paid 21(b) (2,685,332) (13,258)
Issuance of shares BEITRRD 221,850 2,250,369
Payment for purchase of shares for RN BB EEERD 2
share award scheme (N = (92,162,744)
Net cash generated from/(used in) from B & EENFTS,(FTA)
financing activities REREFHE 314,409,701 (180,052,100)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERBESESEMEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (O-20:=:2: ] 93,011,642 (153,283,718)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 APRIL MAE—HIRERIREEEY 200,644,165 354,717,582
Effect of changes in foreign N FE R S BN ) o
exchange rates 1,825,278 (789,699)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZA=t-HWEER
AT 31 MARCH HEZEEY 21 295,481,085 200,644,165

The notes on pages 90 to 209 form part of these financial
statements. e
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2.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office of
the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Suites
7-9, L21 Langham Place Office Tower, 8 Argyle Street, Mong
Kok, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the provision of medical,
quasi-medical, health management and traditional beauty
services, the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty products,
and investment holding.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

2.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R M R

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE

98

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgement, made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainly are discussed in
note 3.2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these impact on the accounting policies of the
Group. However, additional disclosure has been included in
note 21(b) to satisfy the new disclosure requirements
introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash
flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. Except for the early adoption of HKFRS 15, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, in the year ended 31 March
2017, the Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

3.1

10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business acquisition, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non- controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non- controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

3.1 EXEHBEBE @

o) PNCIDSE 230 3¢ )

B REYIFRA AR ERKEEE
EMBLARNOERZ  mAKREYRARE
HZERENFA AR LI A EHARE
EEERZSRamMAENALRAETE
ENERBHOREIMER - REBEEHKK
BiE NEBEREZEUQFESIFER
RENHEARMA] TRAIEERFEND
RALAGHE RIS o

FEEEREANR AR REEERER
RAEMBIRARNERER PO RIFIR
RARBEEANFERERELRABRR
REMEZEKDKAZS AN IFEBRER
EARNFESRRZE D RFEEFEH
EEN 2 E WA -

HASERKBRRNEREEH TS EH
‘AREHE AERRERS AR MR
RERaERER IR ERE SR
HE - URRHEEEESEE TSN
ERERERRE -

EAKERIYE —RMNEB AR ERE -
BiHEZMB AR ZMAEAAR M
FRELMREBENRBRTHER - (ERERK
EREBRINREZAMBE AR 2 EREA
FERER - Mt BIRE S VAR — ]
THEENQFME-

RARBMBARREA - RBRE 2K
BRRARRERE R -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

Interest in joint ventures is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
joint ventures, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net interest in the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

10

B FS R M R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position,
interest in joint ventures is stated at cost less impairment
losses, unless classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Business acquisitions and goodwill

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred to the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the sellers of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business acquisitions and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date.

If the business acquisition is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured
in accordance with the appropriate HKFRSs. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

3.1

10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business acquisitions and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business acquisition is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash- generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and
receivables, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

3.1

10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in
fair value presented as other net income and gains in profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other net
income and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

3.1

10

FERRMIRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings, and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial liabilities held for trading. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

FERRMIRE

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and
equity and debt investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

FERRMIRE

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 25%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 25%
Operation equipment 20%
Office equipment 20%
Computers 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are
still in the course of construction or development at the end of
the reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably
measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note 3.1
section “Revenue recognition”.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease, and the
same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are
applied to other investment properties leased under finance
leases. Lease payments are accounted for as described in
note 3.1 section “Leased assets”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R M R

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business acquisition is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out below.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Customer lists 1010 33%
Licence 10 to 33%
Club membership Indefinite

Trademark 10 to 33%

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. For an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually, whether or not there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are recognised as
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy (see note 3.1 section head
“Impairment of financial assets”). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R M R

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets (Continued)
(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

3.1

12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Macau are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment
Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the revision, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

12

B FS R M R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment (Continued)
Share award scheme

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Award Scheme”), under which
the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (shares) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
shares granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

—  excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of shares that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Under the Share Award Scheme, employees (excluding core
connected persons as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Group are entitled to the shares for which are held in trust by
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) for
the benefit of the employees. The Trustee may be instructed to
buy shares from the market using the funds held by the
Trustee. Details of outstanding shares can be referred to note
28.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business acquisition and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

12

B FS R M R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
acquisition and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Dividends

The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of
HK$5.0 cents per Share and a special dividend of HK$9.5
cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2018. The
proposed final dividend and special dividend, if approved by
the Shareholders at the AGM, will be paid on 6 September
2018 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 28 August 2018.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ Most of the services are sold on a prepaid basis.
Payments received for prepaid packages are recorded
as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the time of receipt. The service period
of a prepaid package is generally one-year.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
when the services have been rendered to customers.

Deferred revenue is non-refundable and customers may
not utilise all of their contracted rights within the service
period. Such unutilised service treatments are referred to
as breakage. An expected breakage amount in deferred
revenue is determined by historical experience and is
recognised as revenue in proportion to the pattern of
service treatments utilised by the customers.

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the service
period is fully recognised in profit or loss.

Services which are not sold on a prepaid basis is
recognised in full when the services have been rendered
to customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

12

B FS R M R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Non-prepaid services

(b)  revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers;

() commission income and marketing income, when the
relevant services are rendered;

(d) rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

() dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of an operation outside
Hong Kong and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of that operation and translated
at the closing rate.

Deferred costs

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer,
which represent sales commissions and bonuses paid or
payable to the staff, are recognised as deferred costs in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the deferred
revenue to which they relate is recognised as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

12

B FS R M R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

@iy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

3.1

3.2

13

BRI T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosure, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

Notes 29 and 30 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of share award and
share options granted. Other key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Business acquisitions

For the Business acquisitions undertaken by the Group, the
Group allocates the costs of the acquisition to the assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their estimated
fair value on the date of acquisition. This process is commonly
referred to as the purchase price allocation. As part of the
purchase price allocation, the Group is required to determine
the fair value of any identifiable intangible assets acquired. The
determination of the fair value of the intangible assets acquired
involves certain judgement and estimates. These judgements
can include, but are not limited to, the cash flows that the
intangible assets is expected to generate in the future.

The fair values of the identifiable intangible assets were
determined by the Group with inputs from the independent
appraisers using mainly the discount cash flow method of the
income approach. Future cash flows are predominantly based
on the historical pricing and expense levels, taking into
consideration the relevant market size and growth factors, and
involves making a number of assumptions including growth
rates and royalty rates. The resulting cash flows are then
discounted at a rate reflecting specific risks related to the
relevant operation.

A change in the amount allocated to identifiable intangible
assets would have an offsetting effect on the amount of
goodwill recognised from the acquisition and would change
the amount of amortisation expense recognised related to
those identifiable intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

13

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of assets

The Group performs annual impairment test on goodwill and
intangible assets, and also performs impairment assessment
on the carrying amounts of other assets when indication of
impairment is identified to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Management assesses the differences
between the carrying amount and recoverable amount and
makes provision for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in calculating the recoverable amount
would increase or decrease the provision for impairment loss
and affect the Group’s financial position.

Provision for impairment of trade debtors and other receivables
is assessed and made based on the management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgement is exercised by management
when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer. Any increase or decrease
in such provision would affect the Group’s profit or loss in
future years.

Revenue

Revenue recognition on provision of services is dependent on
the estimation of the utilisation pattern of treatments. Based on
the Group’s historical experience, the Group makes estimates
of an expected amount of breakage. Actual utilisation may be
higher or lower than those estimated at the end of each
reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future year.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
depreciated and amortised on a reducing balance method or
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives. The Group
reviews annually the useful life of these assets and their residual
values, if any. The depreciation and amortisation expenses for
future periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group is organised into
business unit based on their services and products and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@  the provision of medical, quasi-medical, traditional beauty
services and the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products; and

(o)  the provision of health management services.
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
management monitors the results attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interest in joint ventures,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and deferred
tax assets. Segment liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. Segment revenue and
expenses include the Group’s share of revenue and expenses
arising from the activities of the Group’s joint venture. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales, assistance provided
by one segment to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
interest income, realised gains/(losses) on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, net, equity-settled
share-based payments are excluded from such measurement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7= MY 5T
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RBEFILER @)
(Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEIEE  BENEE#E)
The provision of medical
heauty, quasi-medical,
traditional beauty and
the sales of skincare,
healthcare and The provision of health
heauty products management services Elimination Total
RUBSZR ERE.
BRERR
HESE RERZBER RERRERRE Hy it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
E-0\f ZFtF Z§-0\F ZFf ZENE ZE-F BN\ ZE+E
HKS HKS HKS HkS HKS HkS HKS HKS
BT AT B A BT B BT ey
Revenue: WA
Sales to extemal customers AAIERHE 1201995960 913616536 105,643,308 51,310,583 - - 1307639388 964,927,119
Inter-segment sales e 20966227 19303867 14766361 1384458  (35,732588)  (20,88,329) - -
Segment revenue AHUA 1,222062,187 932920403  120409,759 52,695,041  (35,732,588) (20,688,325 1,307,639,358 964,927,119
Segment result AHEE 308,317,278 233,130,878 6,883,963 296,385 - - 315201241 233427263
Bak inerest income EGrIEL e 3590543 2,820,796
Interest income fom unlisted deot 3£ FHEBREREAE
investments and certficate of deposits %180 5007,194 1,701,330
Unrealised far value gains on RATEI RN ERERN
financial assets atfairvalue though—~ REBRATENEFE
profit or loss, net 1,373,671 183,225
Realsed gains on disposal of HERDNTESABRN
financial asses at fairvalue thiough £ REEZBERNETE
proft or loss, net - 10%488
Eauity-setllec share-based payments  IAEREE KA BEREHZ (3,723,016 (14,859,281)
Others 2h 8,704911 20,039,361
Proftbefore tax IBATER 330,153,644 244,608,182
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA R = M 5T
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIBER @)
(Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEEE - BEEREEH)
The provision of medical
heauty, quasi-medical,
traditional beauty and
the sales of skincare,
healthcare and The provision of health
heauty products management services Elimination Total
RHBEZE EER
BRZER
HEER RERZBER RURRERRE Hy it
2018 17 2018 017 2018 017 2018 017
E-\f ZEtE Z§-NE ZFF ZENE ZE-tF ZE-N\E ZEE
HKS HkS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT AT B A BT ey AT B

Reportable segment assets TREIDEE 1,954,953,696 1,130360,993 28,027,025 68,892,197 - - 1,962,980,721 1,199,253,190
(Inclucing interest in joint ventures) (BERAEREER) 44604000 25,122,001 - - - - 44694000 25,122,001
Aditions to non-current segment ERFERRHTNEE

assets during the year 312,239,224 111,550,879 468730 2,700,514 - - 312707954 114,256,398

Reportable segment liabilities Bl 1,044,881,528 379,037,847 100,985,210 30,363,020 - - 1,145466,738 409,400,867
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

13

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of () the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and interest in joint
ventures (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on (i) the
physical location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment, (i) the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets and goodwill, and (iii)
the location of operations, in the case of interest in joint ventures.

4.

REFIER (@)

DEMEER  BEEREE@

TREJNEEATZRENMEMENER
() NSRBI 2K B SR P B U e (i) S 5= 1 9
REWME HWxE - BEM&RE - BT E
E BEREaLECENER(HEIFR
BEE]  cBEPHMIBMUEENRMR
BEIARXNERNUE - HEFRBDEE
B EERNEENERGE (WX
MERREMS) () EE D ERMENELE
B (REBEVEENEBEMNS) (i) &2
E(BHELEEENERME) °

Information about geographical areas FREtENER
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REINEBEFHBA BEFRBDEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
=F-N\F —F—tF =F-N\F —FtF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BIT
Hong Kong BE 1,203,554,848 908,753,309 474,918,305 149,970,056
Macau T 39,846,571 37,090,514 1,736,980 2,216,685
The PRC s 64,237,939 19,083,296 30,674,405 12,832,705
1,307,639,358 964,927,119 507,329,690 165,019,446
Information about major customers FRFERFMNER

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single customer of
the Group has individually accounted for over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue during each of the reporting periods
presented, no information about major customers in
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

REVENUE 5. KA

Revenue represents the value of medical, quasi-medical, health WAIEIEMHEE EBE EREREENE
management and traditional beauty services rendered and the HERRGHEEMEELERNERSF
net invoiced value of good sold, after allowances for returns B(BEHNBEERERESIN) - WA K
and trade discounts. An analysis of revenue and deferred EE ARRTESITIOT -

balance is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Revenue WA
Medical services BB RS 675,516,271 501,829,649
Quasi-medical services ERE R 108,024,073 96,416,968
Health management services EREER 105,643,398 51,310,583
Traditional beauty services BHREDRE 238,376,743 175,362,952
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products  #E - (RIE R EDRE R 74,550,372 61,899,875
Revenue recognised from unutilised BAREAEFNEZERRA
prepaid packages 105,528,501 78,107,092
1,307,639,358 964,927,119
Since all the revenue comprises income from the provision of HRFBERABREREREER  £BE -
medical, quasi-medical, health management, traditional beauty REEENEHGEARBIARBEEES -
services and sales of skincare, healthcare and beauty products REREANELHRZ  RE—SHHE
transferred to customers at a point in time, no revenue derived EEP - WITE K B AR U A BE RS W
from services transferred over time. i o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

REVENUE (continued)
Deferred balances
The following table provides information about deferred

liabilities from contract with customers and related deferred
cost.

L'ONC )
TEHVEREFETA AMNIEE R &R
BEER A AR o

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

—E—N\F —EF—tF

=A=+t—H =A=t+—H

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Deferred revenue (note 25) EEWA (FF5E25) (452,391,483)  (327,894,405)
Deferred cost RIERKAR 33,904,930 5,361,965

The deferred cost primarily related to the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer, which represent sales
commissions and bonus paid or payable to the staff and
agencies calculated, are recognised as deferred costs in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the deferred
revenue to which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Deferred costs

Management expects that incremental cost paid to the staff
and agencies as a result of obtaining prepaid packages are
recoverable. The Group has therefore capitalised them as
deferred cost in the amount of HK$33,904,930 at 31 March
2018 (2017: HK$5,361,965).

Capitalised incremental cost is amortised when the related
revenue is recognised. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the amount of amortisation was HK$217,016,027 (2017:
HK$180,341,504) and there was no impairment loss in relation
to the costs capitalised.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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ZHENBEFAOMBERABHNET
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3 FIE R S

EREEHRESENEEMTTFEIR
RIEBAZEER AT FIRE - B ANEBR
—E-NFZAZ+—HBHEAXZELHE
433,904,930/ L( ZZF—+F : 5,361,965
BIT) BYRIER A -
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W BE_Z-N\FE=A=1+—HILFEXN
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OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS 6.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AR I ot

H W R WA R

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank interest income HRITH B AR 3,590,543 2,820,796
Interest income from unlisted debt ELMEBRE R FREN
investments and certificate of deposits FE WS 5,007,194 1,701,330
Write back on provision for penalty B RS e BHE - 11,379,562
Unrealised fair value gains on financial BRAFEGABER
assets at fair value through CREECRER
profit or loss, net N EWEFEE 1,373,671 183,225
Realised gains on disposals of HER AT ET ABEN
financial assets at fair value CRIEECBER
through profit or loss, net et - 1,095,488
Imputed interest income on non-current SERNEA SR e A E F Bl
rental deposits - 328,801
Fair value gain on investment properties KEMENNTFEWZS 10,235,597 -
Rental income from investment properties & & ¥ZEME S WA 770,417 -
Others HAh 22,450,328 9,975,774
43,427,750 27,484,976

FINANCE COSTS

7. MK

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—HLEFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Interest on bank borrowings RITERAFIE 532,795 -

Finance charges on obligations under MERERE RERY

finance lease 31,193 1,165
Imputed interest expense on non-current  FEENEAFE S 4 MG EF SR X

rental deposits - 337,284

563,988 338,449

BEREBREBRASEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R M R

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

8.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Bt A E R

AL R TR R T MR, (G A) K

THREEREE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
&I BIT
Staff costs (including directors’ BTIRA(RIEESHH) : *
emoluments):*
Salaries, wages, allowances, bonuses, e L& 2B B4
commission and benefits in kind MekEYH 382,451,562 287,674,052
Equity-settled share-based EmEE RN BER 2
payment expenses N 3,723,916 14,859,281
Pension scheme contributions RIS FHEIK
(defined contribution scheme) (RAEHBRETED 15,040,566 10,261,430
401,216,044 312,794,763
Minimum lease payments under KEHE T AT RIEN
operating leases in respect of: HEEENK :
Land and buildings T REF 109,166,221 71,630,060
Equipment B 333,350 269,837
Auditors’ remuneration 2 Gl kA 2,567,740 2,873,395
Depreciation e 34,559,879 27,465,740
Impairment of goodwill HERE = 282,940
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 3,064,918 1,708,016
Loss on disposals and write-off of HENMEYE BEK
property, plant and equipment HEREE 3,929,950 1,404,863
Foreign exchange differences, net SNGE Z FHFRE 398,450 632,870
Rental income from investment BEMERS WA EE
properties less direct outgoings of 3 $5120,566 87T
HK$120,566 (2017: HK$nil) —ZE—+tF:THET) (770,417) -

Included in staff costs are employee benefit expenses of *
HK$341,276,031 (2017: HK$277,865,036) and registered

practitioner expenses of HK$59,940,013 (2017: HK$34,929,727)

paid/payable to certain registered medical practitioners who are also

employees of the Group.

BIRABIERBBA Y 341,276,031 BT
(=T —+%5 : 277,865,036 87T) REN,
RHThAAEBEEENE TEMELEAK
59,940,013 7T (= Z — 4 : 34,929,727 %
JO) R B AR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

9. EEHM

RIBEE B R BHEDISE 383(1) ik R~ & (5
EEZNEER)ROE2HOBRENESRH

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BZEIS T -
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
2= 3211
ESHWE REWAEZ MERAL BATTEMER st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Year ended 31 March 2018  BZ-E-/\f
ZA=tT-BLEFE
Executive director HITEE
Tang Chi Fai oy - 1,218,000 - 18,150 1,236,150
Lee Gabriel FER - 1,484,810 1,523,000 18,150 3,025,960
Yeung Chin Wan BER - 790,905 - 18,150 809,055
Luk Kun Shing Ben BEHR - 214,655 - 10,833 225,488
- 3,675,370 1,523,000 65,283 5,263,653
Independent-non-executive BUHHTEE
director
Ma Ching Nam 5i5tg 240,000 - - - 240,000
Yu Ka Fai Alexis SRE 54,762 - - - 54,762
Look Andrew BER 220,000 - - - 220,000
Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT 65,714 - - - 65,714
580,476 - - - 580,476
BEE ] AT
g oo 141



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14

9. EEFM @)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Share Share
fees inkind bonuses  contrioutions Sub-total options awards Total
e B
EShe  REWHE  BERL RGEAR Nt BlhE  RARE &t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
(note)
(Hizt)
Year ended 31 March 2017 HE=F-+%&
ZA=t-HLEE
Executive drector HiTEE
Tang Chi Fai HiE - 1218000 - 18,000 1,236,000 - - 1236000
Lee Gabril 325 - 2579500 = 18000 2597500  2437,140 5434880 10,469,520
Yeung Chin Wan BEY - 1,287,750 - 18,000 1,305,750 32,126 460800 1,798,675
Luk Kun Shing Ben R - 241,000 - 12,000 263,000 - 4704000 4,957,000
- 536250 = 66,000 5392260 2469265 10599680 18,461,195
Independent-non-executive BV HETEE
director
Ma Ching Nam SiEk 266,067 - - - 266,667 - - 266,667
Yu Ka Fai Alexis 2ER 133,334 - - - 133,334 - - 133,334
Look Andrew i3 244 444 - - - 244,444 - - 244 444
644,445 - - - 644,445 - - 644,445
Note: PE -

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
directors under the company’s share option scheme. The value of these
share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note 3.1 and, in
accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts
accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments are forfeited
prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 30.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

10. BRSHEMA =

(2017: two) of the individuals are directors for the year ended 25

31 March 2018, the directors’ emoluments are disclosed in
note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the five
(2017: three) individuals for the year ended 31 March 2018, are

HE_ZT—N\F=ZA=+—HLEFE &
ALTHITRBE(ZE—+F W
FIANTAES  EFHHNNMTORE -
BHE-_Z—N\F=ZA=+—HIFE H
HAEA(ZCE—LF: =F) ATHFINE

as follows: EARIEINNT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in ¥ &~ JEBE R EMEYRZF
kind 12,136,000 6,427,823
Performance related bonuses BRI RS 18,862,516 9,728,474
Equity-settled share-based payments LARE R A5 E DA AD R B R 2 AT K - 123,674
Pension scheme contributions (defined RIREFTEIME R (R EHKRETED
contribution schemes) 83,100 108,000
31,081,616 16,387,971

The emoluments of the three (2017: five) individuals with the
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2018 are

within the following bands:

HB DRI RIATEE

2018
—E-N\f

BE T )\F=A=t—HILFE %
MEeSHAB(ZT—tF: =8) ALH

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
Over HK$4,500,001

2,000,001 /& 7T & 2,500,000 78 7T
2,500,001 7T & 3,000,000 78 7T
3,000,001 78 7T % 3,500,000 7 7T
3,500,001 78 7T & 4,000,000 % 7T
4,000,000 % 7T & 4,500,000 % 7T
4,500,001 BTTLA &

BEREBREBRASEERAT
FERE 2017/18 1 43



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B K5 = M 5
11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 1. GERBRANFTER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
() Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) MEEERRAMTIIERE
represents:

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current — Hong Kong BEl — &
Provision for the year FEREAE 51,871,677 38,076,163
(Over)/under-provision in respect of EFE (BaiE),/
prior years BES R (3,026,879) 1,336,399
48,844,798 39,412,562
Current — Outside Hong Kong BNER — FAEIFIN
Provision for the year FREME 5,129,431 2,390,983
Deferred tax IEIEFTE (1,956,876) (691,580)
Tax charge for the year FRMRELH 52,017,353 41,111,965
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman BEFASHEREBRELESMHEA
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not FER  AREBERSHENEBE
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the B BBEBMNERFTISH -
British Virgin Islands.
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of FREBNEB IR T ERTE N
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits N16.5% (—ZFE—+F : 16.5%) BT
for the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong KETIREAE - BEIE N R B FE R
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing St F BB T IR AR S B4 P T B AR
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. RAIRITIHESTE -

1 4 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at the applicable tax rates:

B H AR I ot

1. FEBEERANFES @

OB A BB R X B R
FZ B HERFIT

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit before tax b F5 BT Al 330,153,644 244,608,179
Tax on profit before taxation, calculated B AT K 2 B 18 - 1248
at the rates applicable to profits in WMigalAitEE A 2
the tax jurisdictions concerned MEMEFTHE 57,569,439 41,446,831
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior LA [& (FBEEREME ),/
years BErR (3,026,879) 1,336,399
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEERFIMAZ FHIBEZE (4,248,827) (2,746,135)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses OB EY 2 HIETE 1,302,078 732,112
Tax losses not recognised RIER R IARE 25,910 1,157,053
Utilisation of unused tax losses not B RABTFERARERD
recognised in prior years RENAFHIEER - (1,317,197)
Statutory deduction SEEFUR (380,000) (80,000)
Others HAth 775,632 582,902
Tax charge for the year FERNHRIEL L 52,017,353 41,111,965
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12.
TO ORDINARY EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic earning per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per Share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$279,223,799 (2017: HK$200,702,539)
and the weighted average of 981,261,572 ordinary Shares
(2017: 964,770,157 ordinary Shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary Shares:

%QE%EEEE&%EE%H&E
|

BREXNER

BREREF T ERA R F) L EESRER
JE (5 5 934 279,223,799 T ( —F —+
F 1 200,702,539 7T) R F N E 1T hAE
FHERMKEE 981,261,572 (—F—+
F 064,770,157 LB FHE W ¢

B E IR

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZHA=+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF

Issued/deemed issued ordinary Shares RERFEIINE 3T,/

at the beginning of the financial year WIEDBITE @R 980,827,000 980,000,000
Effect of ordinary Shares issued EETEERNTE = 788,482
Effect of purchase of Shares held for TR R ETEIE E R DR

share award scheme - (16,018,325)
Effect of share options exercised TEERENTE 25,541 -
Effect of shares issued under scrip BRI AR BT 81T,

dividend scheme o 409,031 -
Weighted average number of ordinary RZA=Z+—HHNEBER

Shares at 31 March DORE L8 981,261,572 964,770,157
Diluted earnings per Share BREBEER

The diluted earnings per Share is the same as basic earnings
per Share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary Shares in
existence during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

1 4 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. REVMEURYE - BERRE

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount: () BREEHER:
Leasehold Furniture Operation Office Investment
improvements  and fixtures equipment equipment Computers ~ Motor vehicles Sub-total properties Total
AENEEE BER%E 2Bk BARE HEH & gt REng @it
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT B B E BT B & E BT
Cost: A
At1 Apri 2016 RZE-~ERA-A 63,145,302 4,306,579 52,334,076 2,142,498 5,121,823 566,305 127,616,583 - 127,616,583
Addiions AE 9,296,019 1,042,361 18,891,024 441,700 779,136 1,747,630 32,197,870 - 32,197,870
Business acopisitions £HbE 5,122,093 1,638,767 1,025,599 37,364 - - 7,823,823 - 7,623,823
Disposals LE (901,958) (135,857) (1,519,515) - - - (2,557,3%0) - 2,557,330)
Exchange adustment EREE (198,265) 85,656) - - - - (283,921) - (283,921)
At 31 March 2017 R-E-+F=A=1-A 76,463,191 6,766,194 70,731,184 2,621,562 5,900,959 2,313,935 164,797,025 - 164,797,025
At Aprl 2017 RZE-tERA-H 76,463,191 6,766,194 70,731,184 2,621,562 5,900,959 2,313,935 164,797,025 - 164,797,025
Additions HE 39,996,876 5,567,053 2,646,387 2,028,022 211,911 3,716,474 54167623  180,164403 234,332,026
Business acopisttions £HLE 3645974 2,206,503 6,821,858 155,280 197,692 1,575,636 14,602,043 - 14,602,043
Disposals LE (3,592,853) (593,630) (659,076) (4,798) - (686,200) (5,536,557) - (5,536,957)
Exchange adjustment Erigg 329,358 157,557 - - - - 486,915 - 486915
Falr value adjustment ATERR - - - - - - - 10,235,597 10,235,597
A3 Nerch 2018 N-F-NFZAH-R 16B256  WAMST TSI 4N0066 6O GUOHM5  ZBSMMO  10AMMD  41BOTSM
Accumulated depreciation ~ Efi7E
At 1 April 2016 RZF-7"ERA-A 31,514,170 1,904,553 31,461,442 1,416,219 2,136,352 28315 68,461,051 - 68,461,051
Charge for the year EREFA 15,411,957 1,142,024 9,539,773 288,423 927,430 156,133 27,465,740 - 27,465,740
Witten back on disposes IEEBER (609,729) (63,309 (79,43 = = - (i15267) - (1152460
Exchange adustment EREE (140,209 (15,603) - - - - (155,812) - (155812
At 31 March 2017 R-E-+F=A=1-H 46,176,189 2,967,669 40,521,782 1,704,642 3,063,782 184,448 94,618,512 - 94,618,512
At1 Aprl 2017 R=E-+EmA-A 46,176,189 2,967,669 40,521,782 1,704,642 3,063,762 184,448 94,618,512 - 94,618,512
Charge for the year FREFA 18,657,521 249,117 10,834,290 644,104 956,092 974,755 34,559,879 - 34,559,879
Witten back on disposals RHERRE 929,835) - (483,947) - = (192,829) (1,606,607) = (1,606,607)
Bxchange adjustment B A% 260,230 48,013 - - - - 308,303 - 308,303
AL31 March 2018 “2-)\§2h=1-8 BIAM05  SEBE0 SIS QMG 4008 IR 178N - 1T
Net book value: EESE:
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=f=1-A 52,678,441 8,595,718 26,668,228 2,451,320 2,290,688 5,953,467 100,637,862 190,400,000 291,087,862
A31 March 2017 R-ET-t52AZ1-A VAR W5 NAMR G0 28T 21948 TSN - T
ERABIEREEERAT 1 47
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R M R

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14

(Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND 13. REVEURYE  BERRE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (#&)
(Continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) REVIRNDFEE @
properties (Continued)

() Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ) 2DFEERGE

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2018 categorised into
R-ZE-NF=A=1+-H
TEAUTERN AL EE

Fair value at

31 March
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

iy

—E2-N\F

=HA

=+-A
WARE  E-BR  EER 2R
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT

Recurring fair value measurement G /N

Investment properties: FEREWE . 190,400,000 - - 190,400,000

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

There were no investment properties held for own
use as at 31 March 2018. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their
staff fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued. The Group’s finance
manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at annual reporting date.

BT /N\F=HA=+—H
LFEE F-RRE KM
WEER TEEALBHE
=R AEEZBERBRRYF
BEERzEHELEEBZO®RE DR
AR AHEEE

R_ZE-NF=ZA=+—8H"
MERIEARNRENE - /A
EHBIAEMTEENESR
RARET - HFETRER
RAEMSEEE8 MY LilifhE
MR ME R A TR HE
B AEEZHMBEREAR
MBREE RS RES
EHREAETHENRRNE
-3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(ii)

15

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurement

13. REVZRURYZE  BERRE
(#)

(b) BEMENRXFENE#E

(i) SH=BRAFETEEHR

=i

Unobservable
Valuation techniques input range Range
BRI FOERHBEER e
Investment properties Market comparison approach Premium (discount) on quality 0.0% 10 0.1%
- ES i &SR of the buildings
BFESHE M)

The fair value of properties is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square foot basis, adjusted for a premium
or a discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
buildings compared to the recent sales. Higher
premium for higher quality buildings will result in a
higher fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of

MEZRFEDERTSLER
EEE HEZ2ERHERY
ERBYHEREREEFE
ZIIMEE  BERAKEE
FEEZHERE SR (R
HHERXZULBME) LS
B -WETEEREERETS
Be BEUAEMBZIAF
BERER

RZRMAFEFEZGEBREF

these Level 3 fair value measurements are as Nz ZBINT :
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Investment properties REWE
At 1 April RIUA—A = =
Additions NE 180,164,403 -
Fair value adjustment NFEFEE 10,235,597 -
At 31 March RE B ==E 190,400,000 -

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Other net income and
gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurement (Continued)

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the year
arise from the properties held at the end of the
reporting period.

Assets held under finance leases

During the year, additions to motor vehicles and
operation equipment financed by new finance leases
were HK$1,787,911 (2017: HK$937,696) and
HK$727,929 (2017: HKSnil) respectively. At 31 March
2018, the net book values of motor vehicles and
operation equipment held under finance leases were
HK$2,418,956 (2017: HK$1,704,758) and HK$340,100
(2017: HK$nil) respectively.

Assets leased out under operating leases

The group leases out investment property under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 2 years, with an option to renew the lease after
that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every 2 years to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

B H AR I ot

13. REMEURYE - BEKRZRE

(&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BREVMEN AT EFE (@)

(i) F=ZEBRLTLEFEER(#)

REZRBEANERN A K
BERARGEERABENYE -

BREREHEREZEE

FR- UFREHERNAENRE
KB IERE D I A1,787,911 8L ( =
T — 4 937,696 5T ) & 727,929
B (ZE—tF L) c R=F
—N\EFE=ZA=+—8"  LAR&HRER
B2 ABEREBERBENERE@FED
£2,418956% t( = T — £ F:
1,704,758/ 7T) & 340,100/ T (=&
—tF TEIL) °

REELHEHENEE

AEERBEEHOEELHREY
¥ FHO—RVISBEMF - I
BREBBLY  NZBRABEKE
EXbER -  HENKARSME L
—R - ARRMIEHEE - ZEHER
EOEIAREE -

RBT ARG EHER T EIRR
REEHEEMNKEBOT ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+F

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Within 1 year 16R 1,796,480 =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+ i
B 7= MY 5T
14. GOODWILL 14. &
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZEFE—+F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt & BT P IT
At the beginning of year =) 36,657,111 3,421,318
Business acquisitions E UL RE 31 58,566,078 33,518,733
Impairment during the year FARE - (282,940)
At the end of year FR 95,223,189 36,657,111
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZEFE—+F
HK$ HKS
BT P IT
Cost B AN 97,568,596 39,002,518
Accumulated impairment RETRE (2,345,407) (2,345,407)
Net carrying amount REVFE 95,223,189 36,657,111
Impairment testing of goodwill B RERE
Goodwill acquired through business acquisitions is allocated to BEREBREBRBNFHERSEE TR
the following cash-generating units (“CGU”) for impairment SEABM(TRESEEEM]) AIERER
testing: W, ¢
e Medical, quasi-medical and traditional beauty services in s FHEBER EBRERERITRER
Hong Kong CGU; SEEEAM
° Aesthetic dental services in Hong Kong CGU; and ° BRXEREREELEMN - &
e Beauty services in the PRC CGU. o FEEARBKEESELSM -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Medical, quasi-medical and traditional beauty services
in Hong Kong CGU

The recoverable amount of the medical, quasi-medical and
traditional beauty services in Hong Kong CGU has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a five-year period. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 20% (2017: 20%) and
the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the cash-
generating units beyond the five-year period is 3% (2017: 3%).

Aesthetic dental services in Hong Kong CGU

The recoverable amount of the aesthetic dental services in
Hong Kong CGU has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections from financial
budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year
period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 16% (2017: 16%) and the growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the cash-generating units beyond the five-
year period is 3% (2017: 3%).

B H AR I ot

14. BE (&)

BHERERR &)

ERER EBRENEAXERBRE
EEEN

RBELER EBRELERZARBER
ELXBUNAEEER A EREEER
BREGREEEBIMENTEREMEERN
IFHRRARESREMETE - BANKRE
MEBEENMEBRERR20%(ZT—LF:
20%)  MREELEVAFHEERNRE
MERA%(ZT— L% :3%) MERX
#H -

ERXERBRESELEM

BEAEEREReEEEMNA LD &5
DAEREEEERESREREIEN
P EEMEENAFHEARSREM
ET BRRNREREHEENMEEXRA
16%(—ZF—+tF :16%) MBELELE
UAEFHEENRESRERAIN(ZE
—tF  3%)MIBREESE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.

15

B FS R M R

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Beauty services in the PRC CGU

The recoverable amount of the beauty services in the PRC
CGU has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projection is 23% (2017: 23%)
and the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
cash-generating units beyond the five-year period is 3% (2017:
3%).

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

14. BE (®)

BHERERR #)
FEERRERSEEEN

FEEAREESEEEMMAIRD S5
TIAFEREEEZSREEEI AN
TEEMHEENAFRRRNBRSREMET -
EARREREHENIREA283% (=ZF
—+tF:23%) MASELERAFHBE
MRS REWASN(ZZT —+F : 3%)

DEEERCELBUNEMEREMENT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Medical, quasi-medical and traditional BREEE  EBENEAERRS
beauty services in Hong Kong 53,122,046 31,241,474
Aesthetic dental services in Hong Kong BEREERE 22,377,297 394,941
Beauty services in the PRC PR ERRS 19,723,846 5,020,696
95,223,189 36,657,111

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of all
the CGUs. The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating
units.

Price inflation — The basis used to determine the price inflation
is the forecast price index during the budget year for Hong
Kong, Macau or the PRC where the operations are carried out.

The values assigned to the key assumptions are consistent
with external information sources.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=+ N
B s P 3T
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B &E
Club  Customer
membership lists Licence Trademark Other Total
effg® EF%E &R 1= Hit @5t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B B B B BT B
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~FNA-A 354,000 1,314,454 1,171,229 - - 2,839,683
Additions NE 19,164,000 - - - - 19,164,000
Business acquisitions (note 31)  E#UER (131 31) - 5608093 2,676,121 8,907,318 - 17,191,532
Exchange adjustment BH AR - - (62,499) = = (62,499)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=1+—H 19518000 6922547 3,784,851 8,907,318 - 39,132,716
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FNA—A 19,618,000 6,922,547 3,784,851 8,907,318 - 39,132,716
Business acquisitions (note 31) U (M 31) - - - 15,125,698 38,607,000 53,732,698
Exchange adjustment BN R - - 328,146 - - 328,146
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=F+—H 19518000 6922547 4,112,997 24,033,016 38,607,000 93,193,560
Accumulated amortisation: ~ Ziti#s
At 1 April 2016 “E-"FNA—H - 1,289,232 239,358 - - 1,528,590
Charge for the year EMEA - 25,222 242981 1,439,813 - 1,708,016
Exchange adjustment B 5 R - - (10,340) = = (10,340)
31 March 2017 “E—+f#=ZA=+-H - 1,314,454 471,999 1,439,813 - 3,226,266
At 1 April 2017 “E2—+FNA—-H - 1,314,454 471,999 1,439,813 - 3,226,266
Charge for the year EMEA S 560,809 813,146 1,690,963 - 3,064,918
Exchange adjustment RN - - 40,922 - - 40,922
31 March 2018 “T-\F=ZA=1—H - 1,875,263 1,326,067 3,130,776 - 6,332,106
Net book value: RHEFE:
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=+—H 19518000 5,047,284 2,786,930 20,902,240 38,607,000 86,861,454
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+HF=A=1+—H 19518000 5608093 3,312,852 7,467,505 - 35,906,450
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other FANHBEBERTAGEBRERPH [ Hib
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. ] e
The intangible assets with indefinite useful life are related to ERAFAFTHNENEENEASHNE
club memberships in Hong Kong. No impairment loss was FresErsd FATERRREBE(ZZ
recognised during the year (2017: HK$nil). —tF TEL) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 16. S ENER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$ HK$

BT P IT

Share of net assets DMEEEFE 30,194,000 25,122,091
Loan to a joint venture BRTEERE 14,500,000 -
44,694,000 25,122,091
(@) Details of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures, which @ AEERGL20ENER(REEH

are accounted for using the equity method in the BHRFAEREAR) GFBEOT

consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

e gL
Place of Particulars of Group’s Held
incorporation issued and effective bythe Heldbya
Name of joint venture and business paid up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
AMEIE  BETR S 3 MR
RELEER ABREE HBRESFE ERER XRDAME Fis  EEEE
Good Union Corporation HongKong  Registered capital 50% S 50%  Provision of repair
Limited (“GUC”) HK$100 and maintenance
services for beauty
equipment
BeEBRAR ([BISHE]) B HMER 50% - 50% AXARBRREE
10087T R ERS
Good Union Medical Limited HongKong  Registered capital 50% - 50%  Sales of medication
(‘GUM?) HK$100 products
Good Union Medical Limited BE MR 50% - 50% HEEMEM
(IGUMJ) 1007
Reta Investment Holding Limited ~ BVI Registered capital 50% S 50%  Investment holding
(‘RETA") USD50,000
Reta Investment Holding Limited ~ B2 S FHER 50% - 50% REZK
(TRETAL) 50,000% 7T
GUC and GUM (together referred to as the “GU”), and RETA, Bl IE K& GUM (£i7F8 [GUJ) R RETA + A&
the joint ventures in which the Group participates, are unlisted FERNAEDLE  RYEASHERE
corporate entities whose quoted market price is not available. MZE LT RRIERE

1 5 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 16. 5%

(b)

Summarised financial information of the material joint (o

NOTES TO THE F

-

venture, GU, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

INANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

TENER @)

REABRREMERELFBNEX
BELEXGUUBERBIE REZRA
MR REENSRWENT

below:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Gross amounts of GU GU#RE
Current assets RENEE 35,618,061 19,973,712
Non-current assets IEREEE 1,350,128 1,593,256
Current liabilities mEEE (11,899,839) (8,967,436)
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE (2,325,000) -
Equity s 22,743,350 12,599,532
Included in the above assets and FFALMEEREE
liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEEY 6,244,964 2,939,202
Current financial liabilities (excluding e BE(BS REMAmER
trade and other payables and I N BAERIN)
provisions) (5,560,306) (217,717)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Gross amounts of GU GU %R
Revenue WA 84,767,884 59,776,201
Profit from continuing operations KA E KSR R 10,143,138 2,629,547
Total comprehensive income 2HEIABEE 10,143,138 2,529,547
Included in the above profit: A LR FAIEE -
Interest income F B A 35,502 515
Interest expense FERZ (28,684) (14)
Income tax expense B8R = -
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in GU B 7K £ [ Ffr i3 GU HE 25 41 BF
Gross amounts of GU’s net assets GUEEFERRE 22,743,350 12,599,532
Group’s effective interest REBEEER 50% 50%
Group’s share of GU net assets KEBEEGUEEFE 11,371,675 6,299,766
Identifiable intangible assets AR EEEE 5,847,728 5,847,728
Fair value adjustment on net assets Frig s EE 2 A ERE
acquired 591,451 591,451
Goodwiill EES 12,383,146 12,383,146
Carrying amount in the consolidated RIFE P HRERNERERE
financial statements 30,194,000 25,122,091
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 16. & ENER @)

(¢ On 1 November 2016, the Union Medical Technology © RZE—FRF+—H—8 X2FK
Holdings Limited (“UMTHL”), an indirect wholly owned 6 & 2 & M B 22 8)Union Medical
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and Technology Holdings Limited
purchase agreement with Mr. Cheng. Pursuant to the (TUMTHL) BRER 5 2T B E sk o
sale and purchase agreement, UMTHL and Mr. Cheng BEEEW:E  UMTHL R R4 #HH
holds 50% equity interest of GU and the decisions on GU 50% [ - B GURIZEEEE
those relevant activities as defined under HKFRS 10, HRRZ(EEREBEYHEHRELED
Consolidated Financial Statements, of GU requires B0 HZEHEBEHRLX]) BEXREE
unanimous consent of the directors as nominated by UMTHL R B85 £ & BIREMEISES
each of UMTHL and Mr. Cheng present and voting. H—HRABSWETIRE -

The transaction was completed on 25 November 2016 ZRXGER_E—REFt+—A=-+A
with total consideration of HK$25,154,000 upon which H5EK @ AR 18 A25,154,0008 7T
GU has become a joint venture of the Company. MREHREGUR AR ARINEENE -
The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of REBR-_ZE—XRF+—A=-+AH
HK$150,911 on 25 November 2016. These cost were EEWEE R K 150,911 87T © %
charged to other expenses in the consolidated statement ERNADBBEIEFELRABRRAN
of profit or loss in the prior year. Hb S A o

17. INVENTORIES 17. &

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement (a) HEMBRRAERNEERE

of financial position comprise:
As at 31 March
W=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$ HK$
BTt BT
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products & - {Rfi& R EDE R 10,359,335 5,440,773
Consumables and other supplies FEM R E A E R 21,085,160 13,675,507
31,444,495 19,116,280

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRERXIAFTABZNEE
recognised as an expense and included in SHEINWT :
profit or loss is as follows:

Year ended 31 March

BE-A=+—HLFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHERHEENTERTE

and consumed 163,402,642 130,478,323

15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. E S EWFIE
As at 31 March
R=B=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 68,670,393 52,142,746
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on NEBHEEEFNEFERTEZEN AR
credit card settlements. The credit period is generally 1 to 120 HE GRLRMENESNERREEY
days for the credit card settlements from the respective ERE—MEB1E120K - AEEHHEERIE
financial institutions. The Group seeks to maintain strict control THE|E R R FEUR R IE - ha Hi 45 88 i
over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances are SRTEETHEN AEETEGRHEEZ
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not SEW R IBAEREETMEP R ERE
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade = IR IEHE - B HIEWRIBETETE o
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the LS EWTIENER S IT(REREREELY)
invoice date, is as follows: OENE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Within 1 month 1E A A 54,068,920 41,988,028
1 to 3 months 1E31E A 8,551,075 4,865,166
Over 3 months 3E A L 6,050,398 5,289,552

68,670,393 52,142,746
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

16

B FS R M R

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on the
payment due date and net of provision is as follows:

18. B 5 EWFIE (%)

B 5 RUGRIRER Rk D i GRS R 2B A 1F
H WEHRREE) T

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Neither past due nor impaired BER 180 HA 7T A Rl (B 52,733,726 38,791,121
Less than 3 months past due BE LR 3EA 14,130,582 12,790,901
3 to 6 months past due BHISE6{EA 502,916 313,509
7 to 12 months past due #BEA7 1218 A 534,554 135,377
More than 1 year past due BE1F AL 768,615 111,838
68,670,393 52,142,746

At 31 March 2018, none of the trade receivables were
individually determined to be impaired (2017: Nil).

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of receivables due from financial institutions
in respect of credit card settlements for whom there was no
recent history of default.

As at 31 March 2017, there was trade receivables of
HK$2,870,107 due from Healthy Concept (HK) Limited, a
company beneficially owned by Mr. Tang. At 1 April 2016, the
outstanding balance was nil. The maximum amount
outstanding was HK$2,870,107 during the year ended 31
March 2017. The amount was interest-free and repayable on
demand, and the whole amount has been repaid on 28 June
2017.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired also
relate to a number of financial institutions and a related party
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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19.

20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

19. FAMNKE

BE R EBWKFRIE

As at 31 March

MR=A=+—8

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments TR IR 43,342,417 42,234,973
Deposits e 64,214,477 39,824,059
Other receivables Hfth e Y I 32,093,062 10,145,152
139,649,956 92,204,184

Portion classified as non-current 5| A 3ERNEREY B
— Rental and other deposits — He EMmEe (45,204,459) (23,589,387)
— Prepayments — JERTRIE (8,175,787) (7,884,968)
Current portion BNEFEE 2 86,269,710 60,729,829

The above assets are neither past due nor impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balance relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

R EERRBYITERE - &R
B E BRE B M HA 30 B 46 R SRR AL Bk Y

FEMRIR

20. RAFEFAEZNEREE

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTAEZENEREE
profit or loss
Unlisted fund investments, at fair value, EBELITESRE  BAFER
in Hong Kong 329,449,514 -
Unlisted bond investments, at fair value, ERIELTELEAKRE AT ES
in Hong Kong 166,380,238 15,012,489
Certificate of deposits, at fair value, BEBGERE  BAFER
in Hong Kong - 459,733,200
Coupon note, at fair value, in Hong Kong ~ &&24 - I8 A F(EE - 25,000,000
495,829,752 499,745,689

Certificate of deposits earn interest at fixed rates from
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Dividend income from unlisted fund investments of
HK$4,222,796 for the year ended 31 March 2018 is included
in “other net income and gains” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

T SRRE 12 B E M R B A0 BRI S 4 R RC SR EY

B8 RIFHYIRITIRERA S, -

HE_ZTZ—\FE=A=+—BItFEKH
FELETESIRENIE A 4,222,796 /5 7T
SFAGEIERERARN [ H s &I AF
] o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

16

TIME DEPOSITS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents and time

deposits comprise:

21.

BERRESEYUREHRER

(a)

ReRESSEYUARERE
MBI

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —F—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Cash and cash equivalents WERBEEEY 295,481,085 200,644,165
Time deposits TE B 397,872,256 160,712,370
693,353,341 361,356,535

Less: Pledged time deposits for banking & @ FLER1TRIEEAE B R0

facilities as security for credit card ST EIE RN B IR EH

instalments programme = (2,000,740) (2,000,000)

Time deposits with original maturity [REHAR BB ={E AT EFER
over 3 months (395,871,516) (158,712,370)

295,481,085 200,644,165

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying period from one day to one year depending on
the Group’s immediate cash requirements, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Included in cash and cash equivalents, HK$16,917,120
(2017: HK$9,036,583) are denominated in Renminbi and
deposited with the banks in the PRC. These deposits are
not freely convertible and the remittance of funds out of
the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by
the Government of the PRC.
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AR I ot

RERBEESEYURERERK

TIME DEPOSITS (Continued) (#)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BMEETEFIELEEBENEER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRHFANAEBENEERKBREE
from financing activities, including both cash and non- BNHEBEENES  BHEIES LI
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities BerEs) - KRB THNEER
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash EEBSRENARAKNBE LS REERN
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash RNEBWGEAEBRERERTHEDIES
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. REMETEHHNIRSRE -
Bank Finance
borrowings leases Total
RITEMN MERE @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2017 R-E—tHEWNA—H - 924,438 924,438
Changes from financing cash flows: BEEBRES TR EH
Proceeds from new bank borrowings g RITERTERIE 560,841,888 ~ 560,841,888
Repayment of bank borrowings BERBITRN (3,471,510) - (3,471,510)
Capital element of finance lease ENREHEEHEENER
rentals paid b = (1,313,786) (1,313,786)
Interest element of finance lease BENREHERESHNFS
rentals paid B = (31,193) (31,193)
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITERF L (532,795) = (532,795)
Total changes from financing cash flows gl &/EEIE &5 2 &8 @%8 556,837,583 (1,344,979) 555,492,604
Other changes: Hihs g
New finance leases MERE - 2,515,840 2,515,840
Finance charges on obligations BERAEAEBERX
under finance leases - 31,193 31,193
Acquisition of businesses B %75 1,483,138 S 1,483,138
Interest expenses FEFX 532,795 - 532,795
Total other changes Hip# e 2,015,933 2,547,033 4,562,966
At 31 March 2018 R-B-NE=ZH=+—H 558,853,516 2,126,492 560,980,008
Material Non-cash transactions (c) EXKEERS

(c)

During the year, the Company has issued 2,530,448
shares under dividend scheme (Note 28(c)(ii)).

FA - ARFRBEARNKBET BT
2,530,448 Iz 7 (Pt =E 28(c)(ii))
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B FS R M R

22. TRADE PAYABLES 22, ESENRIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the invoice B OENZTENERERSTORRZHEEDR)
date, is as follows: R
As at 31 March
MR=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 1 month 1EAR 8,081,532 5,422,769
1 to 2 months 12 2{8A 615,848 404,531
2 to 3 months 2ZE3EA 79,926 7,155
Over 3 months 3MEA M E 661,161 633,756
9,438,467 6,468,211
The trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally have B S5 RNFREBETFE IR —RAB60XK
payment terms within 60 days. LA ©
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HitERRBEREEH

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other payables H e RIE 34,163,719 16,541,678
Accruals FERTE A 59,813,238 37,085,739
Provision for reinstatement costs EEKAEE 6,500,000 5,950,000
100,476,957 59,577,417

Portion classified as non-current D48 AIERNERER
— provision for reinstatement costs — BEENAREE (3,690,000) (4,650,000)
Current portion BNHEAER 2 96,786,957 54,927,417

Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average

payment term of three months.

1 6 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

24,

(Continued)

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of dismantling
and removing the leasehold improvements and restoring the

sites on which they are located.

The movements in the provision for reinstatement costs are as

follows:

B H AR I ot

23. HittEFIBERETER @)

EERARBEEEEHASEARFH
EERHEMERREARREREMEEK
[EFEBAORANE B2 REMRE

EERABRENEBNT

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8H

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At the beginning of year F9] 5,950,000 5,270,000
Additional provision BEINEE 890,000 1,110,000
Amounts utilised during the year FREESEE (340,000) (430,000)
At the end of year FR 6,500,000 5,950,000
Portion classified as current liabilities SEARBAGENE S (2,810,000) (1,300,000)
Non-current portion JEBNHAZR 5 3,690,000 4,650,000

BANK BORROWINGS

At 31 March 2018, the bank borrowings were repayable as

24, $RITER

R-ZZE-NF=A=1t—8 " fITERNEFRH

follows: m
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Within 1 year or on demand 1FRNFREREE 461,315,507 -
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEL EE2FR 17,861,585 -
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA EBSFAR 51,011,421 -
After 5 years 5% LA E 28,665,003 -
97,538,009 —
558,853,516 -
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24,

16

B FS R M R

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 March 2018, the bank loans were secured as follows:

24. SRITER #)

RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H RITERE
RIERWAT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Secured BER 558,853,516 -

As at 31 March 2018, the bank borrowings of the Group
carried variable interest rate at Prime Rate+0.55% per annum
or ranging from HIBOR+0.88% to HIBOR+1.25% per annum
and fixed interest rates generally ranging from 0.28% to 1.16%
per annum.

At 31 March 2018, investment properties of HK$121,800,000
(2017: Nil) and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$479,635,769 (2017: Nil) were pledged to various
banks to secure the bank loans of HK$115,399,594 (2017: Nil)
and HK$442,441,888 (2017: Nil) respectively granted to the
Group.

At 31 March 2018, bank borrowings of HK$1,012,034 (2017:
Nil) were secured by assets of a director of a subsidiary.

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s or
relevant subsidiaries’ financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand.

At 31 March 2018, none of the covenants relating to drawn
down facilities has been breached

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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R-ZB—-NF=A=+—8  "&EERT
BRDBIEHERNEINTF0.55%H))F
FHEEIN FEBRTEEFREZRNEF
K088NEFBRITAEFRERMNFFE
1.25% 3 — N T8 F028%%E1.16% K
EEFIEFTB -

R-ZZE—NE=A=+—H REWZE
121,800,000 7T (ZE—+4F : ) RIEA
FEFABRHNSRIEE 479,635,769/5 7T
(Z2—tF: EEEBTFTEHERIT 5
BIVE BN B EEIRITE 115,399,504 75
T(ZZ—+4F : #)M442,441,88878 (=
T—tF  E)RER-

RZE-—NE=ZA=+—8 " $RITEX
1,012,034 8Bt (ZF—+tF : )R —EH
BARMNESHNEERT -

AEEETRITRERBGFASENKK B
NEERBRAEEVHLEOROEK 71
VRIFE - L EROF AN B HEBR] L
MERLZHS - HAKREERZY 2R
MO EHAREREE -

RZZBE-NF=A=+—H HIEESIE
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25. DEFERRED REVENUE

The movements in deferred revenue are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

25. JEFEW A

EEWA BT -

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At the beginning of year F10 327,894,405 302,609,626
Sales contracts entered into during the year FRF]HIEHES 4 1,398,705,820 969,770,195
Business acquisitions (Note 31) HREUEE (FH7E31) 32,145,439 16,725,618
Revenue recognised upon the provision RERGE R A
of services (1,129,457,572)  (824,920,153)
Revenue recognised upon the retail sales  ZEE RFEREUA
of products (65,657,950) (49,612,366)
Refunds R (8,267,079) (7,735,902)
Revenue recognised from unutilised HARCABERNEZHERHRA
prepaid packages (105,528,501) (78,107,092)
Exchange adjustment b H AR 2,556,921 (835,521)
At the end of year FxR 452,391,483 327,894,405
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B FS R M R

26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

26.

e AR R AT EB

(a) meawBHRRAKRAANDTIEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FREBREREE
for the year 51,871,677 38,076,163
Provisional tax paid BT Ea I (36,584,851) (27,067,604)
15,286,826 11,008,559
Provision for tax outside Hong Kong BERINA BB 2,618,368 419,996
Current tax payable FE{ BN AR 1E 17,905,194 11,428,555

(b) Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities

(b) EIEBIE(EE) A&

Temporary difference between
depreciation and the related
depreciation allowance

EEEBETERE
ZENERFEEE

2018 2017

—E-NF —E—+F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At 1 April RIMA—H 1,646,215 (498,808)

Deferred tax credited to profit FERNREBEREA

or loss during the year (note 11) HRIERLIE (F3E11) (1,956,876) (691,580)

Business acquisitions (note 31) IR (F5E31) 2,273,941 2,836,603
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the R=ZA=+—HREEEMT
consolidated statement of financial position A 7 3R A RERRYIE AL F7 18

at 31 March BE 1,963,280 1,646,215
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position

B H AR I ot

. REMBRRRANEEH @)

e BRI RO IR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE PR R IER N
consolidated statement of financial position — ¥EIEF 1B & & (2,311,349) (1,461,626)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RER A B SR N R FE R
consolidated statement of financial positon ~ JEEFLIBE (& 4,274,629 3,107,841
1,963,280 1,646,215

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong and the PRC
of HK$44,611,724 (2017: HK$32,072,975) subject to
agreement by the local tax authorities. The tax losses are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies from which the losses arose, except for tax
losses arising in the PRC of HK$9,982,927 (2017:
HK$1,917,870), which will be expired within 3-5 years.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

AEEELEEAERTEMNBIESE(EF
EHHSERERE) A844,611,724 (=
T—+4F 32,072,975870) ° 2 ETIEE
BAERHANEKEEEEENARZAE
RIERTURF) - HEERBRELENTIEEE
9,982,927 L (ZF —+t4F 1,917,870
70) RIBRAN - EER = RFERED|HE -

HREEEBERVELEBECA —REH
MEAR - BTAAEEEELRARE
HREBRNERTEN - WA BRZF
EEEREERREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27. MEHAERIE

At 31 March 2018, the Group had obligations under finance RZE—NF=ZA=+—H A5EKE
leases repayable as follows: NEEREAENT -
2018 2017
—E-0\% S o2
Present value of Present value of
the minimum  Total minimum the minimum Total minimum

lease payments  lease payments  lease payments  lease payments

BEAE REAE REHE REEE

AHRE DR NHRE pEcE

HK$ HK$ HKS HKS

BT BT BT AL

Within 1 year 1R 1,709,865 1,736,132 342,714 366,912
After 1 year but within 2 years 1ENER2ER 416,627 421,376 353,975 366,912
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FL HESER - - 207,749 230,185
416,627 421,376 581,724 597,097

2,126,492 2,157,508 924,438 964,009

Less: total future interest expenses W AR SR BE (31,016) (39,571)
Present valug of lease obligations RERENERE 2,126,492 924,438
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28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 28. BA& - BERRKRE
DIVIDENDS
(@ Movements in components of equity (a) ERIDEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEKLOTREEZNET R EIKR
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HMEBEHENGAERZEE - AQT
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of BRI Z D R E 2 F REIME &
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the B FEY T -

Company’s individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Share held
for share Employee
Share  Contribution award  share-based
premium reserve scheme  compensation
Share (note 28 (note 28 reserve reserve  Accumulated
capital (d)i)) (d)iv)  (note28(d)(v)) (note28(d)(vi)) losses Total
RRHED

THRER  ARDXAN
BiEE HERE BENRG  ERMERE
(28 (28 (i 28 (28

e @) (d)iv)) AW (i) 2iEE a3
Notes HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
(i B B B B B B B
Balance at 1 April 2016: RZZ—FMA-H
ket 9,800 703,435,028 7 - - (81,308,482 622,136,353
Changes in equity for the year B3+t
ended 31 March 2017: =A=t-H
IFEERHEY
Issuance of shares B 28(c)l) 8 2,250,361 - - = - 2,250,369
Purchase of shares for AR REEEEE
share award scheme Wﬁ 29 - - - (92,162,744) - - (92,162,744)
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREE
share-based compensation: LXHx YEERME -
share award and share option [fn 2@ R B R 29,30 - - - - 14,859,281 - 14,859,281
Vesting of shares under BERR #E: 2
share award scheme SERG 29 - - - 11,464,621 (12,083,180 618,559 -
Dividends declared BERRE 28(0) S = = = = (90,125,302)  (80,125,302)
Loss and total comprehensive FABRR2EE
income for the year AR - - - - - (6,402,331)  (6,402,331)
Balance at 31 March 2017 and W-Z—t§=f=+-A
1 Aprl 2017 f-Z—+5mA-8
ket 9,808 705,685,389 7 (80,698,123) 2,776,101 (177,217,566) 450,565,626
Changes in equity for the year BE-T-\&
ended 31 March 2018: =R=1+-8
IFEEGEY
Issuance of share BIkH 28(c)() 26 9425238 - - - - 9425264
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREE
share-based compensation: IR BERMS :
share award and share option BOECE 29,30 - - - - 3,723,916 - 3723916
Veesting of shares under BERG #E:HE
share award scheme SBRD 29 - - - 416,069 (416,069) - -
Dividends declared BEERKRE 28(0) - - - - - (249,136,621) (249,136,621)
Loss and total comprehensive ERBRRRE
income for the year N £ - - - - - (15,976,284)  (15,976,284)
Balance at 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
ZR=t—Bfgs 9,834 715,110,627 7 (80,282,054) 6,083,948 (442,330,461) 198,591,901
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B FS R M R

28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends

(i

(ii)

Dividends payable by the Company to equity (
shareholders:

i)

(b) KRB

28. B - RERRE @)

RARENEERROKRE

As at 31 March

W=H=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZT—tF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interim dividends declared and paid of B & &R H IR 5 G %
12.50 HK cents per ordinary Share LB 12.50BW(ZE—+F -
(2017: 7.50 HK cents per ordinary FhE @k 7.50810)
share) 122,609,938 73,562,024
Final dividend and special dividend RS R RERIRE KRR A

proposed after the end of the Reporting R 45 BIRR & & 1% L i A%
Period of 14.50 HK cents per ordinary ~ 14.50 1l (=& —+4 -
Share) (2017: 12.90 HK cents per FRE®A%12.9078L)
ordinary Share)

142,640,117 126,526,683

265,250,055 200,088,707

The final dividend and special dividend proposed
after the end of the Reporting Period has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the Reporting
Period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i)
the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the

RS RERREIRE 2 K
BB B B BB 1 R FE R 5 1
BARERSAE -

F-—MERFEREERNTTFAR
AEERRNRE  REFE
RERIKA

year:
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Final dividend in respect of the M BRFERARKE
previous financial year, approved RE R KRB
and paid during the year, of AR 12.90 81U
12.90 HK cents per ordinary Share  (ZZ—+%F : &%
(2017: 1.91 HK cents per ordinary AL 1.917810)
Share) 126,526,683 18,733,796
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital

B H AR I ot

28. B - RERRKRE @)

(c) B’=&

31 March 2018
R=B-Nf£=A=1-H

31 March 2017
RZE—+F=A=+—A

Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
REAHE BT k! BT
Authorised EE
Ordinary Shares of FHREE0.00001 BT
HK$0.00001 each )L B 38,000,000,000 380,000 38,000,000,000 380,000
Ordinary shares, issued EER ORTRER
and fully paid
At 1 April REA—H 980,827,000 9,808 980,000,000 9,800
Exercise of share options () 1T BRI () 72,500 1 - -
Issue of shares upon scrip A=Z—~/—tFrHRK
dividend of 2016/17 BRIk S AR B BT
interim and special dividends (i) A3 i) 2,530,448 25 - -
Issuance of new Shares (i) BATHARA (il - - 827,000 8
At 31 March R=R=+—H 983,429,948 9,834 980,827,000 9,808

The holders of ordinary Shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at general meetings of the
Company. All ordinary Shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

The Company’s issued and fully paid shares as at 31
March 2018 included 35,995,770 (2017: 35,995,770)
shares held in trust by the trustee under the share award
scheme.

(i)

During the Reporting Period, the Company issued
67,500 Shares and 5,000 Shares upon exercise of
share options by the relevant Grantee at exercise
prices of HK$3.03 and HK$3.50 respectively under
the 2016 Share Option Scheme. These new Shares
ranked pari passu in all respects with other Shares
in issue.

On 31 January 2018, the Company issued and
allotted 2,530,448 Shares at an issue price of
HK$3.637 per Share in respect of the interim and
special dividends for the six months ended 30
September 2017 under the scrip dividend scheme.
The 2,530,448 Shares so issued ranked pari passu
in all respects with the then existing issued Shares
except for the entitlement to the said interim
dividend.

BARSA AR EIRA
B RARBBRRAE LEEERNEA
—RRE# - A ERREARRAN
RHEEZAREER -

KRR _BE—N\EFE=ZA=+—HH
BRTERACBRMDEBIESTARER
HEBTEUNEETAFAFTEN
35,995,770/ ( = & — + F:
35,995,770 B) B 15 e

() MBEEHE ARARE-Z
— NFEERER S EREAE
ATTE RS 1T {F (B 3.08
B JT M350 T o Al B 1T
67,500 fi% f% 19 F015,000 M 15 ©
ZEMBROEME T EmE A
BETRMDABRSHA

iy MZEBE—NF—A=+—8"
ARBRE AR BT8R E
E_ZT—tFALA=ZFTHLRN
@A zHHREERRBETTE
[%3.637 7% T 8 17 & B %%
2,530,448 % f& 1p o BT E 17 A9
2,580,448 % f&% 15 7 FT 8 75 T £
EREEERTRHEERE
oz o HE_E i A R BRI BR
§|\ °
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B FS R M R

28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

17

(c)

(d)

Share capital (Continued)

(i)

On 18 April 2016, the Company issued 827,000
Shares at HK$3.03 per Share by way of over-
allotment Shares under the global initial public
offering to Hong Kong and International investors.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of the shares of the Company. Under the
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of the
business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the consolidated
share capital of UGIL and a subsidiary acquired
under common control.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 3.1.

Contribution reserve

The contribution reserve represents the difference
between the share of equity of Union Health
Services and the par value of share capital for the
issuance of new shares.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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28. B - RERRE @)

() MRZ&(#)

(i)

RZZE—X"FWMA+NAA " &
RAEBEHERAFAEER
TR RGN K NIRER
B.03BTRBEEMHBIEESR
2517827,000 f% I 17 ©

d) RENEERB

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

R0 E

B 10 Otk B 48 A & ] A AR E (B
BB ATA R A B BT AR 15
RAZENER - RIEFHSE
SRENE ARBRMEER
ARDIRTARABBRER - H#E
EREY KRS BHE - AQ
AIAGRNEERENAEER
BIEPCD R ZER -

ROHEE

F& O 7 8 48 UGIL B2 — R W 8
K EVB B A R (R AERZES) B

AR -
B 5 5 8

EXFEESMARRERLE
BONRIE W TR E LR INE
ER o ZRBRMESAEDN
SERTBOREHE -

HEFE
H & f# & 8 o 15 Union Health

Services Y % 1 2 25 1T T A% O IR
AEEZEHER -



28.

29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) Shares held for share award scheme reserve

The shares held for share award scheme reserve
represents the purchase costs of shares held for
share award scheme as disclosed in note 29.

(vi) Employee share-based compensation reserve

The employee share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payment in note 3.1.

(e) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$198,582,067 (2017: HK$450,545,818).

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 26 September 2016, the Board approved the Company’s
Employees’ Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”). Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme,
the Company has appointed a trustee for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme and holding the shares
purchased for the Share Award Scheme before the award and
vesting of the same. The Company pays to the trustee from
time to time for the purchase of shares held for the Share
Award Scheme from market.

The terms of the Share Award Scheme provide for the award
of shares in the Company to employees of the Group as part
of their compensation package. Subject to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Board shall determine at the time of
grant the vesting date for the relevant awarded shares.

Dividends payable to the awarded shares are applied to
acquire further shares and pay the related purchase expenses
and expenses incurred by the trustee.

28.

29.

B H AR I ot

B - RERRE @

d) RENEERB @)

(v) RRORBEFEBEMFEN
)

R BB E EIFEMFAN
PRintE M ST 20 PR B IE B R X
0 BB AT &I 45 B B A0 AU AX
ZKO

(vi) URHBXNNEESMEHE

AR ST BV 1B B BN & s 4
RIBIEESA BB UR D HE
2 R B AN Y & AT IR P
BRARTAKEESNERX
Rt RITEBREHBENQF
=

(e) RBHYA o EIME

RZE—N\F=ZA=+—8  &ARQ7
AMHOEE T ARRAREERRNHEHR A
198,582,067 7L (=T —tF :
450,545,818/87T) °

B A0 SR BT &

EEER_TE-—A"FNLA-+AILAER
A A)E B BT 81 ([ RRD 2E@hErEl ) -
RIFAR D RENFTEIFRA) - R ABEEE—
BZTAANE B B T8 MR IR H 5
REBBARBEARDEBTEMEEN
B RARRTERETISEE ARG E
Bt 8lmiFa MM ASZIEANK

B R EEFFI R R T AR ERE
ARBBRDERSBEFHO—F D - RIB
DR EZARR  EFTEARNKTH
REMBERBNHOFBEELS

BNEEEROHNKREATRBEE-TBA
B B A HERRRE B F S A R FEA S B
2R3 e
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29.

17

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 29.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited and held by the
trustee of the Share Award Scheme who may award such
shares to other awardees taking into consideration the
recommendations of the Board.

Movements in the number of awarded shares in the Company
and their related average fair values are as follows:

Lidng=3 I HEIC )

REBIHTEXERANEENEERE

BERDEE LY - Ak EREER
XREARE XEAAUREEEFTGH
BERREZERD R THMEREE -

P AR MR RBR G KA RIABTHA
FEZBWT :

2018 2017

“E-N\E “E4F
Number of Average Number of Average
awarded fair value awarded fair value
shares per share shares per share
ERBROBE SRTUATE ERBROHUE SRTIATE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
At 1 April N Rl = 407,008 2.56 - -
Granted B - - 5,127,000 2.56
Vested GE (168,992) 2.56 (4,719,992) 2.56
At 31 March R=RA=+—A 238,016 2.56 407,008 2.56

Movements in the number of shares in the Company and their
fair values held under the Share Award Scheme are as follows:

AR R R B SR BE &
EATE  HEHMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\f§ “E—+F
Number of Number of
shares held Fair value shares held Fair value
FisRHE A AEE FRRGEE ATE
HK$ HKS
BT B
At 1 April MREA—H 31,275,778 80,698,123 - -
Purchased during the year FREE - - 35,995,770 92,162,744
Vested during the year FNGE (168,992) (416,069) (4,719,992) (11,464,621)
At 31 March R=A=+—-H 31,106,786 80,282,054 31,275,778 80,698,123

During the year, the Share Award Scheme transferred 168,992
(2017: 4,719,992) shares of the Company to the awardees
upon vesting of certain awarded shares. The total cost of the
vested shares was HK$416,609 (2017: HK$11,464,621).

The remaining vesting period of the awarded shares in the
Company outstanding as at 31 March 2018 is 2 years (2017: 3
years).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. B RERHE

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted AABRZE—RFALA -+ BENE
on 26 September 2016 whereby the directors of the Company RS AR R ESERENIBEE
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the SEEB(BEAEETMARES)UR
Group, including directors of any Company in the Group, to B3.03 8L 24008 L MBI - AR
take up options at consideration ranging from HK$3.03 to BARRNRRMD - BRIERITEENIEE] » BB
HK$4.00 to subscribe for shares of the Company. Unless RS aEEMNE B RETFER L
otherwise cancelled or amended, the share option scheme will W BMEBIRER TS AEMNZREARA
be valid and effective within 10 years commencing on the date B—IRE@AR  WEBIARNDEE -

on which it became effective. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.

(@ The terms and conditions of the grants are () REERREGDT :
as follows:
Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
IA#®H 3B R BRESHEH
Options granted to directors:
BIEENBRE
— On 26 September 2016 7,350,000  Exercisable in ten tranches from 10 years

1 January 2017 to
31 December 2026

—RZE-RFEAAZ+AB D RRA%E T 104F
R-ZE—+F—-H—RHZE
—EXRE+A=t+—H
HRITTE

— On 26 September 2016 80,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2020

—RIE-—RFAAZTRE Al R[R1% 2 4t 44
RZZE—+F—-H—RAZF
—EEF+_HA=1t—H
HAFRIT T

— On 18 September 2017 735,000  Exercisable in one tranch from 1 year
1 January 2027 to
17 September 2027

—RZE—+FAA+NAB AR RR%E 2 —4#t 14
RZZE-_+&E—H—HA=ZE
—ZEt+FhA+LER
BT

BEREBREBRASEERAT
FERE 2017/18 1 77



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R M R

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@ The terms and conditions of the grants

are as follows: (Continued)

30. BB AETHE (@)

(a) RHEBERRGHFWT @ (&)

Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
THEHE BEHKRH BRESHTH
Options granted to employees:
BT EEMNBIRE
— On 26 September 2016 460,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2020
—RZE—R"FALAZ+<H Al AR Z M4t 44
R_ZE—tH—H—AZE
—ECEF+-A=+—H
HARTTE
— On 18 September 2017 1,860,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2018 to
31 December 2021
—RZE—+FAA+NB A RRI%E 2 it 45
RZZE—NEF—H—HA=Z
—E-_—%+-HA=+—H
HAfRIA T
— On 5 December 2017 300,000  Exercisable in three tranches from 10 years
1 April 2018 to 4 December 2027
—RE—+F+-ARH AN RRIEZ =4t 104F
RZZE—-—NEFWOA—AZE
—E - +F+ = AMNBHETE
Total share options granted 10,785,000

PR B R ARt
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B H AR I ot

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. B ESE (®)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) EBREZERENEELETTEE
prices of share options are as follows: mh
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options  exercise price options exercise price
BREHE NETHTEE BREZE NETHIEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAR
Outstanding at the beginning of FEPRTHE
the year 7,890,000 3.03 - -
Granted during the year ERRY 2,895,000 3.27 7,890,000 3.03
Exercised during the year ERTE (72,500) 3.06 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ FRFK(THE 10,712,500 3.09 7,890,000 3.03
Exercisable at the end of the year & RA{T{E 2,132,500

The options outstanding at 31 March 2018 had an
exercise price of $3.03, $3.50 and $4.00 (2017: $3.03)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.53
years (2017: 9.35 years).

3.08 870,000 3.03

R-E—-NE=ZA=+—BK1TEE
[i% # B 77 5 {8 &£ 3.037T ~ 3.507T &
400t (=ZZF—+4F :3.0370) * N4
FHFBEHNTFEHACSF(ZE
—+4F :935%F) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

30.

18

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based on
a binomial option pricing model, which takes into account
the suboptimal exercise factors and the post-vesting exit
rates. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise
are incorporated into the binomial lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

30. BB AETHE (@)

(c)

BRELFERRBR

AR BB E RN TR IR 2
RNHESE AR L BREN R FER
B IREBRENAR A TFERE
“HAREEEN (BRERITRE
AERGFEBERAOEHE)FE - B
BOANFHREAEANZE - —
FAMERA D RIBHRERITEN
e

BREQSFERREBR

26 September 26 September 18 September 18 September 5 December

2016 2016 2017 2017 2017

ZERE B2 ZBE+tF ZE+F ZEtF

AAZTRA AAZTRA AATAR AATAR TZARA

Fair value at measurement date STERMMATE $1.54 $0.90 $1.02 $0.64 $1.32

Share price RfE 308 3.08 3.03 3.03/3.50 4.00

Exercise price 198 308 3.08 3.03 3.03/3.50 4,00

Expected volatilty BHRE 65.673% 53.802% 52.815% 47.300% 52.426%

Option life FE MR 5 10 years 4 years 1 years 4 years 10 years

105 S 15 45 10F

Expected dividends HHRE NiIZ NiIZ NiIZ \ES NIZ
Risk-free interest rate (pased onyield ~ EER TR (REBHT

of the Hong Kong govemment BEHENBAE)
bonds) 1.025% 0.601% 1.442% 1.050% 1.846%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share option grants.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

TR 5035 08 7Y DA SR AR 2 D 3
BEMHEZELREARE W
BARAS AR H 2 BHA KRR
WEEL DR - R TVRE £ %
B THMSHBREDILRE
YEATENE -

BB RIS R o BRI
REtBESREREH A2 A
ERTEERERN EREZBRE
3 488 B 5 T 35 1R A o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=+ e
oG R AT
31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 31. EBWEE
(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended (@ REBEZz=—E-—NF=A=+-—
31 March 2018 HiEFENWEESE
The fair value of the net assets acquired as at the date of RUERHE - RNEEEENATE
acquisition is as follows: /NN
Conya Group
Limited and
My  Health Easy Hair styling
Healthcare Dental Group and beauty
Limited Limited business Other Total
Conya Group
Limited &
My  Health Easy
Healthcare Dental Group ~ BEER
Limited Limited REBEH Hit #t
Total identifiable net assets/(iabilties) F7UtEs AT ARIEE /(B E)
acquired FEEE 37,760,527 13,815,463  (16,949,228) 1,092,212 35,718,974
Non-controlling interests FERER - (5526,185) 8,652,699 (4,044,675  (918,161)
Goodwill on acquisitions G opat S 846,473 22,050,613 22,016,529 13,652,463 58,566,078
Cash consideration HERE 38,607,000 30,339,891 13,720,000 10,700,000 93,366,891

Cash and cash equivalents acquired  FritER ¢ RIS BN (1,363,793)  (2,864,653) (3,610,690) (6,705,440 (14,544,576)
Net outflow of cash and cash REGEMERERE
equivalents included in cash flows ~ BEHE S REELEEY

used in investing activities TFRE 37,243,207 27,475,238 10,109,310 3,994,560 78,822,315
Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the WEHRNEE_E—N\F=A=1—
year ended 31 March 2018, the revenue of the Group HIEFERE  AXEEFRAKAR
and the profit of the Group for the year would have been i H i o Bl B1,366.48 BB TR
HK$1,366.4 million and HK$276.5 million, respectively. 2765 ABEIT ©
In aggregate, the Group generated net cash outflow HE-_Z—N\F=ZA=Z=t+—HILHF
totalling HK$78.8 million from acquisition of subsidiaries B AEERWEMBARESLRS
during the year ended 31 March 2018. MHFREAR 788 EEE T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

18

(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

(i

My Healthcare Limited

On 1 July 2017, Hong Kong Pain and Wellness
Solution Limited (“Pain and Wellness”), a 51%
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with the seller (“the
Seller”), who was then the sole shareholder of My
Healthcare Limited. The Seller is a specialist in
neurosurgery (brain and nerve surgeon) and My
Healthcare Limited is operating a clinic in Hong
Kong. Under the terms of the agreement, Pain and
Wellness agreed to acquire 100% of the issued
share capital of My Healthcare Limited.

The transaction was completed on 17 July 2017
with total cash consideration of HK$38.6 million
paid by the Group and 25% of equity interest in
Pain and Wellness with fair value of HK$16.4 million
contributed by the non-controlling shareholder of
Pain and Wellness. Upon completion of the
acquisition, My Healthcare Limited became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Pain and Wellness and
a partially owned subsidiary of the Group. The
Seller became an employer of the Group and a
25% non-controlling shareholder of Pain and
Wellness.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, the Seller
agreed to guarantee the net profits generated by
My Healthcare Limited for the coming eight years
amounting to HK$95.7 million in total. The Seller
shall compensate Pain and Wellness for any
shortfall noted each year.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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31. EXKUWE @)

@ RBE-S-NE=A=+-—
ALEFEENREHSE @)

() My Healthcare Limited

RIE—+F+A—H AR A
WA 51% KT 2 F]Hong Kong
Pain and Wellness Solution
Limited ([ Pain and Wellness |) &2
& BF My Healthcare Limited fE
—BERNEF(EFDIIVEE
Wi BN AN ERE
(B3P R v EHNRLEE A ) My
Healthcare Limited IER & BB L
—KZPT o RIBZ BRI
Pain and Wellness [/ & Y 8& My
Healthcare Limited B 277 % K 89
100% A% °

RHER-_ET—+F+A++tH
TR - BRI RER386EEE
VAR = [ N == X Pain and
Wellness FE 4% I J% 58 LA Pain and
Wellness #)25% i 4 (A F B A&
164BEBT) X RIKEESE
H % K 1 ' My Healthcare
Limited X /& Pain and Wellness #J
2ENBARIRASEIH S
HNEBRAR - EFKABAEER
& 8 K& Pain and Wellness 9 25%
IEARAR AR ER -

HEANEEBEFRELH - R
BEBALH BHFRERE

& N\ My Healthcare Limited &
ERFRAELERBTEES
B JLe B 7 78 MPanand
Wellness f € & F xSRI E5E ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended

31 March 2018 (Continued)

U

My Healthcare Limited (Continued)

The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of
HK$23,548. These costs have been charged to
other expenses in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of My Healthcare Limited as at the date of

31. EXKUWE @)

@ REZ-_ZTZ—N\F=ZA=1+—
BIEFEMKREBEBE (&)

() My Healthcare Limited (#&)

ANEBEESWERERBKAK
23,548 T c BEAKABEF A
FREGEABRROEMAS

My Healthcare Limited 7 U 88 B
HHA#HEERBENAF

acquisition is as follows: BT
Total
BET
Notes HK$
Bt aE T
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB N 13 850,417
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEHIE - Re Rk 104,458
H At FEUFRIE
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEeEEY 1,363,793
Other payables and accruals EAt eI ROIR R IERT B A (1,956,906)
Obligations under finance lease — current BRAFAEANE — B (485,393)
Current tax payable BNEAFE (S L IR (536,973)
Obligations under finance lease — non-current R & M E&IE — FEENHER (185,869)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value BT ETER A (846,473)
RlBEFEERE
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 =
Goodwill on acquisition g iSO 14 846,473
Part of the consideration classified as DEREREENBOINRE 38,607,000
intangible assets
Satisfied by cash DAIR & 4518 38,607,000
Cash consideration HWEREB (38,607,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriEm R e RNIREEEY 1,363,793
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included 1% & E8)FF IR HEH
in cash flows used in investing activities PEMNESRASSE
By F R (37,243,207)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

18

(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

@i

(ii)

My Healthcare Limited (Continued)

Since the acquisition, the My Healthcare Limited
contributed HK$9.8 million to the Group’s revenue
and profit HK$10.6 million to the consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The intangible assets are amortised over the
estimated years of services the Group expects to
benefit from the Seller’s services (“service period”).

In addition to the above, the 25% equity interest in
Pain and Wellness contributed by the non-
controlling shareholder of Pain and Wellness with
fair value of HK$16.4 million is considered a share-
based payment and the charge to profit or loss will
be spread over the service period.

Conya Group Limited and Health Easy Dental
Group Limited (“Conya”)

On 27 December 2017, the Group entered into an
agreement with the then sole shareholder of
Conya. Conya is engaged in the provision of dental
services via multiple dental centers in Hong Kong.
Under the terms of the agreement, the Group
agreed to acquire 60% shareholding in Conya
Group Limited and 60% shareholding in Health
Easy Dental Group Limited.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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31. ¥KUWEE @)

@ REBE-Z-N\F=A=1+-
H ik FE R BB E (o)

() My Healthcare Limited (%)

EH&ZE%L/UK BHE_ZT-N
A=+—H JJ:¢F£

Sﬂ#

Healthcare Limited 9 31| /5 7% £
BUWANMGEBEFEEOSEHS
BILTM106HEESBT -

BEEERAEBBEHITZRN

B 7R {45 RS & 8 (TR
TSHAR] ) BN o

Br L 3¢ Fr it - M Pain and
Wellness FF1ZEAR AR R IR (A F (&
#1648 & & L BPain and
Wellness 25% % 1 #% 1% & LA B%
MEER A BRR%
IR IB s -

(i) Conya Group Limited &
Health Easy Dental Group
Limited ([ Conyal)

RZE—+HF+-—A=++AH -

N Conya B & B — A% R
T8 ° Conya B IBE B LR
FRAPLRERBETERE -

BEZBEHER XEER
= Uk B8 Conya Group Limited £
60% % # & Health Easy Dental
Group Limited &) 60% J% &



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

(i) Conya Group Limited and Health Easy Dental
Group Limited (“Conya”) (Continued)

The transaction was completed on 27 December
2017 with total consideration of HK$30.3 million.

The goodwill of HK$17.3 million arising from the
acquisition is attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool and combining the
operations of the Group and Conya.

The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of
HK$150,000. These costs have been charged to
other expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year.

B H AR I ot

31. ¥KUWEE @)

(@ RBZE=-ZT-—NE=A=+-
HIEFENWESE®)

(ii)

Conya Group Limited &
Health Easy Dental Group
Limited ([ Conya l) (&)

RHER_E—EF+-H
“ttEBEK BHRER30S3
BEBTT

WEELNHEI7TIEEET
KB D6 E PR 15 R AR &
ZNE2 [ B2 Conya H) S FE UL -

AEBEEKRBHEBKAE
150,000/ 7T - EKRAE B F
NS EERANEMEA TP
Mk o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 31. ¥BWEE @)

() RBE-ZE—N\F=A=+-—
ALEFENREESE®

(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

(i)  Conya Group Limited and Health Easy Dental (i)
Group Limited (“Conya”) (Continued)

Conya Group Limited &
Health Easy Dental Group
Limited ([ Conyal) (&)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

Conya R g i B HAR A s R & B2

of Conya as at the date of acquisition is as follows: FEENAFEENT
Total
st
Notes HKS
B aE BIT
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B & 13 4,020,814
Inventories FE 23,462
Trade receivables H 5 IR 884,925
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables NI R R 5,578,893
Hoh pE IR
Intangible assets on acquisition WIS B B E 2,463,048
Deferred tax liabilities on intangible assets B EERELESIEAE (406,403)
Tax recoverable AR 1 FTE 1,167,365
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEY 2,864,653
Trade payables B SRR (446,550)
Other payables and accruals HA R FIEREE R (1,753,045)
Obligations under finance leases AT EAE (581,699)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAFEEH A HER 13.815.463
BEFEBRE
Non-controlling interests IEPE R = (5,526,189)
Goodwill on acquisition IR R P2 14 22,050,613
Satisfied by cash AR & 45 1E 30,339,891
Cash consideration IR RE (30,339,891)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FiER R e MRS EED 2,864,653
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included #H&EBRARESRER S
in cash flows used in investing activities EHREMBEEEY
T R (27,475,238)

Since the acquisition, the Conya contributed
HK$7.5 million to the Group’s revenue HK$0.8
million to the consolidated profit for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

(iii)

Hair styling and beauty business

On 15 August 2017 and 6 September 2017, the
Group entered into sale and purchase agreements
with three individuals, who were the then
shareholders of five entities which operate in hair
styling business and providing beauty services
under the brand name Mulan (“Hair styling and
beauty business”). Under the terms of the
agreements, the Group agreed to acquire 50% to
100% shareholding in the five entities.

The transaction was completed on 15 August 2017
and 6 September 2017 with total consideration of
HK$29.5 million.

The goodwill of HK$43.5 million arising from the
acquisitions is attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool and combining the
operations of the Group and Hair styling and
beauty business.

The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of
HK$148,822 on 15 August 2017 and 6 September
2017. These costs have been charged to other
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year.

B H AR I ot

31. EXKUWE @)

@ NBE=-Z-NE=A=+-—
BUFENREEE @)

(i) EBEHRERER

RZZE—tFNA+HRAEZ
E—+F AN AEEH
=Z AT (AMuUlan R & & 58
EENEBRIEHERRBELN
TEEENERBRE)FIVESR
([ EREERNER])
RIEBEZBENIER  AEEH
EEZAIEEEH0%E
100% AR HE °

REHEER_E—+tFENA+H
BE-ZZE—tFNANBZK
HRBEAB295AEHETT ©

WRELANHEISAEET
KB D16 E PR 15 R AU &
AEBBEBEEZENWRITER
Yig -

AEER-_ZT—+tFN\NATH
BE-_ZE—+tFNANBEALE
U BB AE BE Ak A8 148,822 7T © %
ERAFAFTREEBEERN
HippA o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 31. ¥BWEE @)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended (@) RBE=-E—NE=ZHA=+-—

31 March 2018 (Continued) HIEFEFEHNWEBHSE#)
(iii)  Hair styling and beauty business (Continued) (i) BAEBERNRERFER (&)

BEENREREBREER
WA B EERBBNRF

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of hair styling and beauty business as at the date of

acquisition is as follows: ER NN
Total
Bt
Notes HKS
M5 BT
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KR A 13 3,501,058
Intangible assets EmRAE 441,169
Inventories rE 1,617,982
Trade receivables 2 SRR 2,908,791
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENFIE - ek 4,807,059
EAth e UEIR
Intangible assets on acquisition BB R & B 12,662,650
Deferred tax liabilities on intangible assets B EENELENIAEE (2,089,337)
Tax recoverable AU el £ IR 136,187
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFASEEY 3,610,690
Trade payables 2 Z N RIR (385,198)
Other payables and accruals HAtbET /I R EET B (14,117,665)
Deferred revenue PRIEBA (30,042,614)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value BAFEFEM R (16,949,228)
BEFEESE
Non-controlling interests JEVERRRE = 8,652,699
Goodwill on acquisition W g R g 22 14 22,016,529
Satisfied by cash AR & 4518 13,720,000
Cash consideration HEeERE (13,720,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired PR & & 3,610,690
REZEEY

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included R EEESMABRESRE
in cash flows used in investing activities FEEMNReR

ReHEMRLFHE (10,109,310)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

(ili) Hair styling and beauty business (Continued)

Since the acquisition, the Hair styling and beauty
business incurred HK$20.6 million to the Group’s
revenue and incurred loss of HK$8.9 million to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 March
2018.

(iv) Other insignificant acquisitions

In addition to the acquisitions set out in (a)(i) to (i)
above, the Group acquired other business which
are insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements and generated net cash outflow
totalling HK$4.0 million.

Acquisitions for the year ended 31 March
2017

On 283 September 2016, Union Chiropractic and
Physiotherapy Limited, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the New York Medical Group
(Pain Center) Limited and its fellow subsidiaries (together
referred to as “NYMG”). NYMG is one of the largest
groups of chiropractors, physiotherapists and other
health professionals in Hong Kong which specialise in the
musculoskeletal and nervous systems. Under the terms
of the agreement, the Company agreed to acquire 51%
shareholding in the issued share capital of NYMG.

The transaction was completed on 7 October 2016 with
total consideration of HK$33,512,505, upon which
NYMG has become an indirect subsidiary of the
Company.

B H AR I ot

31. EXKUWE @)

(a)

(b)

RBE=-Z-N\FE=ZA=+-—
HIEFEHNWEBESE &)

(i) EBERRIXDEY (&)

BRELAK BE-_FT—N\F
—A=t—BLFEBEEED
REBEBD BB EBERA
MizamNELE206B8ETT
KR 8OBEAET °

(iv) HttEXWE

B 32 (a)(i) 2 (i) B Fr S g o -
A E U H ¥ 4R A B IS R
KU TEENEBREARS
MR EAST40EEET -

RBE-Z—tHF=A=1+-—
HiEFENYE

RZZT—XENALA=-+=H " Union
Chiropractic and Physiotherapy
Limited (AR B2 EM B A F)) 8
New York Medical Group (Pain Centre)
Limited & E A 5 W B 2 A1 (¢ 18 &
INYMGD FTIZ E B % - NYMG &
BRARE  VEAEREMEES
¥ABEEZ— ENAFHERGK
ABMAENER - REBHHGR - A
NAEIRAEWENYMGE B 1T A51%
& -

RGN _E—"F+ALBZEK &
A& 533,512,505 7T © Z 1 NYMG
MAKRRREEWB AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Acquisitions for the year ended 31 March

2017 (Continued)

The acquisition will bring synergistic benefits to the
Group’s strategy to diversify the Group’s business
portfolio and provide a new source of income to the
Group. The goodwill of HK$24,545,805 arising from the
acquisition is attributable to acquired economies of scale
expected from combining the operations of the Group
and NYMG. None of the goodwill recognised is expected
to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The Group incurred acquisition-related cost of
HK$132,600 on 7 October 2016. These costs have been
charged to other expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
NYMG as at the date of acquisition is as follows:

31. EXKUWE @)

(b)

REBE-ZE—tHF=ZA=1+—
H 1k FE§ W g (4)

W AAEELELEKAERE
A U PR B 58 R 5 SR 153 [R) F 245 o
U B A MO P22 24,545,805 8 T K B
A PR EEENYMG 275 T8 ES 8
RIELE - TR ERATEHM
=EEH A& o

KREBR-_ZT— F+ALBHELK
B M AR 7K 132,600 T © 3% ZE /AR
FAFEAGAEBRERNEMRES -

NYMG 7 W8 B B AT BRI B E M B
BRFENT

Total
4t
Notes HK$
B 5 BIT
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB NEE 13 1,483,206
Intangible assets mILEE 15 8,907,318
Inventory s 250,244
Trade receivables B 5 IR 479,470
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AN FUE -« e R EA R EOE 10,820,563
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEYD 8,736,736
Trade payables =) ANE (115,049)
Other payables and accruals H b e FRIE K B R E (11,003,359)
Current tax payable FE{STBNERR IR (495,893)
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEAE (1,469,707)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value RATEFENAHAE
THERREE 17,593,529
Non-Controlling interests IR (8,620,829)
Goodwill on acquisition AT s By ) g 14 24,545,805
Satisfied by cash LIRS #E 33,518,505
Cash consideration HeRE (33,518,505)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrikiERiR e RIS EEY 8,736,736

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
included in cash flows used in
investing activities

RETHFARSRETBREN
Be MReEHEYRHIFE

(24,781,769)

1 9 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b)

Acquisitions for the year ended 31 March
2017 (Continued)

Since the acquisition, the NYMG contributed
HK$20,538,935 to the Group’s revenue and
HK$6,004,689 to the consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2017, the revenue of the Group
and the profit of the Group for the year would have been
HK$40,925,649 and HK$10,122,896, respectively.

In addition to the acquisition of NYMG, the Group
acquired other subsidiaries which are insignificant to the
consolidated financial statements and generated net
cash outflow totalling HK$3,711,857.

In aggregate, the Group generated net cash outflow
totalling HK$28,493,626 from acquisition of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

B H AR I ot

31. EXKUWE @)
b) REBE=-ZE—tF=HA=+—

HIEFENWRE @)

BWENR  BHE2EZT—+tF= A
=+ —HIEFEENYMGH Rl AAREE
WA K 76 ' ) B B 20,538,935 78 7T
1 6,004,689 7T

WEHRNEE_E—tF=A=+—
EIJLEJ*WF% BN £ B F R A
B F i 2 Bl 540,925,64978 T &
10,122,896 /8T ©

B U BE NYMG o] - ﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ‘ﬁ
RENBHRRITIEENHNBE R
EXRERLFHE af3,711,857/a
7E o

HE-_ZT—+F=-A=+—HBI#F
B AEEEKRENBRARELRSE
R EE A 5T 28,493,626 7T ©
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32.

33.

19

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

32. FREE

R|ERKR - WENERE M BRI AR
BENIAREDNT

2018 2017
—E-NF T+t
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Bank guarantee given to a credit M= A R E IR IRITIE(R
card institution 2,000,000 2,000,000

As at 31 March 2018, the maximum liability of the Group under
the bank guarantee given to a credit card institution was
HK$2,000,000 (2017: HK$2,000,000).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its beauty service centres, office
premises and warehouses under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for these properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 5 years.

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

R-E-—NF=ZA=+—8 K£EEH]E
ARRERENBOTERAE TR AE
42,000,000 7T (ZZF — £ : 2,000,000
BIT) ©

33. MEHERE
AEERBGEBERHHARETES

REHL - MAMERRE - LEMEN
REERBEPNF 12565 -

REERTAIHEE L EH A THRIA T 2 H
HRARREMNOREHRERBLESS T
™

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —&FR 103,917,736 86,859,505
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUEERER 228,947,230 64,382,744
After 5 years HFEMNE 153,640 =
333,018,606 151,242,249

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed

B H AR I ot

4. BEBHAIRS

(@)

R BHRREMEBOMFENRZ S R

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the EON  REBFENBEEHEIA N5
following material transactions with related parties during BEARS
the year:
2018 2017
—E-N\%¥ —T—+tF
Notes HK$ HKS
(i3 BT BT
Companies beneficially owned HYLEEEREENAT
by Tang Chi Fai
Purchases of skincare and beauty BEEENEDTERMN
products and medical BB
consumables (i) - 3,589
Commission expenses BemMx (i) - 1,764,614
Rental expenses HeM% (i) 1,809,000 1,574,000
Companies beneficially owned HYLELREER
by the spouse of Tang Chi Fai BEHAT
Sales of skincare and beauty HEEEREXDTER
products 0] 25,967 24,338
Purchases of skincare and beauty BEEERERERR
products and medical BEREM
consumables 0] 25,873,440 10,999,940
Purchases of property, BEME  BERKE
plant and equipment (iv) 2,833,391 4,259,543
Rental expenses HeMx ) 288,000 288,000
Insurance brokerage service fee REELRIEE (v) 938,519 180,150
Equipment maintenance service fee RBHERSE (vi) 2,307,562 1,471,453
Travelling expenses ZEIRRFY (vii) - 371,188
Notes: BiaE -

(i) Sales and purchases were made with the related parties
according to the mutually agreed pricing.

(ii) The Commission expenses were charged from related parties
according to mutually agreed terms.

(i)

HERBEDREBEEIHECELRA
BT 1R ©

18 5 B S T9AR 35 88 75 155 E RO R R 7] A
B 75 YR o

BEREBREBRASEERAT
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

19

(@)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) The rental expenses were charged from the related parties on
an actual cost basis.

(iv) Items of property, plant and equipment were purchased from
a related party according to mutually agreed terms.

(V) Insurance brokerage service fee was charged from the related
party according to mutually agreed terms.

(Vi) Equipment maintenance service fee was charged from the
related party according to mutually agreed terms.

(viij  Travelling expenses were charged from the related party
according to mutually agreed terms.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

All members of key management personnel are directors
of the Company, and their compensation is disclosed in
note 9.

There was no continuing connected transaction entered
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2018
which is required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The related party transactions disclosed
in note 34(a) are exempted from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14(A) of the Listing Rules as
they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule
14A.76(1).

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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34. BEEF RSB (@)

BaE : ()

(i) TSR IR B B AR AN H % 1w B
URER o

vy P BERREHEBVREESH
ERRT e — R -

V) REREACIRTS B TR IR T 13 5E B 16
R A 77 W BR @

V) REEERBEDREETBEN G
SR BE R 77 B -

(Vi) ZE B ST TR YR & 77 15 5 HO 6RR A1 B
8677 WX

AEBTEEEBABNFTMH

BETREREABRARAES
1T 15 S5 B S BN O B 5 O AP IR

BE_Z—N\F=A=+—HItF
B AEBELEERE EWHRAE
VYAERE 7 FBBEERS - R
@) BB TR P ERRET L
MRABUAZENEERTE  REA
ERARSEMIBIESE 14A.76(1) 5/ &
BEXKFE o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amount of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

As at 31 March 2018

Financial assets

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

0%

35. ZEFEITNEMTA

NEHREHRNREED

BAFE
HPN b
SREE
Designated
as such
upon initial Loans and
recognition receivables Total
R AT =05
EHBREE P& W8 st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Trade receivables 2 S EW A - 68,670,393 68,670,393
Deposits and other receivables B R E A - 96,307,539 96,307,539
Financial assets at fair value BATER ABEN
through profit or loss TRIEE 495,829,752 - 495,829,752
Pledged time deposits BT BER - 2,000,740 2,000,740
Time deposits with original JREIEA A ERB 318 A /Y
maturity over 3 months EHFER - 395,871,516 395,871,516
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEEY - 295,481,085 295,481,085
495,829,752 858,331,273 1,354,161,025
ERABIEREEERAT

FERE 2017/18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. ##ZEEE 7 MWEm T A @)

(Continued)
As at 31 March 2018 (Continued) R=B-N\F=A=+—H@#@)
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
278 Fo]2 %
ARNSmAE
HK$
BT
Trade payables B ST FIR 9,438,467
Other payables and accruals Hib IR EFTE R 96,786,957
Obligations under finance lease BhETH &R E 2,126,492
Bank borrowings IRITER 558,853,516
667,205,432
As at 31 March 2017 R-—ZE—tF=H=+—H
Financial assets SHMEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss
BAFERA
BRNeREE
Designated
as such
upon initial Loans and
recognition receivables Total
PR 9A TR B ERk
YEH BRAIEE FEUWSRIE FEET
HK$ HK$ HK$
ABIT BIT BT
Trade receivables B 5 W EIR S 52,142,746 52,142,746
Deposits and other receivables R4& M E b e F 08 - 49,969,210 49,969,210
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEBEN
through profit or loss TRVEE 499,745,689 = 499,745,689
Pledged time deposits B E TR - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Time deposits with original FREIEAHBE 3E A &Y
maturity over 3 months TFHATFR = 158,712,370 158,712,370
Cash and cash equivalents HERESEEY - 200,644,165 200,644,165

499,745,689 463,468,491 963,214,180

1 9 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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36.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AR I ot

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. ##ZEEEs7MWEm T A @)

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2017 (Continued)

R-EE—tE=A=+—80@®H)

Financial liabilities Eal=lh=Ri

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RE SR AR
AEHNERAE
HK$
BT
Trade payables Z SN RIR 6,468,211
Other payables and accruals HAtb I R EETE 52,145,544
Obligations under finance leases B E A E AR 924,438
59,638,193

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 36. 2 ERERAFEER

HIERARCHY

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

TREAREECRTIANATEAERE

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: A
Assets measured at fair value: BATEHENSE
Fair value measurement using
ERATHIEETATENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERTE EXTER EBATUEE
FrgER BARE WAHE
(B1ER) (%2R (%3ER) @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT BT
As at 31 March 2018 R-ZE-N\§=A=1+-H
Unlisted fund investments and bond A FEstEHIE FTESRE
investments at fair value — designated [ (E54% & — RIIAHERE
as such upon initial recognition EHEBIETE 329,449,514 166,380,238 - 495829,752
As at 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=HA=+—-H
Unlisted bond investment, RATHEFENELMEFRE -
certificate of deposits and FHERERE — R
coupon note at fair value — R EL BT
designated as such upon
initial recognition - 499,745,689 - 499,745,689

BEREBREBRASEERAT
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36.

37.
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The fair values of the unlisted fund investments are based on
quoted market prices.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The unlisted bond investments (2017: unlisted bond
investments, certificate of deposits and coupon note) are not
quoted in an active market and may be subject to restrictions
on redemptions. The fair value is determined by discounting
the contractual cash flows. The discount rate used is derived
from the relevant government yield curve as at the end of the
reporting period plus credit spread.

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at the end of the reporting period.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and investment
fund risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group was involved in the provision of medical, quasi-
medical and traditional beauty services and the sale of skincare
and beauty products and receivable balances are mainly from
financial institutions in respect of credit card receivables.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis by
senior management and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. In addition, the Group’s bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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36.

37.

BERAFERER &)

A

_|{|

FRN - B1IEREF2ERK 2 HITELTE
AREER URYENEREERSRE
BETEIBREALE D -

FLETREEZESHRFEUATSRERE

-

F2EMAFETEMANMGER
i 2 3y A BUB

FEMEFRE(ZT—LF : FLETES
BRE BFRELRB)ETEMSLER
B AJReXEEERG - RFETIEMHR
BRREREET - FITAMBAXRR/KREH
RAEBBTRAZME - SNEESE -

TRATEAENEHEERER

AEBRRARBERAINENSRTA
MEEERENBERNRNATFELES
REH

TRiE R EE B R REGR

AEEERTAMELANTIERRAEER
R RBETER  FXERRKER
TRk EFEHLARERLFRARD
KR mitFRBBHEAT o

EEAR

AEBERERUER EBEREAREXR
RIGARHEEE R EXDEM - MRKRK
HEREIERE SBEBENERTRER
A o RUWIRESRARRERESEEE -
AN ER B S SR AR LR B o e
AEENRITERFRNORL EEDHESL
BIERRIFHIERTT ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AR I ot

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. TRIAKREEBEERBE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from AREBEHFAIEBYESANEMEREE
the default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure HEERMBSABHEERLESHMEEN
equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets. BRMEE -
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to BRENE BoEWREBMEAYNEE
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note [B % Y3 — 2 2 IR R R SRR W
18 to the financial statements. F18 e
Liquidity risk REBES R
The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash REBZYIENEIFTEEBRRAAETEDN
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management BERREEBYKE  UBNEAEER
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of ZENREESRENINTE - BB
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors THEHLEZYFTHRALEESET K -
its working capital requirements regularly.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on NEBHESHABEERSY KRR SZERN
the contractual undiscounted amounts, are as follows: FERERAT ¢
As at 31 March 2018 R-E-N\F=H=+—H
More than ~ More than
Within 1 year but 2 years Total
1 year or lessthan butlessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carry
on demand 2 years 5years S5years  cash flows amounts
AR—FR —FHE MEAE KR
REREE BRER BRER IENE BeRELE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Trade payables EHRNFA 9,438,467 - - - 9438467 9438467
Other payables and accruals HtEAZEREER 96,786,957 - - - 96,786,957 96,786,957
Obligations under finance leases RERERE 1,736,132 421,376 - - 2,157,508 2,126,492
Bank borrowings BITER 463,584,588 19,724,060 55243782 35,867,865 574,420,295 558,853,516
571,546,144 20,145,436 55243782 35,867,865 682,803,227 667,205,432

BEREBREBRASEERAT
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FERRMIRE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. TRIAKREEEERBE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
As at 31 March 2017 R=-E—t+tHF=A=+—H
More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years Total
1 year or but less than butlessthan  undiscounted
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows ~ Carry amounts
AR—FRZ —FHE MEL £ REEH
RER(EE BRER BREA  HeREEE REE
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
B B BT B B
Trade payables BHENE 6,468,211 - - 6,468,211 6,468,211
Other payables and accruals MR RIEER 52,145,544 52145544 52,145,544
Obligations under finance leases BEMERE 366,912 366,912 230,185 964,009 924,438
58,980,667 366,912 230,185 59,577,764 59,638,193
Interest rate risk == = b
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank REBRNAMERRTERGRTER - K
borrowings. Bank borrowings issued at variable rates and at FEREREEMNEREL 2RITERD A
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and SAREHE 7¥< RenefExRkkAFE
fair value interest rate risk respectively. FI=EE R
The Group monitors the level of its variable rate borrowings 7B [ BE R B R 2K & 5 B TE A K AE 5K
and fixed rate borrowings and manages the contractual terms K EREBFESHMEERAENEGLN
of the interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities. For this 1\7%/7 Bt XEERE [BRFE] BEF
purpose the Group defines “net borrowings” as being interest- SeRBERAERE(TRERIERRE
bearing financial liabilities less interest-bearing investments BEESNRE) AEBHREEEERNF
(excluding cash held for short-term working capital purposes). TR ET TR ()38 ©

The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s net borrowings (as defined above) at the end of
the reporting period.

B H AR I ot

37. R EAREE R ERBER @)

FZRE e (&)

i)

ES =

TRFANAEER REMERZER
FR(ERER LX) ZFIRBER -

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
“E-N\EZf=1-H “Z—+F=A=1-H
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERFI=E M BIRH% R
Note HK$ HK$
iz BT B
Fixed rate borrowings: EEF=ER
Bank loans RITER 24 0.02% 442,441,888  NATER -
Variable rate borrowings: FHRHEER
Bank loans RITER 24 0.38% 116,411,628  N/AT@ER =
558,853,516 -
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) HREDH

At 31 March 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by approximately HK$9,720 (2017: HK$nil). Other
components of consolidated equity would not be
affected in response to a general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

RZE-—NF=ZA=+—8 ' &&H
RERE PR TRRA100MEES - AT
EHEMEERBFTTIENBRT A&
BB R & 0m A R B & F A8 R
L IEINK9,7208 T ( —B— 45
ZEx) Bt aERNs BT
EFREE EF/ THRMIEIFE -

BEREBREBRASEERAT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated equity is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
or income of such a change in interest rates.

Investment fund risk

Investment fund risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of investment fund will fluctuate due to changes in the
prices of underlying securities. The maximum risk resulting
from investment fund equals their fair value.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the unlisted fund investments to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax. There is no impact on the Group’s
equity except on the retained profits.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

37. R EAREE R ERBER @)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Investment fund risk (Continued)

REESERE @)

Carrying amount Change in profit

of investments before tax
BEM BB AR R
BREE K982 B
HK$ HK$
BT BT
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\F=A=+—H
Unlisted fund investments at fair value & AFEEEMIELT
— designated as such upon initial ESIRE — RYBHERR
recognition TER BEEIEE 329,449,514 16,472,476
As at 31 March 2017 R-F—tHF=H=+—H
Unlisted fund investments at fair value & AFEEEMIELT
— designated as such upon initial AESRE — R HERE
recognition TER BEEIEE - -
Capital management EXER

The Group’s main objectives with respect to capital
management include maintaining a solid and stable financing
structure to support its ongoing business growth so that it can
continue to maximise shareholders’ return, and providing an
adequate return to the shareholders by pricing products and
services commensurate with the level of risk.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to the shareholders, return capital
to the shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

AEEBEREAEENTIERREEAR
REMNBERE UXHEFENETE
EUABREAFESRROBRA(C - AR
BBASER R RBOHERRE R ERRK
FHEERARREHTCORE -

AEBTFHEMREEEERNRBL L
ERANESH A EENRRSESH
FHRE  RERAFARBRELARE &%
B R pE AR ABRRELOBREMNR - MK
RREEARLBITHR - AEE L EmEH
TSN BN EARFR - FAAEHE
BEANBR  BRIURREHETMES -
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38. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

20

38. DA BARREK

FINANCIAL POSITION
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF
Note HK$ HK$
B BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBEARMNKRE 8 8
Loan to a joint venture BRFEEDE 14,500,000 =
14,500,008 8
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW T B A R 183,729,399 422,711,591
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEeEEY 362,494 27,844,027
184,091,893 450,555,618
NET ASSETS EERE 198,591,901 450,555,626
EQUITY S 28(a)
Share capital A& 2 9,834 9,808
Reserves i 198,582,067 450,545,818
198,591,901 450,555,626

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

27 June 2018

Lee Gabriel

ZEX
Director

EF

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18
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Yeung Chin Wan
BRY
Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AR I ot

39. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 39. R—ENEBARINIKRE
The following list contains only the particular of subsidiaries LNTEREBESHYNETESERER 7 248 -
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of BEXBEZHEBRARGFE -
the Group.
Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ FEERENER
establishment/ paid-up REF D
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
Y/ BRIRA/
WEARER R/ E¥4% BERA E# B TEEE
Able Lead Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Provision for healthcare services
(BHRRAE) “ 1B e R
AllUnion International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Investment holding
(ERERREERAR) Bl 187 RERR
Best Union (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of medical, quasi-medical
(R (B BRAE) B 1T and tradltional beauty services
and sale of skincare and beauty
products

RUBR EEEREORXA
BB RHEERREDER

Conya Group Limited Hong Kong HK$11,000 S 60%  Provision of dental services
B 11,000%7 BRI RIRH
Doctor Rebom Cosmetic Surgery Centre Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10 S 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
(EXBEENTOERAT) Bh 1087 REERES
Doctor Reborn Cosmetic Surgery Institute Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 S 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
(BXBEERROERAR) Bl 10,0007 BEERES
Dr. Proand Dr. Reborn Medical Aesthetics Macau MOP26,000 S 85%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Centre Limited il 26,0002 7 beauty services
(BEZBEXRTLERLA) RUBEXTRE
Grand Best Union Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Provision of administrative services
(BIEBARLA) Bl 187 RETHRE
Grand Best Union Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Investment holding
A 187 RERR
Guangzhou Zhuansheng Aesthetic Medical Beauty ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Provision of medical services
Clinic Company Limited i ARE REBERS
(BNELEXBRXAMDBERAA) 100000007
Guangzhou Zhuansheng Enterprise Management  The PRC (note 1) RMB500,000 = 100%  Provision of medical services
Company Limited (1) ARE RELBERE
(ENZELXERARLA) 5000007

BEREBREBRASEERAT
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39. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

20

30. R—REMBARNKRE @)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ AEERENER
establishment/ paid-up REBD
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AR/ BRIRE/
WEARZE R/ E$% BERA B Mg IZER
Health Easy Dental Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 60%  Provision of dental services
Bl 1007 RETRRE
Jade Master International Limited British Virgin Islands US$10 = 100%  Investment holding
B 0% RERR
Medic One Surgery Center Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision for management services
i 187 REERRY
My Healthcare Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision for healthcare services
% 1007 REERRE
New Elte Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$10 S 100%  Provision of medical and traditional
(FBEEERAF) B 10T beauty senvices and sale of
skincare and beauty products
RUBRREAXTRENL
HEEERERER
New Union Intemational Capital Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100%  Provision of management services
(MBEREAERAR) 3 187 REEERE
New York Medical Group Hong Kong HK$1,000 = 51%  Provision of chiropractic services
BOBESE Bh 100077 - 51% REABRE
Professional Aesthetic Surgery Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision for management services
(BXREEPHLERARA) Bl 1A RHERRE
Professional Medical and Surgery Center Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(EMBERRROERAR) Bl hiv REERRE
Team Expert Investment Limited British Virgin Islands USS$1 S 100%  Investment holding
EERNHS 1% RERR
The One Dental Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of dental services
& 1007 RETRRE
The One Dental Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of dental services
& 187 BT RIRR
Union Dental Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
ZERNES %7 RERR

Union Medical Healthcare Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18
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39. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

B H AR I ot

39. R—REMBARNKRE @)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ REERENER
establishment/ paid-up REBAL
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
AL/ BRRA/
() P R/ E%E ARRE E# B TEER
Union Dermatory Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US§1 - 100%  Investment holding
ZERNHS 1%7 RELR
Union Enchanting Limited British Virgin Islands USS1 = 100%  Investment holding
(BARCARLT) EERNHES 1£7 RERR
Union (Group) Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$29,608 - 100%  Provision of medical,

(B4 (KB REERAF) % 29,6087 quasi-medical and traditional
beauty services and sale of
skincare and beauty products

RAEE EREREEED
BB RHEERRERER
Union Harvest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of marketing services
(2e5RRE) B 187 RETISEERE
Union Heatth Services Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US§1 100% - Investment holding
EERNHS 1£7 RERR
Union Honor Intemational Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of management services
(BEERCXERAR) i 10,0007 REERRH
Union Laboratory Heatthcare Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
EERNHS 1% RERR
Union Medical Association Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Owner of trademarks
& 187 AREAA
Union Medical Capital Management Limited British Virgin Islands US§1 S 100%  Investment holding
RERHE 1£7 REBR
Union Preventive Healthcare Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
RERIHE %7 REBR

Note 1: The subsidiary is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.

M1 ZMBRARATREIEEERE -

EREEEREEARAHE
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40.

41.

20

B FS R M R

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 March 2018, the directors consider the immediate parent
of the Group to be Union Medical Care Holding Limited, which
is incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party of
the Group to be the Controlling Shareholder. None of the
parties produces financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2018 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

40. EERRARERA

41.

RZBE-N\F=ZA=1+—H EERAEX
%IE’]E&! AIANRBE ST
X3 #9Union Medical Care Holding Limited
MAE BN SEERT BERBKRER - 25
BRI AEREABEARERANTBERE

CHEMAEHRRBEE-F—-N\F
EAS+-HALEFELERNE
Al MERRBRENTRSE

BEZSFMBBRERTNEBY  FES56
AQE%%;EfJ&ﬁﬁW MR S5

B

ARBE-_T-NF=ZA=t—BLEE
E&KEIHMSZSQM‘%#E%W%FH Hep

AIREEASEBAERRE RSN T -

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

RUT BEAS 2 #B%H

METHHBEXN

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statemem‘ of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017

BRGAERNBTRNER] B nEx - KFHE —E—+F—H—H

Amendments to H KAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets 1 January 2017
for unrealised losses

BB G ERNE12RMER] » HTEM - R AR EEREELEHTEEE —t+F—H—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

ERUBHMEENEIN  €HTA —NF—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and

measurement of share-based payment transactions

ERMBREENF 2|/NER] - UROBELZ K - AR BEEZ

AR G2 2B REE
HKFRS 16, Leases

EEUBMEENE 165 HE

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new standards which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining whether
to adopt any of these new requirements before their effective
date and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 16, Leases

In respect of lease accounting for lessees, the current policy is
set out in note 3.1. Under HKFRS 16, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account
for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the
lessee will recognise and measure lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise
a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of
this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease
term. As disclosed in note 33, at 31 March 2018, the Group’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amounted to HK$688,596,906. Most of these
amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS
16 is adopted.

41.

B H AR I ot

EEMERRRBE-F-N\F
ZAZ+t-BLEFEERNE
AoHERARZRENARESE

LR B IE ¥ (A I BB AT KA R R U)X FE
REENEREE - AREZTNERS -
FEREE Y 5 E Al REE AR B MBS IR A
BERFE BHZENE-—FPFBRTX
Al o AR AEBEERTHERE - AR
HEERRAEENE-—STE INEH
MREEMEMANEERLRKMNZERN
BIE - BRI ZBIETEA R ERIAT
R ZEMTER  S§EETEERA
A o

ERAMBREENE165; > HE
BAREBRANBEESHER  ERRESH
R ES1 - RIBEB B BIREXERE 16
R ABTBEI MERERKLER
Eo Ak SEREEFEMNRR  AEA
BENEENRERESFTEE R AEMU
MARARERE  ARABRHEE
BIEAPRSFEAREAENRNEBERR
MErEHEaE  WiERMaENFHA%E]
BE NRZEEKAGBVRERR £HA
ABERBEREREEEHRETNTE
M RERAEEENTTE - MIELRBERIZ
R EEmRHPANEENSLERER
TR AERBGE - M FESSATHE - ¥
—E-N\F=ZA=+—8 AEBEHNTA
BHEgEHEETARKERENRA
688,596,906 57T - —EERABBM RS
ERFE16 REHZEFETEALT
THEREHREAE  WHEREENFHE
BE -
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DEFINITIONS

“AGM”
[RRBEFAE]

“Articles of Association”
[HEZT2AE ]

“Board”
EE3-0

“CG Code”

[RERTA

“Chinese Medicine Ordinance”

[ o & B {ek 51 ]

“Chinese Medicine Practitioner(s)”

[hE]

“Clinical Microbiologist”

“Company”
[ARAA]]
“Dentist(s)”

[ 718

“Dentists Registration Ordinance”

[ o B MBI ) ]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Doctor(s)”

(84

21 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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the annual general meeting of the Company proposed to be held on 20
August 2018

2ER T \FNAAZTHETNARIRFBEFAE

the Company’s articles of association

AR HEEERZ AR

the board of Directors

Exg

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, as amended from time to time

ETHR R 14 P B R B A T B (R AEHERT)

the Chinese Medicine Ordinance (Chapter 549 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BRVEDIE 549 B B EGHDETEHERT ~ fFR AR I KB

the Registered Chinese Medicine Practitioner and the Listed Chinese
Medicine Practitioner who are employed by our Group
R E L A A EE A B R &5

a Hong Kong Doctor who is registered under the Specialist Register of the
Hong Kong Medical Council for clinical microbiology and infection kept in
accordance with the Medical Registration Ordinance
RIRCBETMRIDEEFNEEBEEZESRARMEY MR AEERE
2N ESE S

Union Medical Healthcare Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability

EEBEBREEEARAR  RASHEEMKZNERRBRAF]

person(s) who is (are) registered on the General Register kept in accordance
with the Dentists Registration Ordinance
PRIRROCT B RO EFOEBMEBERMEMOAL

the Dentists Registration Ordinance (Chapter 156 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREDIF 156 BT BEMIEHDETRERT ~ fFRsk A 77 A E2R)

the director(s) of the Company
RRARIES

collectively, Hong Kong Doctors, Macau Doctors and PRC Doctors, and
each, a “Doctor”
BERELE - BEAERPEAMESERSE - SEEAR



“EBITDA”
[T E R A 25 H ]

“General Practitioner(s)”
[T

“General Register”
[E BRI 2]

“Greater China”

[ KA

“Group”
[R&H ]

“gfa”
[#Er2E ETE

“HIBOR”
[EARITRFRITE

“Hong Kong”

[&E]

“Hong Kong Doctors” or “
registered medical practitioner(s)”

[EBEE | ok [FHE 4

“PO”

[BERAFAEE]

“IRD”
[Fif5 )

“IRO”
[T 5P )

“Key Client(s)”

[BEEXF]

DEFINITIONS

earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

RETARIE ~ BHIE - ERBHHHN

Hong Kong Doctor(s) who is (are) not a Specialist(s)
WIEEREFHNEBES

the register of registered medical practitioners kept by the Hong Kong
Medical Council, as specified in the Medical Registration Ordinance

CEEEM GG ERRESBHZEemFaEME LRl

the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
FE - BB ORFIRAE

the Company and its subsidiaries
ZA/NGI DS B =SNG

gross floor area

HEEEE

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
FEBRITRAERE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China
hEARKANBEBFRITHR

person(s) who is (are) qualified to practise medicine, surgery and midwifery in
Hong Kong and is (are) registered as registered medical practitioner(s) of the
Hong Kong Medical Council under the General Register or the Specialist
Register kept in accordance with the Medical Registration Ordinance
SEREEBREAR  SMERBERNE B RMR R CE £ T MR EFH
LENEEEMAEREEEMAMATEBRHEESIMEENAL

initial public offering of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RIPIREERZ I E IR E R ARBE

the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong

BRRKER

Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

B ED] (FAEDIF 112F) - BABER] - MR AR B

a client who has, in the relevant financial year, contributed at least HK$5,000
to our revenue from service provided and visited our service centres and/or
clinics for at least four times

MBI ERFE R AR MMMRERS SR A TR ZE 25,0008 T B 2FHK
BRSO R/ ZELNANES

BEREBREBRASEERAT
FERE 2017/18 21 3



DEFINITIONS

“Listed Chinese Medicine
Practitioner(s)”

[R5 g ]

“Listing Date”
[ EEH]

“Listing Rules”
[ Em#R Al

“Macau”
[JBFT ]

“Macau Doctor(s)”

[ERPFIEE A |

“Medical Registration Ordinance”

[ A TG ) ]

“Memorandum and Articles of
Association”

[#RA =2 R4 K 48R

“Model Code”

[EZEs7 I

“Offer”

[

“Plastic Surgeon(s)”

[ERINRIEE L ]

21 Union Medical Healthcare Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

person(s) who is (are) listed as listed Chinese medicine practitioner(s)
maintained by the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong kept in
accordance with the Chinese Medicine Ordinance

MEBHRBEEELZ BSRBE(RBEGINETNREANSERTFER
AL

11 March 2016, being the date on which the Shares were first listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange
“E-RE=R+—HB ARHEREBMIAER LT REEZR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B PaE 2 E AR Al

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
g AR AFBDRPIRRITTE R

doctor(s) licensed by and registered with the department of health in Macau
CEPIFRITH R BN RIERD)
RPN RIITHRR BT &4 BRI RELHE

the Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 161 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EEEDIE 161 BB A TMHEEND (B REHERT ~ #78 sAE M 5 K& 20)

the Company’s memorandum and article of association
PAYNSIFEE v DN
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set

out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRBIEE10FEC EMBEITAZESETESF R HNEESTA]D

N

The IRD agrees not to commence proceedings against the Relevant
Subsidiary under section 80(2) of the IRO relating to the Tax Audit if the
Relevant Subsidiary agrees to pay the IRD the required sums specified in the
Letters (such sums, in aggregate, amount to approximately HK$12.2 million)
HRBRRAE - HAENE R RRERRE RN ZE R IR SR
BEBEFRETN122B8ET) - EETSRBHBEDISE 80(2) FaLH
BEZ LB B A AR L

Hong Kong Doctor(s) who is (are) registered under the Specialist Register of
the Hong Kong Medical Council for plastic surgery kept in accordance with
the Medical Registration Ordinance

MIRBCB ARG FEN BB EB L B @BLINEIERE & 2 M
WEEE



“PRC”

[

“PRC Doctor(s) ”

[ Fh B A 25 A

“Prospectus”
[AIREE

“Registered Chinese Medicine
Practitioner(s)”

[aEfft &

“Registered Practitioner(s)”
[FEEs 4 |

“Relevant Disclosures”

RiclecEE

“Relevant Subsidiaries”

K|zl NcIl

“Reporting Period”
[ ¥ & HAMH

“Share(s)”
[ A& fn

“Shareholder(s)”
A% ER ]

DEFINITIONS

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report
and unless the context suggests otherwise, excludes Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan

REARKERE - fiAFHRME RERXESBMEN  TEEEE - R

L it
R/s

medical practitioner(s) with the qualification of a doctor (El) or assistant doctor
(BNZEBHIE EEAN) under the PRC Law on Medical Practitioners (1 A R £ F1E
#EBANE) and is practicing at a medical or healthcare institution
BE(REAREMERFEEZME) AEEMEDNBEEMERNE

LR EN R E N ZE

the prospectus dated 1 March 2016 issued by the Company
ARRRZE—RF=HA—BHENBRER

person(s) who is (are) registered as registered Chinese medicine
practitioner(s) of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong under the
Register of Chinese Medicine Practitioners kept in accordance with the
Chinese Medicine Ordinance

RIRBCPEZ GO EBEFNPETMEMATMAEETEEEIRLZE®
st EE AL

Dootor( ), Chinese Medicine Practitioner(s) and/or Dentist(s)

BE hBRRTE

the relevant disclosures made under the section headed “Business — Legal
Proceedings, Claims and Compliance — Non-compliance Incidents — Inland
Revenue Ordinance — Late Filing of Profit Tax Returns” of the Prospectus
BRER [ — ARFDR  BRREHR — TEREFH — BB —
BER A BBIR ] — S EH B E

Union Honor International Enterprise Limited and Union (Group) Investment
Limited, and each the “Relevant Subsidiary”
BEBRRCEGRARRME (RE)REBRAR - S8 [1EHEKNEAF

financial year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=-A=-t+—HLYEKFE

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with par value of
HK$0.00001 each
AR BN G AR E A 0.00001 7 7T #) 3 AR

holder(s) of Share(s)
AP EVFER A

BEREBREBRASEERAT
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DEFINITIONS

“Specialist Register”

[ERHEE A4 21 ]

“Specialist(s)”

[ERIEA ]

“Stock Exchange”

[ B 22 FAT

“Trade Descriptions Ordinance”
[ 78 dm w5 BR 16 £51 )

“Trained Therapists”

[ BB X558 BERD
“HKS”

[T

wgy”
(%]

21 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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the register of registered medical practitioners who are Specialists and kept
by the Hong Kong Medical Council, as specified in the Medical Registration
Ordinance

B ET GO FTiE AR A BB L gmTNAME £ (REREE)
4 fift

Hong Kong Doctor(s) who is (are) registered under the Specialist Register of
the Hong Kong Medical Council kept in accordance with the Medical
Registration Ordinance

RBRBE(BETMEID BTN R EBEZESENBLERMEMNEERE
G

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BB ERXIMAERRAT]

the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREDIF 362 BB dn FH R IRGDETERERT ~ fiFRs A 77 R ER)

our employees who are trained in accordance with our internal guidelines to
provide quasi-medical services and/or traditional beauty services

RBERMH A IBIE ST AR ER BRI R, LEREARBEHAA
AlE S

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EBEEREEET

per cent.
Eid



Union Medical Healthcare

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
I ER FH EX =

o=l BEEEFRAR
Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability

A Bl 2 B 5 S O L 2 R A H]
(Stock Code H {5 fX5%: 2138)




	COVER
	CONTENTS
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
	GEOGRAPHICAL COVERAGE
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
	BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	DEFINITIONS

